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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY B BREE

Total assets

2013

CE—=4

HK$'000
M

2014
—E-MmF
HK$'000
:gk—

2015
—E-RE
HK$'000
:%k_

2016
—E—RE
HK$'000
BETT

2017
—E2—tH
HK$'000
:% f E

et 94,440,825 14,654,676 12,909,389 13,721,239 14,535,135
;;’t;' ;ab"i“es 81,424,503 3,617,900 1,965,058 2,798,303 2,696,260
o =}
;’g;%;jggts 13,016,322 11,036,776 10,044,331 10,022,936 11,838,875
Nﬁe;ngsg;‘g”e e B HKS34.38 T B HKS2015 % B HKS28.01 7t BN HKS28.85 7% M HKS31.27 %t
X

Profit for the year attributable to

owners of the Company 543,460 2,356,935 410,366 457,907 744,888
PERADATRR 2 AREEER

Bﬁa;‘gig‘%s IR M HKS1 447 BMIKSB23 7 BMHKSTO8E  BMHKSI21 T M HK$1.97 7
g‘éﬂ;’;ﬁ”gper clidl BEHKS028 7T EMHKS040 7T R HKS042 T BMHKS0.47 T % HKS$0.60 7T
Dividend payout ratio

(from continuing operations only) 39% 38% 39% 39% 30%

RELER (R REFELE)

NOTE 1:

MiaE—:

NOTE 2:
M=
NOTE 3:

MizE= :

Dividend per share in 2014 did not include special cash dividend of HK$2.80 per share due to the completion of Partial Offer (the meaning ascribed thereto in the Company’s
circular to shareholders dated 4 December 2013) for disposal of Chong Hing Bank Limited shares and the special dividend by way of distribution in specie to the shareholders of
the Company in the proportion of 1 share in the issued share capital of Chong Hing Bank Limited for every 10 shares in the issued share capital of the Company.

“E-NEESRRETBERTRHLEAEBTERAARGDIEN (BAQA-S =5+ ANABKRREANES %) MKENEHES
REBRE®E 280 RABMARKEAERAACRTRAS10RIEARAERTERAACHTRAMRE ZBHIRE o

Dividend payout ratio in 2014, if including the special cash dividend and the special dividend by way of distribution in specie, the ratio should be adjusted to 81%.
NEEFREERERUABNIRZEFIRE  —E-NEZRELREAZRZ81% -

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$2,356.9 million recorded in 2014, including the profit from discontinued operations of HK$1,963.3 million.

“E-MESERARRARER 2 AFEEERAEY 2,356,900,000 7 © BIERHCK LELEFIEE1,963,300,000 7 ©



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS CHARTS EF B REEE X

Total Assets & E Total Liabilities & & Total Net Assets EEFEELE T
HK$ in Billion 75 +-{& 7T HK$ in Billion #1187t HK$ in Billion 5*¥&+-{& 7T ;Z>
100 100 14 6
>
r
=
@
12 I
C
80 80 2
—
(2]
10 m
&
o
S
60 60 i
8
6
40 40
4
20 20
2
13 14 15 16 17 13 14 15 16 17 13 14 15 16 17
Profit for the Year Attributable Basic Earnings per Share Dividend per Share
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AERADRARREZ AR EEHEF HKS 755 HKS 55

HK$ in Million /&% B & 7T
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EFE#HEE

OF THE GROUP’S BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
AS WELL AS SOME OBSERVATIONS FROM
THE OVERALL ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT FOR
THE YEAR 2017 AND EXPECTATIONS FOR
THE YEAR AHEAD.

AAGARE BTEHRAKE-FT-tHF2XRE
Bl URAANHEZECERE 2BERG
HRFERZHE -

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to you a review of the Group’s business
performance as well as some observations from the overall
economic environment for the year 2017 and expectations for the

year ahead.

2017 REVIEW

Since President Trump’s inauguration in January 2017, he has
initiated a list of policies to stimulate the US economy including
those on employment, infrastructure, and energy development.
The Tax Reform plan passed through Congress and became law at
the end of last year. The US economic data improved; the
economy has grown 2.1%. The key Stock Indices have reached new

highs.

-
| AM PLEASED TO PRESENT TO YOU A REVIEW I g

BERRE
FARAE BTEHARA=F —tE2
HEDRE URAASEEEERS B

5 BRFERIHE -

—F—tHFEoE
BRFALE-_T—tF—ALE%E HH—F
51| RIBUAS BB ESR - %ﬂﬂ%%\ﬁ@ﬁ
2 RERREERFEABHBER
FEKBEBIRITE %£9E$E2va
BEZLRY  BEAIRELHS o



The formal Brexit negotiations started between the EU and Britain
at the end of March 2017. As a result, both the British economy
and the Pound Sterling were weak. This state of affair persisted
until preliminary agreements were reached by both sides on the
British exist settlement and various other issues in December.

Since then, the stock market has revived upward.

On 29 November, North Korea test-fired an intercontinental
ballistic missile which she claimed could strike anywhere on the US
mainland. This incidence intensified further the already tensed

situation in the Korean Peninsula.

In 2017, the US Federal Reserve has put up interest rate 3 times,
making a total rate increase of 0.75%. The interest rate is now
forecast to be raised another 3 times in 2018. This together with
the Fed’s shrinking of its balance sheet adds uncertainty to the
direction of global fund flow, which will affect on the global

economy and, in particular, the Hong Kong property market.

The Mainland has successfully concluded the 19th National
Congress and has a new Politburo for the next five years. The
global impact of the economic policies announced therein needs
to be taken seriously. “The Belt and the Road”, in particular, will
broaden the already wide horizon of the Mainland economy and
will enable her to participate more closely to the International
economic order. In 2017, Mainland China has reversed, for the first
time since 2011, her downward growth trend. The GDP has broken
through the RMBB8O trillion mark, an annual increase of 6.9%. The
properties prices have remained high. In spite of the effort made
the Government to cool the residential sector (through purchases
and price restrictions), the total residential property sales has

increased by 11.3%.

REN-_Z—tF=AERMBBEERH - &
REFENRERR RFRBARS BE
T ARBENMBERER D T B FREEK
VFER - ERBEBEHIRELY -

IEE+— AT NB X —RETMEREERR -

SRBEIEEEALLSE SUMLEE
ERBEAFL AR REEEREER
mYE -

BMERE_T—tFME=X 2FHNS
0.75% ' WHEHBAFHESMNE=ZR  RE
mREBEREERBER(HER]  KRXES
MEERATEENE  URREERIIZRS
BETHIRZEMS -

FEAERNBRATIAKN  BERRAFH
HEe HEBEBREMREERRTRE - L
HRE[—&—K| SHELERRAEAS
FAHFRARER  FERAHTREERR -
—E 4 FPEKEERER FAMNES
BREEAERBARBNTEET  2F
HR69%  EePRELERRE _T——F
RERBETTRE BERECEBEA - Fi
EEERD - AT BEBUTEREUE i (FRAE -
BRE) REFHEMSMEA  2FEEHEN
BTG RN.3% °
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In 2017, Hong Kong SAR has a new Government. Under the new
SAR Chief Executive, the hitherto tensed political atmosphere has
appeared to be relaxing. The Hong Kong economy has continued
to improve driven by the global economic recovery. Both the stock
and the properties market boomed with each breaking its record
high, with public land auction prices achieving a new historical

record.

BUSINESS RESULTS
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded profit
of HK$773.8 million, it represents an increase of 65% when

comparing with the year of 2016.

The Board pf Directors has proposed to recommend at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 15 May 2018,
the payment of a final cash dividend of HK$0.42 per share.
Together with the interim cash dividend of HK$0.18 per share paid
on 29 September 2017, the total cash dividend amounted to
HK$0.60 per share for the year 2017. It represented an increase of
28% compared with the total cash dividend of HK$0.47 per share
for the year of 2016.

A detailed business review and analyses are to be found in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this Annual

Report.

—ELFEARRERNRE  FEREE
BARES UMY RABPEMN - 2IREHE
EHEZHE THEELERERLT - K
MEWBE - YRIELHS - BBk
Nigtert - BEMERRIELHS -

EEER
BHE-_ZT—+tF+-A=T—HLEFE &
L E 1S5 MK B 773,800,000 7T * =
T—RFLEFHF65% °

BN T /\FRAATHEBRITZE
EHQ%%EK@ EBRRERPEEREE

REMO42TL BRR =T —tF L A
_+j1EIE/JE§>"ZEFHHIEiH§ FER 018
T ZELFEZREREEHRERE
#0607 BT —"NFREWEFRABE
0.47 JTAEELIE AN 28% °

EAFRZ[ERBZARmEON I —BZA -
REFENEFLBEEI
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT XEHEE

BUSINESS PREVIEW AND OUTLOOK OF 2018

After years of steady growth in profit, the Group, with a substantial
net cash balance, is in a strong financial position. However, we will
continue to uphold its prudent approach and at the same time
actively seek new business opportunity. Property investment and
development remains our core business. We will continue to keep
our focus and will search world-wide for investment opportunities.
In November 2017, the Group has invested through a 50% equity
participation in a joint-venture company in two warehouse

properties in Japan.

In the USA, we expect the passing of the Tax Reform Bill will bring
positive stimulus to the US economy, and the global economy
continues to recover. The market will focus on strength of the US
dollar and the direction of global fund flow. The shrinking of the
balance sheet by the Federal Reserve and its interest rate policy
will bring uncertainty to the market. Their impact on the Hong

Kong Property market needs cautious assessment.

Moreover, since January of this year, President Trump has imposed
a series of tariffs on certain trade items, and they may adversely
affect the world economy. We will continue to monitor closely the

unfolding of the forthcoming events.

The Brexit negotiation is bringing a long period of uncertainty to
Britain and EU and their economies will be affected. On the other
side of the globe the nuclear missile testings by the North Korea

will continue to destabilize the world.

EBNER-FS-/N\EFRE
RBZFREMNGANER  FEHEERER
Befe BHIROREE - B2 - RIS HE
BRERRERNZEZDES  RIRERT
ERSHHEE - HEREMYERRDZ
AEBHTEXEY HARMBRER B
BN IMERENER  BEEES
REEASHKEE R_FT—tF+— 8
REBE R - R QB S50%RHE - AL QA
AREMBELN BRNEE

XERBUERBB  BHXBELETRER
RIg - BHEHEEERSBERTE X
[EEREERMESRANEESRINESR -
XEBARERED (BRGNS BHE
AHGHERTIEERNE  HRABEHHEE
LREFSEIRILEE -

BAN - BAFE— AR - BB RGE R
LEZEEBRT —RIER  BEHBHE
EERAENEE ARESTUEEER
R -

REREEEER  BHRSHE-B2RAT
BB FERBRBBENEERE - 5
—hH HEAORASERARBEEFTED
BERE -
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT XEHEE

The US Tax Reform may attract fund flowing to the US and may
have an adverse effect on sentiment of investing in Mainland China
and in other countries. On the other hand, the Belt and Road
Initiative and the forthcoming development of the Guangdong —
Hong Kong — Macau Bay Area will bring about a new economic
momentum to the Mainland, the Asia region and the rest of the
world. They together with the forthcoming opening of the Hong
Kong — Zuhai — Macau Bridge and the Guangzhou — Shenzhen —

Hong Kong Express Rail Link will add new impetus to the Hong

Kong economy.
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Phase 1 The Grand Riviera, Foshan #LUZ2#%iM7EE % —H
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Our new Chief Executive and Financial Secretary of the SAR have
proposed a series of policies to bring benefits to the people of
Hong Kong, such as adjusting the tax bands and marginal tax
rates, and a comprehensive promotion of Innovation and
Technology development etc. We are, therefore, expecting a

steady growth in the Hong Kong economy.
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CONDOLENCES AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Our past Chairman Dr. Liu Lit Mo regrettably passed away in mid
July last year. Dr. Liu had been the Managing Director of the Group
for over forty years. He has made important contributions to the
stability and development of the Group. We send our deepest

condolences to his family.

| would like to express my heartfelt thanks to stakeholders and
shareholders for their continued trust and support, to all my fellow
directors for their wise stewardship, and to our senior management

and staff for their commitment and dedication.

Liu Lit Chi

Chairman, Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer

7 March 2018
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Chong H’mg Finance Center

BTG

Chong Hing Finance Center, Shanghai J:Eﬁﬂﬁﬁmq?'u

The Board of Directors of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the BEE|EP¥EAREATEEZe (B2 |)BH
“Board”) has pleasure in presenting to the shareholders its annual &% — g—tﬁﬂ—:ﬂ =t+—H JJ:$FEZ$
report together with the audited financial statements for the year EREENKEBZ 2B EHEK - RAIZE75
ended 31 December 2017. ﬁﬁiﬁfé\%ﬁ; o

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW TEXBREGOR

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the ZAATEREWBAR([ANER]) 2 EEEK
“Group”) are property investment, property development and AYEKE  YEZRELEEER KX 2
investment holding. The principal activities of the principal MEBATIERAECEX 2 TELKE 9 RIS
subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in notes 39 and 18 to the RSB EANTEIONLISEA °

N
o

consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Further discussion and analysis of the Group's activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“Companies Ordinance”), including a fair review of
the business and a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the
financial year 2017, and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
“Five-Year Financial Summary”, “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Summary of Financial Highlights”, “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” sections of

the Annual Report. The above sections form part of this report.

RESULTS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs at that date are

set out on pages 137 to 232 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim cash dividend of HK$0.18 per share was paid to
shareholders on 29 September 2017. The Board recommends a
final cash dividend of HK$0.42 per share, making a total cash
dividend of HK$0.60 per share for the year.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the movements
in reserves of the Company during the year are set out in note 36

to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2017 comprised the accumulated profits of

HK$7,186,558,000 (2016: HK$5,219,409,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Movements in investment properties during the year are set out in

note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANERARBIRE B A BRG] ([ 2 BRG] IR 5
PIREMBIINAEEERBIREDN - B

BREKOQIAOE  AEEEHNEERAR
K N BA A = F it —tFMBRFE

RERBEYREASENEREMHFHE
AR AR B ER R KE RN ERTT A

BV AI2BEHRA TEFMBRHE] T
FHREE] VBRE [BEEEBZIWK
DM UARTEEEARSE] - ALSHE

PR AR & — =B 1D

%%&%ﬁ%ﬂ
AEEBE-_T—+HF+-_A=+—HLFE
B S4B R AN A B BRI &R B PR B R FE RS AR T
RANFRE1Z7E232E °

B8

FHR R EFREBOIBITERZZE—+
FANAZTNBIRE -EZSRFZRERS
HEeREFRBEE042TL  2FAFTEIRSE
ReREEGRAEE 0.607T °

it
Z’-‘Eﬁ ﬁﬁlfuﬁfﬁz """"" @Jniﬁljﬁ/\\ﬂ'\m EJ/\?;L
BEE  AEEALFEBEZ BBHIING

BTSRRI TR I6THNA -

R-BE—tFE+-_A=+—H " ' XARAK
FTREAZEHERL2EZBEZMNBK
7186,558000m( = T — RN F: B K
5,219,409,0007¢) °
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are

set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE

Movements in properties under development/properties under
development for sale/properties held for sale during the year are

set out in notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 27

to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 May 2012, which replaced the
previous share option scheme, for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees, and will
expire on 8 May 2022. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant share
options to outside eligible third parties at the discretion of the

Board.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any individual is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s

shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of
the share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company, and
will not be less than the higher of the nominal value of the
Company’s share on the date of grant, the average closing price of
the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant, or the closing price of the shares on the date of

grant.

No options have been granted under the above mentioned scheme

since the Scheme was adopted.

ME BERRE
AEEDE  BREREES
HBEIEEI6THR -

BRPUE FHEERDPHE &
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SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars relating to the subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the

consolidated financial statements respectively.

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED
Details of bank loans and other borrowings repayable within five
years are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Group’s interest capitalised during the year amounted to

HK$19,033,000 (2016: HK$36,670,000).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report are shown on page 102 of this annual report.

The term of office of each director, who has been longest in office,
shall retire by rotation and offer themselves for re-election in

accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 105 and 97 of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Mr. Lee Wai Hung, Dr.
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses and Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric shall retire at
the conclusion of the AGM. The Company intends to comply with
code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, which provides, among other
things, that every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement at least once every three
years. Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Mr. Lee Wai Hung, Dr. Cheng Mo
Chi, Moses and Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric, being eligible, will offer

themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The biographical details of directors and senior management are

set out on pages 107 to 115.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independent pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and the
Company considered all Independent Non-executive Directors are

independent.
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COMPLIANCE OF THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

All directors have confirmed that they complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing

Rules throughout the review period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests of the directors and the
Chief Executive Officer in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)) which have been notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or have been
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or have been notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers were as follows:

INTERESTS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

THE COMPANY

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

BFLTARNESETESFXINE
<Al

REEHE AAESHRANREC BT LN
RAMSIOME 2 EMAREFETESFR
SHPRESTRIZ HBTE °

\

ESHEFXRATIRHEEBEZERAZR
¥

R-T—+HF+-_A=+—A ' BERTK
BERARRFIREAAEEZE (EERIFHF LB
ERPIEXVE) 2 iRH - HEARG RESHF
BERBEFRBAEBROIEXVEE7TRES
PBEHERABARBERERSAARLR
BB PT)) 2 % - IRBEEFRBAER
PIEIS2EBRALRRRMFEEE LM 22
@ KRB EMBITAESETESRRSZ
BETABMEARNA R RBRZATZERIAT

HEAAERHEBE
R 43 b B4 4 21

# 7% E B9 Bx 4 % 48 6

P /N
BRIEEEBRAR

NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES HELD E & ERRAE R

Family interests

Total interests

(interests of spouse as approximate %
Personal interests or child under 18) Corporate interests of the relevant
(held as RikER (interests of controlled issued share capital
Long/short beneficial owner) (EB=R18 5% corporation) Ay
Name of director position BAER ATFF%Z AT Total interests BRITRE
Espg #E/ KR (BREE) ZR) (ZEHARZER) ol £ BREIE
Mr. Liu Lit Chi Long 24,000 = 195,339,000 195,363,000 51.59%
notes 1 and 2
BB f8 foesand2
(1 R2)
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston Long 2,570,000 - - 2,570,000 0.67%
BerEE e
Dr. Liu Lit Chung Long - - 132,326,710 132,326,710 34.95%
BRBELE a8 e
()
notes: st -
1 132,326,710 shares in the Company are beneficially held by Liu's Holdings 1: Bzl %DSEEE&}EE'JFS BREABEKEERERA

Limited, of which Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung are amongst its
shareholders. The above numbers of shares are duplicated under the
corporate interests for each of these directors.

2: Alba Holdings Limited, of which Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his associates are
shareholders, beneficially holds 63,012,290 shares in the Company, and
thus is included in the corporate interests of Mr. Liu Lit Chi.

2 PBREBERAREBMBALIREES

RIZBRE  ZARAREZBEEARARBRG
132,326,710 % - RIERE  ERESFTZ T2
AREFEAANEE -

BARA
Al Z R %A a E*;E NGl S0
63&2%0& WEHERMEBEZIEEERTZ
NElEmEEA
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to the Company, the
following persons (other than the directors or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
Shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general

meetings of any other member of the Group:

FERREHEMALTOER

R-TB—tF+-_A=1+—8 " BAREMR
o TIHAL(RRRESHITHRAREIN)
KRB 2 BAn MABRE D T # A RIZE
NEABGOIEXVEE2REINIZREAR
FMARBWEZREIAR - HEEKKEE
BEMNEEABRL TR ARBEEMEMKE
NEBRERARE EREZ EAERIRAEES%
S A £ fEas

Name of substantial shareholder Long/short position Capacity No. of ordinary share held % of the issued share capital
TERRER #E/ %R L) FEEBRROEE HERTREBAL
Liu's Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 132,326,710 34.95%
BEREEERAR o) ERBEAA (note 1)

(GERD)
Alba Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 63,012,290 16.64%
FEEEERAR ®E ERFEA (note 2)

(Fiz£2)

notes: |}ﬁ 2

1. Liu’s Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is
owned by, amongst others, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung. Such
corporate interests are also disclosed in the sub-section under “Directors’
interests in Share Capital of the Company and its Associated
Corporations.”

2. Alba Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is
owned by Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his associates. Such corporate interests are
also disclosed in the sub-section under “Directors’ interests in Share
Capital of the Company and its Associated Corporations.”

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by
any person (other than the directors or Chief Executives Officer of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company of 5% or more as at 31
December 2017 which were required to be disclosed to the
Company under Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.

1. BEREEAR AR TINBBEMAKL ZHA

AR EAANBDEERNE L ERBRS®E
£ RERRERNEREIBAIESE
ANARREBHEBES 2 RAEZ] D&
WE -

2. EELEEERA TT&)‘?AE}%E\EH?WZEZM/\
A7) HRlEER *”%E&E%ﬁ%ﬁ}\i Bl
BA - ZEAAERSTER LN EE fi%
EARBIREARE B RS 2 RAER | H
IR EE °

Br b T EESN - WRBEM AL (RRARE

SHITHAAHBRIN) B EBERE H RS 5
EXVEHHR_Z—+F+_A=+—HB&FE
AR E) 5% KA E 2 IR RABRAMR (D 2 R =k
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, “Related Party Disclosures”, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had, whether directly or indirectly, a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not terminable within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In January 2016, the Company entered into a lease agreement with
the landlord, a company wholly owned by Dr. Liu Lit Mo, former
Chairman, and his spouse. The Company leased the property at a
monthly rent of HK$456,000 with effect from 1 January 2016 for a
term of two years. The lease agreement had been terminated upon
Dr. Liu Lit Mo passed away in July 2017. For the year ended 31
December 2017, the aggregate rent paid by the Company
amounted to HK$3,192,000.

In March 2016, the Company entered into a lease agreement with
Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a Non-executive Director. The Company leased
the property for a monthly rent of HK$75,000 for a term of two
years commencing from 1 March 2016 and the lease was renewed
with the same term, effective from 1 March 2018, for another two
yvears ending on 29 February 2020. For the year ended 31
December 2017, the aggregate rent paid by the Company
amounted to HK$900,000.

EFESHER
BRAREMBHRRMEFEI7TEAN BB A LR
BEE|FAZIN - RFEEBRRFEEAER
RE - ARBAIREFVEERAMEELRR
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In March 2011, the Company entered into a service agreement with
K.A. Kho & Associates for architectural and consultancy services
provided to the Company. Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher, a Non-
executive Director, is the sole director and the sole shareholder of
K.A. Kho & Associates. In addition, a supplemental agreement with
aggregate service fee of HK$12,900,000 was signed in February
2016. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the service fee paid
by the Company amounted to HK$924,000 and the aggregate
service fee paid and payable by the Company amounted to

HK$12,173,000 as at 31 December 2017.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued the Independent
Assurance Report in respect of the continuing connected
transactions, details of which are also disclosed by the Group in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, in accordance

with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of such report has
been provided by the Company to Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the directors who do not have any interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in the above transactions, the
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of business of

the Group on normal commmercial terms.

RIE——%=f FoLRIMEEEARQT
BRI — I RBWE - SARRRMEERA
R RY - ARBZIERITERFRRL

ENHeRAMEZE—FERME—RRE -
F—HABBER T —~FE_AF:] RH
BRE J#@%MQ%OOOOE BHE_—Z

—+tE+-A=+—BLEE" LN/A?J,\EZ
NEMEBEI24000L R-_TE—+F
+-A=+—8" zﬁ@aﬂaﬁmﬁﬁa@ﬂﬁ%
B 18%8512,173,000 8 T

BREEEGAMASRMcBELEERRBE
AI5 3000 5% [ IFE XA BHE L M B ER &
& IIE] &%%%ﬂﬁ%%l%MO%ﬁ [RIBEED
b T AR B A A B R 5 B RO A BE B
] $Qﬂﬁ§&ﬁﬁﬂ?§ﬁ%%ﬁ$%%%§@%
BRIRAEUBE - ZHEAERBETR EWR
AIF14AS6 RBEHFEBER 5 2 B IRE
BE ABEERAREGAMBERRW TS
I7E - ARFEHEBARBEMBERNEE
B2 PR o

ETHLRRZUBEERKFAENGELES
RAELARZHBAEELEER ALK
— R R IRFOE

HEAT ©



MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers and the Group’s turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers were both less than 30%. None of
the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Board owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest

suppliers or customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company and its
subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

shares in the Company.

SHAREHOLDINGS INFORMATION
TOP 10 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
According to the register of members of the Company as at 31

December 2017, the top 10 largest shareholders are as follows:

TEEFRRMED

REERN  AEEZAAAREEAEEASE
EREIAEADZ=1T MAKEZAMAAX
BEPHREARAEEEERBIRAENZ=T &
NRAZEEREABBALHEMRR(EES
MERBARBCETRABD ZASEIAL)
BEEEZOARERRET P E#a -

BE HElEDORG
i =

ARAREMBARLEREE  HEXED
ERARRZ -
FrixEH

RIREREMI10RE
REARFRRECTMHOERN  R-T—1tF
ToA=+T— BAERERSMIOMKIRAT

Number of shares held %

Name of shareholder RRERH FERGHE ARk

1, HKSCC Nominees Limited BRPREE (REA)BRA 149,791,920 39.57
2. Chong Hing (Nominees) Limited AlE (RE)BRAR 141,275,288 37.32
& Alba Holdings Limited EFERERRAA 36,000,222 9.24
4. BTMU Nominees (HK) Limited BTMU Nominees (HK) Limited 10,000,000 2.64
. Win Ever (Nominees) Limited Win Ever (Nominegs) Limited 8,000,000 211
6. Wragg Limited Wragg Limited 4,472,000 118
7. Leung Hok Pang Leung Hok Pang 3,848,000 1.02
8. Cheng Kee Man Cheng Kee Man 3,160,000 083
9. Cheng Kee Hong Cheng Kee Hong 3,100,000 0.82
10.  On Luk Tong Limited On Luk Tong Limited 1,090,000 0.29
Total &3 359,737,430 95.02
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LOCATION OF SHAREHOLDERS
According to the register of members of the Company as at 31

December 2017, the location of shareholders are as follows:

B 3R 53
BERAAFRRECLMOER  R-FT—+t
FTA=T—BRRESMBWT :

Number of shares held %
Location of shareholders BRI BERRPEE B
Hong Kong ] 378,521,140 99.9835
China and South East Asia FERRmEE 36,060 0.0095
Europe B 800 0.0002
US and Canada ZERMEXR 16,860 0.0045
Others Hith 8,580 0.0023
Total T 378,583,440 100

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT EPZABFHRE

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout

the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare the
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at the end of the financial year and of their respective profit or
loss for the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements,
the directors are required to select suitable accounting policies
and apply them on a consistent basis, making judgements and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable; state the reasons
for any significant departure from accounting standards; prepare
the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is not
appropriate to presume that the Company and the Group will

continue in business for the foreseeable future.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and of the
Group and taking reasonable steps for the prevention and

detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Executive Management Committee was established on 30
October 2014. The current members of the committee comprised
of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Mr. Liu Kwun Shing,
Christopher and Mr. Lee Wai Hung. Based on the duly approved
terms of reference by the Board, the committee is authorised to
discuss, formulate policies and make decisions on all matters
relating to the daily management and operations of the Company
and its subsidiaries. It also helps to discuss significant daily
operational issues, review business performance and take prompt
corrective actions as appropriate. The Board believes that the
function of committee could help to relieve the Board of detailed
review of information and to increase the operational efficiency

among different departments.

Detailed terms of reference could be seen at the Company’s

website.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee report is shown on pages 37 to 38. The principal
duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the internal controls
and the financial reporting requirements of the Group. The Audit
Committee meeting will normally hold twice in each financial year
immediately before the Board meeting for approving the interim
and final results. The committee is satisfied with the Company’s

internal control procedures and the financial reporting disclosures.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Nomination Committee report is shown on page 39. The report
showed the main duty and the work performed by the committee

during the year of 2017

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Remuneration Committee report is shown on page 40. The report
showed the main duty and work performed by the committee

during the year of 2017.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company has substantially complied throughout the year
ended 31 December 2017 with those paragraphs of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,

with which it is required to report compliance.

Guidelines and procedures for corporate governance of the

Company are set out on pages 54 to 78.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged directors and officers liability
insurance for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against its directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance when this report prepared by the directors
is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies

Ordinance.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES
The names of all directors who have served on the Board of
Directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and

up to the date of this report are as follows:
Ms. Eva Liu

Mr. Luk Chi Chung

Ms. Cavior Liu

Mr. Pan Sze Yuen, Cecil

Ms. Yan Yuet Lam, Charmaine

Mr. Liu Kwun Bo, Darryl
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who have expressed
their willingness to continue in office. Accordingly, a resolution will
be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting to
reappoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the

Company.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

Liu Lit Chi

Chairman, Managing Director

and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 7 March 2018
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT B ZEEWREE

The Audit Committee is made up of three members, all of them are

Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.

The committee oversees the financial reporting system and
internal control procedures. In this process, management is
principally responsible for the preparation of group financial
statements including the selection of suitable accounting policies.
External auditors are responsible for auditing and attesting to
group financial statements and will report to the management of
the Company from time to time on any weakness in controls which
come to their attention. The Audit Committee oversees the
respective work of management and external auditors to ensure
the management has discharged its duty to have an effective

internal control procedures.
The Audit Committee had performed the works as follows:

1. To review the audited financial statements of the Company for

the year ended 31 December 2017;

2. To review the interim results of the Company for the six

months ended 30 June 2017;
3. To review and monitor the external auditors’ independence;
4. To review the system of internal control of the Company;

5. To review the audit plan and the engagement from external

auditors;

6. To make recommendation on the re-appointment of external

auditors; and

7. To review the sufficiency of manpower resources of account

and finance team of the Group in order to carry out the duties.

It was reported that no major internal control weakness was found
and all the recommendations previously suggested by auditors

were agreed and implemented by the management in 2017.

Based on these reviews and discussions, and the report of the
external auditors, the Audit Committee recommended to the
Board approval of the consolidated financial statements for the

year ended 31 December 2017 with the Auditor’'s Report thereon.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT B ZEEWREE

The Committee recommended to the Board that the shareholders
be asked to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the

Company’s external auditor for 2018.

Members of the Audit Committee
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Hong Kong, 6 March 2018
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT REZEEHREE

The Nomination Committee (“NC”) consists of five members.

The main duties of the committee are (i) to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy; (ii) to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become directors of the Company and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) to assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors of the Company; and (iv)
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of the directors and succession plan for directors, in
particular the chairman and chief executive of the Company.

The NC discharges its responsibilities by reference to the terms of
reference which set out their roles, responsibilities and duties. The
terms of reference were duly authorised by the Board.

In year 2017, the NC had reviewed and discussed the following
issues at its meetings:

1. To review the composition, size and structure of the Board of
the Company.

2. To review the attendance records of directors of the
Company.

3. To review the scope of responsibilities of directors of the
Company.

4. To review and confirm the independence of all the
Independent Non-executive Directors.

5. To review and amend as required from time to time the
Board diversity policies.

The NC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the meeting
are circulated to the Board for information.

The NC meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Nomination Committee
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Hong Kong, 6 March 2018
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT il Z &35

The Remuneration Committee ("RC”) consists of four members, a
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors of the

Company.

The main duties of the committee are to formulate the Company’s
remuneration policy as well as to determine and/or make
recommendation to the Board with regard to the structure of
remuneration packages for all directors and senior management.
When necessary and appropriate, the Chairman and Managing

Director are consulted on such issues.

The RC discharges its responsibilities by reference to the terms of
reference which set out their roles, responsibilities and duties. The

terms of reference were duly authorised by the Board.

The RC, having consulted with the Chairman of the Board, had

reviewed and discussed the following issues at its meeting:

1. To review the Company’s policy, structure and the
remunerations packages for all directors and senior

management;

2. To determine and/or make recommendation to the Board
regarding the Directors’ fees and other allowance for the year

2018; and.

3. To review and approve the annual performance bonus and its

policy.

The RC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the meeting

are circulated to the Board for information.

The RC meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Remuneration Committee
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Hong Kong, 6 March 2018
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B #% =

ve)

2017 2016 =
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B g

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded audited
consolidated profit of approximately HK$773.8 million, comparing
to that of 2016 amounted to approximately HK$468.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately 65%. The net changes
were mainly due to the profits recognition from the sale of Foshan
residential project (Phase 3) and the increase in fair value of

investment properties.

Revenue mainly referred to the revenues generated from property
investment, property development, property management,

treasury investment, trading & manufacturing and hotel operation.

Other income referred to various miscellaneous income other than

the main revenue.

Other gains and losses mainly comprised of gain on changes in fair
value of investment properties, net exchange gains, impairment
loss recognised in respect of available-for-sale investments and

impairment loss recognised in respect of other receivables.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

OVERALL RENTAL REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded gross
rental revenue of approximately HK$365.6 million, increased by
approximately HK$4.5 million from approximately of HK$361.1

million in 2016, slightly increase of 1%.

OVERALL OCCUPANCIES
The Group’s overall occupancy from major investment properties

continued to maintain at 91.6% as at 31 December 2017.
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Phase 4 The Grand Riviera, Foshan sales events
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HK PROPERTIES

CHONG HING SQUARE

Chong Hing Square, located at 601 Nathan Road Mongkok, is a
20-storey ginza-type retail/commercial development offers over
182,000 square feet of retail and commercial space. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, Chong Hing Square generated rental
revenue of approximately HK$122.2 million with occupancy of
100% as at 31 December 2017. As the renovation work has been
completed in 2017, overall image and value of the building was
enhanced. This renovation enables the building to obtain a good
rental rates for both new leases (such as Xiaomi and Pricerite) and
existing leases renewals (such as Aeon). Total renovation cost was
amounted to approximately of HK$64 million and all expenditures

are funded by internal resources.

CHONG HING BANK CENTRE

Chong Hing Bank Centre, located at 24 Des Voeux Road Central, is
a 26-storey Grade A office building. Having retained several floors
for group’s use, the office building was leased to Chong Hing Bank
Limited for 5 years fixed tenancy. For the year ended 31 December
2017, a total of approximately HK$67.9 million rental revenue was

derived from this building.

CHONG YIP CENTRE

Chong Yip Centre is located at 402-404 Des Voeux Road West. It
provides over 54,000 square feet of retail and commercial space.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, this retail and commercial
shopping center generated rental revenue of approximately
HK$20.9 million, slightly decreased by 1.4% when comparing to
that of 2016. The occupancy was decreased to 71% as at 31
December 2017. The management has been intensively studying
different renovation proposals to upgrade this building for the

purpose of gaining better rental return.

FAIRVIEW COURT

Fairview Court is located at 94 Repulse Bay Road. The group owns
5 residential units, each of areas over 4,100 square feet, luxury
apartment on a low-rise building. For the year ended 31 December
2017, Fairview Court recorded rental revenue of approximately

HK$3.1 million with T00% occupancy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &

PRC PROPERTIES

CHONG HING FINANCE CENTER, SHANGHAI

The Group’s mainland flagship property located at 288 Nanjing
Road West in Huang Pu District of Shanghai is a 36-storey Grade
A commercial building which commands a strategic location and
enviable view over The People’s Square just across the street. With
a total floor area of over 516,000 square feet of office and
commercial spaces and 198 carparks, this property was
approximately 86% let in terms of office space and 100% let in
terms of retail space as at year ended. For the year ended 3]
December 2017, this office building generated rental revenue of

approximately HK$144.3 million, representing an increase of 2%.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

HONG KONG

ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel & Serviced Residences

The previous office building (formerly known as Western Harbour
Center), located at 181-183 Connaught Road West, was under
construction to convert into a 183-room hotel and serviced
residences. Construction work came to the final stage and the
occupation permit was scheduled to be obtained in the first half of
2018. Total renovation costs including professional fee amounted
to approximately of HK$499 million and all expenditures are

funded by internal resources.

Tai Po, New Territories
The Group had acquired a plot of land with 262,000 square feet in
Tai Po district, New Territories. The management has initiated the

studies for the future development of this agriculture land.

PRC

The Grand Riviera, Foshan

This comprehensive development situated at 1 Guilong Road,
Luocun in the Nanhai District of Foshan, is conveniently located
within half an hour’s drive from the Foshan financial district and

within 5 minutes’ drive from the new Foshan West Station.

Development Status

The Foshan residential project is a comprehensive development
and it is being developed by phases. As at today, Phase 1, 2 and 3
were completed. For Phase 4, construction already commenced in

the third quarter of 2016 and is scheduled to be completed in 2018.
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Financial and Sale results

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded sale
revenue of approximately HK$1,694.5 million, increased by
approximately HK$1,206.1 million from HK$488.4 million in 2016,
representing an increase of 247%. This is due to the revenue and

profit recognition for The Grand Riviera Phase 3.

The Grand Riviera, Foshan (Phase 1)

As at 7 March 2018, a total of 785 residential units (representing
93% of the total units) and 393 car parking units (representing 35%
of the total units) were successfully sold generating total sale
proceeds of approximately RMB711.8 million and RMB55.2 million,

respectively.

The Grand Riviera, Foshan (Phase 2 and 3)

As at 7 March 2018, all 1,542 residential units and 477 car parking
units (representing 43% of the total units for sale) of Phase 2 were
successfully sold returning total sale proceeds of approximately

RMB932.3 million and RMB68.9 million, respectively.

For Phase 3, all 1,498 residential units were successfully sold out
returning sale proceeds of approximately RMB1,130.8 million. As
the construction of Phase 3 was completed on schedule, the flats
have been started to handover to the buyers since October 2017,
and thus the sale results of Phase 3 were recognized in the fourth

quarter of 2017.

The Grand Riviera, Foshan (Phase 4)

For Phase 4 development, it constructed 11 blocks of 14-storey
residential flats above the ground. It provides 1,377 residential units
with developable areas over 156,000 square metres. Including the
retail and commercial areas of approximately 5,900 square metres,
other amenities areas of approximately 7,700 square metres and
1,227 car parking spaces mainly built at the basement level, the
total developable areas of Phase 4 is over 216,000 square metres.
For the size of residential units, it provided four typical sizes with
areas of 90, 100, 130 and 140 square metres. Construction work

has commenced since the third quarter of 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &

As at 7 March 2018, 924 residential units (representing 97% of the
total units put up for pre-sale) were successfully sold, generating

total sale proceeds of approximately RMB1,179.7 million.

If all of the remaining (unsold) properties including residential
units, retail shops and car parks, could be sold under the current
market situation, it is estimated that the Group would receive

further total sale proceeds of approximately HK$2 billion.

BUDGET HOTEL PROJECT

Since 2008, the Group started to operate budget hotel business in
Shanghai, Beijing and Guangzhou. All of these budget hotels are
managed by and under the brand name of Hanting. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, hotel revenue decreased by 35% from
approximately of HK$17 million in 2016 to approximately HK$11
million in 2017. Due to the restructuring of the business strategy,
the Group had sold the budgeted hotels at Shanghai and Beijing in

2016, only the hotel in Guangzhou remains in operation.

INVESTMENT IN JAPAN WAREHOUSES

In November 2017, the Group acquired 50% of the issued share
capital of a company which in turn beneficially owned two
warehouses in Japan. The management regarded the investment
would bring the Group’s a stable rental return together with a long
term appreciation of the properties given the good management
team, quality of tenants and the fast growing logistic business
relating to 2020 Tokyo Olympic. Total investment for this project

amounted to HK$191 million.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s shareholders’ funds increased from approximately
HK$10,923.9 million as at 31 December 2016 to approximately
HK$11,799.7 million as at 31 December 2017, representing a net
increase of approximately HK$875.8 million. The increase in
shareholders’ funds was attributed to (a) profit attributable to the
owners of the Group of approximately HK$744.9 million; (b) net
increase of investment revaluation reserve and exchange reserve
totaling approximately HK$312.6 million and (c) dividend paid
approximately HK$181.7 million.
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FINANCE AND TREASURY OPERATIONS

NET CASH BALANCE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s net cash balance (being cash
and deposits less borrowings) stood at approximately HK$1,282.1
million, increased by approximately HK$169.8 million from
approximately HK$1,112.3 million in 2016, representing an increase

of 15.3%.

The increase of net cash balance mainly related to the sale of The
Grand Riviera, Foshan residential project. For the year of 2017, the
group has received cash sale proceeds of approximately

HK$1,356.9 million from this project.

In the years ahead, the Group’s major capital expenditures will be
incurred for the Foshan residential project, hotel redevelopment
project, and the renovation of Chong Yip Centre. The management
will ensure all these capital expenditures within the budget and do

not undermine the company’s working capital.

The management expected that the Group’s cash balances could
be increased further by the sale of The Grand Riviera, Foshan
residential project, and the stable rental revenue generated from

different rental properties.

BANKING FACILITIES

Most of the banking facilities as at 31 December 2017 were
committed banking facilities. In managing the debt portfolio, the
Group has endeavored to maintain diversified sources of funding.
Currently, the major source of financing is still coming from the
banking sector, in which the Group has bilateral banking facilities
with various banks, most of which have established long
relationship with the Group. The management will consider to
widen the funding source from capital market if both the market

conditions and terms are favorable to the Company.

The management will closely monitor the company’s funding
position, internal funding and cheaper external funding will be used

for coming development project.
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LIQUIDITY RISK AND CASH BALANCES

It is the Group’s financial policy to maintain positive cash balance
and high liquidity. To maintain sufficient liquidity will not only help
the Group to fulfill all short term payment obligations but also to

improve the Group’s working capital.

Liquidity mainly comes from recurring rental income of various
investment properties, cash sale proceeds from various completed
and uncompleted development projects and committed banking
facilities. Liquidity risk of the Group is low and it has been further

reduced by early refinancing and improvement of cash flow.

LOAN MATURITY ANALYSIS

Liguidity risk could also be reduced by extending the loan tenors.
The Group’s debt maturity portfolio is spread out over a medium
term, with 28% of debts becoming due within 1 year, and 72% of
debts becoming due within 1-2 years respectively. It was the fact
that the Group’s liquidity and cash flow position in PRC was
improved substantially following the successful sale of Grand
Riviera, Foshan. Therefore, the construction loan was no need to

renew or extend upon maturity.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In managing interest rate and foreign exchange exposures, the
Group may use certain derivative instruments such as interest rate
sSwaps, Cross currency swaps, forward rate agreements and foreign
exchange contracts. It is the Group’s policy to allow using
derivatives as hedging purposes only. With respect to the
counterparty risk of the derivatives, the Group transacts only with

financial institutions with strong investment-grade ratings.

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

The volatility and uncertainty of the movement of interest rate
may result in a potential negative impact to the Group’s financial
position. Given that, the management will actively involve and
review the movement of interest rate so as to minimize the

financial impact.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

It is the Group’s policy to minimize mismatch in currency and not
to speculate in currency movement. As at year ended 31 December
2017, other foreign exchange exposures related to some major
investments in Shanghai, Foshan and Japan projects which
altogether amounted to the equivalent of about HK$6,420.8 million
or 44.2% of the Group’s total assets.
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DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

During the year, the Group has entered derivative transactions
with bank in order to hedge a new investment in Japan. The
foreign exchange risk exposure has been reduced by entering
Cross Currency Swap transaction for the purpose of matching the
Japanese assets with Yen borrowings. Besides, in order to
minimize the exchange rate risk effects of cash inflow, the
Japanese yen dividend receivable have been hedged by Single
Rate Forward. The management keep closely monitoring these
foreign exchange exposures by implementing different appropriate

measures on a timely and effective manner.

EMPLOYEE AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a workforce of 464
(31 December 2016: 423). Staff cost for the year include salaries,
bonuses and allowances, were approximately HK$90.8 million.

(2016: HK$87.5 million).

The Group’s remuneration policy, having been advised and
determined by the Remuneration Committee, will ensure that the
pay levels of its employee are reasonable and competitive in the
market and their total rewards including basic salary and bonus
system are linked with their performance. The members and work

done of Remuneration Committee are shown on page 40.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Company

has substantially complied with the Provisions of the Corporate

Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code” or the

“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of Listing Rules.

GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES FOR CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY
(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CHART

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of

corporate governance for the purpose of enhancing long term

shareholders value. The corporate governance chart adopted by

the Company could be referred to Liu Chong Hing Investment

Limited Simplified Organisation Chart on page 36.

(B) DIRECTORS

m

THE BOARD: RESPONSIBILITY FOR LEADERSHIP
AND CONTROL OF THE COMPANY

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leadership
and supervision of the senior management for the purpose of
creating long term shareholders value and producing a

sustainable growth and successful business.

The principal tasks of the Board are to set objective,
formulate strategies and to monitor the operating and

financial performance.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective

risk management and internal control systems.

The Board also oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems, and management should provide a
confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these

systems.

Duties of the Board include approving interim reports and
annual reports, announcements and press release of interim
and final results, setting the dividend policy, and approving
the issue, allotment or disposal or grant of options in respect

of unissued new shares of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR: CLEAR
DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES
The Company has clear and distinct division of responsibilities

between the Chariman and Managing director.

Mr. Liu Lit Chi, the Chairman of the Board, provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership
of the Board. The Managing Director is responsible for the
Company’s business, daily management and operations

generally.

Managing Director assumes overall responsibility for Group’s
operation and performance by delegating duties to different
Executive Directors and senior management to achieve
targeted objectives. The Board gives clear directions to
management as to their powers of management,

circumstance in which the management should make report.

However, immediate following the deceased of former
Chairman Dr. Liu Lit Mo and during the second half year of
2017, the role of Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company has not been segregated as required by the code
provision A.2.1 of the Code. The Board considers this
arrangement is in the best interest of the Company that by
nature of the Group’s business which requires considerable
market expertise and Mr. Liu Lit Chi, with his profound
expertise in the property and banking industry, shall continue

in his dual capacity as the Chairman and Managing Director.

BOARD COMPOSITION: BALANCE AND
INDEPENDENCE

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors, two
Non-executive Directors and five Independent Non-executive
Directors of the full Board. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the Board met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least one-third

of the Board should be Independent Non-executive Directors.

The appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors
strictly adheres to the guidelines for assessing independence
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
received written confirmation of their independence from

each of the Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Board considers that the five Independent Non-executive
Directors are free from any business or other relationship
which might interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgment and each of Independent Non-executive Directors

brings their own relevant expertise to the Board.

The presence of all Independent Non-executive Directors
could ensure that the Board functions effectively and

independently.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are also the
committee members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee. In short, these committees have

Independent Non- executive Directors.

In addition, the Company has set up the Corporate
Governance Committee on 7 March 2012 comprising three
Executive Directors and two Independent Non-executive

Directors to perform the corporate governance duties.

The biographies of the directors appear on pages 107 to 115.
These demonstrate diversity of experience and calibre of the

Board in making management decisions.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for

directors.

Those directors who have been longest in office as at each
annual general meeting will retire from office and be

subjected to re- election.

For newly appointed directors, they are required to submit
themselves to shareholders for re-election to the Board at

the first annual general meeting following their appointment.

All directors have entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company and were appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election and retirement by rotation at least once every
three years in accordance with the Company’s Articles of

Association.

av)

ERRARBEUIFNTES U EL
MEBHEBBEEMA LT ERR LA
B SBEUFRTEFTERRELT 2
HREXRNBRGESS -

REBURTESTARREST LS
BN BILBLE o

BIUFATEETREESZZES  HdM
ZEg RAZBELEGEXELRZES
ZEB MEZ %EZBEZENHE
B IFITES -

AN ARRBR —F——F=HALHK

TLEEATES B ANTEER
MABYHRTEEMAR - AREIL
BEAME -

BEEVERHNEIO7TZRENSE » BR
BEZETRLR FEESA ED
R EERE o

FiE -EERESR

REAZBETEAENESTREREHN
RENERHEFEIHIRNESTSRELY
==

&%%EZ%%% BEBRREAFAS
REEE - WA HERE(E

MREEFANEZERERNERAEF
AELERREESAEEES -

BEEERARNRGIZEERMG - I
BRELH EARBAARERAA
ELB=FHEERT KX

IN °



Code provision A.4.2 stipulates that every director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Under the Article 105 of the Company’s articles of
association, all directors are subject to retirement by rotation
except the Managing Director who shall not be subject to
retirement by rotation under Articles 113 of the Company’s

articles of association.

However, for the purpose of enhancing better corporate
governance, the Board initiated a special resolution to be
passed on 2018 AGM (15 May 2018) for amending and
replacing entirely by a new article 113. If the resolution was
passed, a Managing Director shall be subject to retirement

under articles 105 and 106.

Details of the term of appointment of all Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are as

follows:

(i)  to perform such functions and exercise such powers as
are appropriate to your position as an Independent
Non- executive Directors or Non-executive Directors of

the Company;

(i)  to comply with all laws, rules and regulations applicable
to you as a director of the Company, including but not

limit to the Listing Rules; and

(iii) to notify the Board immediately upon the occurrence
of, or the directors becoming aware of, any matter

which may affect their independence.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee and Executive Management Committee are

available to review in the Company’s website.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS: GENERAL
DUTIES AND SHARE DEALINGS

The directors fully appreciate their role and duties as
directors with supportive commitment of creating a healthy

corporate governance culture.

On appointment, new directors will be given an introduction
to the Group’s major business activities, induction into their
responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory

requirements.

Throughout the year, all directors complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules regarding Securities Transactions by Directors

of Listed Issuers.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Code provision A.6.5 proposes that all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to

develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

All directors are well aware of the requirement of attending
continuous professional training for the year ending 31

December 2018.

(VIl) COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lee Wai Hung, the company secretary also an Executive
Director of the Company, is a full time employee of the Group
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The
company secretary reports to the Chairman and is
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman of
the Board or Executive Management Committee on
governance matters and also facilitates induction and
professional development of the directors. All directors have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary
to ensure that the Board procedures, all applicable law, rules
and regulations are followed. During the year, the company
secretary has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The
biography of Mr. Lee is set out in the section “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” in the annual

report.
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(C) BOARD PROCESS

M

MEETINGS: MATTERS RESERVED FOR FULL BOARD
DECISION AND GENERAL PROCEEDINGS

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate governance
and in compliance with the requirement as mentioned under
Appendix 14 — Corporate Governance Code, the Board has
performed to hold full Board meeting at least quarterly

during the year 2017.

The Executive Management Committee was established on
30 October 2014. The current members of the committee
comprised of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Mr. Liu
Kwun Shing, Christopher and Mr. Lee Wai Hung. Based on the
duly approved terms of reference by the Board, the

committee is authorised:

(1)  to discuss, formulate policies and make decisions on all
matters relating to the daily management and

operations of the Company and its subsidiaries;

(@3)

3

4

S

®

to discuss significant daily operational issues;

to review key business performance and take prompt

corrective actions as appropriate;

to discuss and formulate financial policy, including
review and presentation of final and interim results of
the Company to the Board, as well as make
recommendation of interim and/or final dividends or

other distributions to the Board;

to discuss business opportunities arising from changing
conditions so as to formulate policies to sustain the

growth of the Company; and

The Executive Management Committee is currently
received monthly management report which shows the
Group’s financial and operating results with detailed

analysis of different business activities.

The main function of the committee could help to relieve the

Board of detailed review of information and to increase the

operational efficiency among different departments. For the

avoidance of doubt, all matters that require public

announcement pursuant to the Listing Rules or rules of any

other relevant regulatory body must be approved by the

Board.
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Matters reserved for full Board decision include material bank
facilities arrangement, material acquisitions and disposals of
assets, material transactions with connected parties,
significant investments including large capital projects,
delegation of authority, treasury and risk management policy,
any matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial

shareholder or director.

All directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are
complied with and advises the Board on corporate

governance and compliance matters.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of

AHEREEFAZEHEBEEANRT
EERE - EXEEREESR  HEE

FTRERRS BRINERESZE
AERR  BHEFHE  MHEERERE
ERRARTERRAERTSRMNEE
RZAEfR=IA -

FIEZEER ISR RWE  HE SRR
BEEEREAHERERF  UROEERR
EEEERNERTeRIES -

NREMEAEEREZTONEEZES

the Board and the Board committee meetings, which are ZEEEE 0 3% %A*i L —REEKX
normally circulated to directors for comment within a @EB 7AERERNARESERE m
reasonable time after each meeting and the final signed RIREHRZBIEEZTE T% IJ R EEEEF
version is sent to all directors for their records and open for R - e tE=ERE
directors’ inspection.
. All directors are allowed to take independent professional FTEESHEANBAESKIFG I HE
advice at Company’s expense. BH
. There is in place a directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance REEREEREEBERERR -
cover.
. Details of 2017 Board meetings attendance record are set out  * —TtFEEFeeR L ELHEET
below: O
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HESRAR HER
Executive Directors BTES
Liu Lit Mo BRR
(Former Chairman, passed away on 12 July 2017) (BIEEE  RZE—LFELH+=Hit) 22 100%
Liu Lit Chi B2E
(Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer) (£ EFLEBEFITHER) 4/4 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BEdE
(Deputy Managing Director) (FIEFELRE) 4/4 100%
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B
(also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung) (TBEFREBEZERES) 4/4 100%
Lee Wai Hung TR 44 100%
Non-executive Directors FHTE
Liu Lit Chung B2 4/4 100%
Andrew Liu (resigned on 8 March 2017) B (ER-E—+F=F/\AE/E) 01 0%
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred (retired on 9 May 2017) BRE (ER-_E—+tEL AN HEE) 0/ 0%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher FRR 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses HRE 2/4 50%
Tong Tsin Ka (retired on 9 May 2017) BRR(ER=E—tFLANHEM) 17 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BRI 44 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John BB 3/4 75%
Cheng Yuk Wo g A 4/4 100%




(I1) SUPPLY OF INFORMATION: QUALITY AND

TIMELINESS
The Company attaches great importance to continually
improve on the quality and timeliness of the dissemination of

information to the directors.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring adequate supply of

information to the directors.

The agenda and accompanying board papers will be sent in
full to all directors in a timely manner (we aim to give relevant
documents at least five clear days replacing current practice
of at least three clear days in advance of meeting). Where

appropriate, communications are sent electronically.

All directors are currently provided with quarterly
management reports which shows the Group’s financial and
operating results with detailed analysis of those major rental
properties, property under development and other

investments.

A full Board meeting, held by each quarter, was regularly
taken for the purpose of reviewing and updating the
Company’s business and operating results with reference to

the quarterly management report.

Managing Director is currently holding internal management
meetings twice a week with all executive directors and
different department heads to update directors on their lines
of business and to review performance for delegated

assignment.

Executive Management Committee meetings were held twice
a week to discuss the daily operation and to review the
Company matters by reference to monthly management

reports.
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(lll) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

After the year ended of 2015, the Executive Management
Committee had engaged Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”) to provide consultancy services in relation to
enterprise risk management and internal controls. The Board
understands that it is the Board’s responsibility to evaluate the
risks of the Company and to implement the Company’s strategic
objective through an established, appropriate and effective risk

management and internal control systems.

Senior management had discussed with Deloitte regarding to the
Company’s existing system and internal controls and an
appropriate policy and detailed work plan had been formulated

after having identified the main area of risk.

. During the year of 2017, the management had completed the
internal control assessment and various follow up actions had
been done based on the findings and recommendations by
Deloitte. The management is highly regarded the internal
controls and considered that such review based on the
identified audit areas, will be performed annually so as to

manage the risk and control the effectiveness of the system.

(D) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
Procedures for Remuneration Committee to set directors and

senior management’s remuneration policy:

. The Company has set up Remuneration Committee on 3
March 2005. Its terms of reference are to review and
determine the remuneration packages for all directors and

senior management.

. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four
members, including three of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman), Dr.
Ma Hung Ming, John and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and a Non-

executive Director, Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher.

. The committee meets at least once per annum.

an EREERNEBEERS
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The main duties of the committee include the followings:

0

@D

(iii)

(iv)

to make recommendations to the Board on or
determine the Company’s policy and structure for all
directors and senior management remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent

procedure for developing remuneration policy;

to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payment and any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their

office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on or

determine the remuneration of Non-executive Directors;

to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals

and objectives.

Details of 2017 Remuneration Committee meeting attendance

record are set out below:

REGCZEERBBRETIRIA
©) ?ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%?&%%&%‘ﬁ/\

8 2 $r BN R N 2R 18 DA S 3h aR 5L
ExmAE Eﬂrzifff%‘JuTlit—r

FEBBCR - MEFSRMER

ﬂl

(i BRREFENRTEERERE
EEAE\Z%E@HH\ - BREEDAH
BARSENREEERRE
ﬁé&%% RIEBAB R EZRE

(i) MBEEHFRTEFZHFHRAES
SEMERS

(iv) REEZEEREZLXERFER
A RHEEIE BT RS

T tFEFNEE e HELR
T

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEERY Hig=
Members of Remuneration Committee FMZERZE
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman) BRE(FF) 17 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher FRR 11 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John J=3-F 4 0/1 0%
Cheng Yuk Wo EHA 17 100%
Cavior Liu (Secretary) BHE(#E) 17 100%
The committee is authorised by the Board to oversee and CEeEEEeRBEERNETHNTE
determine the remuneration of Executive Directors and ENSEREEAS ZEHE - WHtbiRE
Senior Management. B o
No director is involved in deciding his own remuneration. On EEWEZREETFTHERA ZEHIRE -
matters other than those concerning him, the Chairman or MAEBESEANS FEESHAKE
Managing Director may be invited to committee meetings to ZEEI FENERALIE R ERL
give advices. BLEEEZEHARER
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(BE)
m

an

Committee members are allowed under certain procedures
to take independent professional advice at Company’s
expense for making and determining the remuneration

package proposal.

The committee will present a report to the Board after each

meeting, which addresses its work and findings.

The committee will make recommendation to the Board
regarding the remuneration, comprising directors’ fees for all
Directors, for shareholders approval at the annual general

meeting.

Details on the mandate and summary of the work by the
Remuneration Committee during the year are set out in the

Remuneration Committee Report on page 40.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock

Exchange’s website.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING: BALANCED, CLEAR AND
COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT OF THE COMPANY’S
PERFORMANCE, POSITION OF PROSPECTS

The Board believes that it presents a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s

position and prospects in all shareholder commmunications.

The Board fully appreciates its responsibilities regarding the

preparation of financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDITORS: TERMS OF
REFERENCE AND RELATIONSHIP WITH
MANAGEMENT AND EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee currently comprises four members, all
of them are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman), Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Mr.
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric.

All members have experience in reviewing and analysing
audited financial statements of public companies or major

organisation.

(E)
m

an
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The committee meets not less than twice per annum.
Meetings are also attended by invitation by the Chairman, the
Managing Director and Executive Director who is in charge of
finance matters. The committee also meets not less than

twice per annum with the Company’s auditor.
The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i)  to be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or

dismissal;

(i) to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process in accordance with applicable

standards;

(ii) to develop and implement policy on engaging an

external auditor to supply non-audit services;

(iv) to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half year
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports,
and to review significant financial reporting judgements

contained in them;

(v) to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk
committee, or by the board itself, to review the
Company’s risk management and internal control

systems;

(vi) to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have effective systems. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial

reporting function;

(vii) to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated
by the board or on its own initiative and management’s

response to these findings;
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(viii) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies i) B AEBE 2B B et R &
and practices; = =
(ix) to review the external auditor's management letter, any (ix) EINEXEENREIRRE 7 K

ZBED L @R A2 8k - SRR A =X
CEBIEREEERONEME
ARFREREFLZEE R

material queries raised by the auditor to management
about the accounting records, financial accounts or

systems of control and management’s response; and

(x) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response (x) MREZe REMOERIMNEZE
to the issues raised in the external auditor’s B4 FEIEE 2 BB B K
management letter. HRRERER -
. Details of 2017 Audit Committee meetings attendance record Tt FEENREZEee AL ELE
are set out below: Bl N
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEHRE HEE
Members of Audit Committee EREERZEE
Tong Tsin Ka BER
(Former Chairman, retired on 9 May 2017) (FifEFEfE  R-ZE—tFERANAEE) 1n 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman, since 9 May 2017) BEH(TE B-E—+EFANAKE) 22 100%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses HHE 212 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BEi#fR 22 100%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric (appointed on 7 March 2018) BRK=-FE-NE=ZFtHZ() 0/0 0%
Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) TEE(RE) 22 100%

[=2]
o
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Under its terms of reference, the committee is required,
amongst other things, to oversee the relationship with
external auditors, to review the Company’s interim and
annual financial statements, and to evaluate the Group

system of internal controls.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members
to take independent professional advice at Company’s

expense.

The committee presents a report or makes advice to the
Board after each meeting for addressing their work done and

findings.

Details on the mandate and work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year are set out in the Audit

Committee Report on pages 37 to 38.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are available on

the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

RIEEBESHE ZEGVAETE
) B R EANEAZ BN Z B R - BRI
REZ PR FEMBHRE - AR
SEAFEEE -

BERZBEEZ B REMERF  BX
BYFXER BABRAREXNM -



(Il AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the auditor had received

from the Company and its subsidiaries approximately HK$2.97

million for audit and audit related services (2016: HK$2.89 million)

as well as HK$0.3 million for non-audit services (2016: HK$0.6

million).

(IV) INTERNAL CONTROL: SOUND AND EFFECTIVE

F

SYSTEM TO SAFEGUARD SHAREHOLDER INTERESTS
AND COMPANY ASSETS

Risk management is a crucial part of the Group’s strategic
management to monitor the Company’s overall financial

position and to protect its assets.

The Group is committed to implementing effective risk
management policies and internal control procedures to
identify and manage the risks that the Group may be exposed

to.

These policies and procedures are reviewed regularly by
Executive Management Committee together with the
assistant by external auditors during the course of audit and
separate assignment to ensure their effectiveness and

compliance with Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

The Managing Director and Executive Directors will discuss
with external auditor in the Audit Committee meeting at least
twice a year on key issues in relation to internal controls,

audit findings and risk management.

As concluded in 2017 Audit Committee meeting, no
irregularities and major weakness in control were found by

the auditor.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Nomination Committee on 7
March 2012, which is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for

directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman of the
Board. The committee shall comprise members not less than
three and a majority of the committee was Independent Non-

executive Directors.
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. The Nomination Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Liu Lit .

Chi, the Chairman of the Board.

. Other members are Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur, Dr. Ma Hung .

Ming, John, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

(Independent Non-executive Directors) and Mr. Kho Eng

Tjoan, Christopher (a Non-executive Director).

. The committee meets at least once per annum. .

. The main duties of the committee include the followings: .

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including

the skills, knowledge and experience required) of the

Board at least annually and make recommendations on

any proposed changes to the Board to complement the

Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become

directors of the Company and select or make

recommendations to the Board on the selection of

individuals nominated for directorships;

(iii) to assess the independence of Independent Non-

executive Directors of the Company; and

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the

appointment or re-appointment of the directors and

succession plan for directors, in particular the Chairman

and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

. Details of 2017 Nomination Committee meeting attendance .

record are set out belows:

REAZECEFERESEXIRFEE
FLHEHE(T -

ZEERRHEMREBRBIUIFNTE
%Eﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁi - BRHIE L - WERAL
BRALE  URIFRITEFFR

ZERZIZREBETIRA

(i) ZBELBERIAEFSZIEE - A
B AR (BRI - MBRER
FE) WHEMA/RERRARZE
M EESEE 2 EFHIRD
i

(i VEeAHaEERAEEARRF
BEE2AT - WHGEREZERA
THEEFIMEREETSREM
R

(i) AERARBBLFRITEETZE
VA C 3

(v) REZZEXENZERESF
RIRARR R EFE RITHAE) BT
FFEIMESSREES -

—E LEEEATEE SRR
T

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HESEAR HiEx

Members of Nomination Committee BEZEEZE

Liu Lit Mo BRI

(Former Chairman, passed away on 12 July 2017) (FIfEEfE  R=F—tFt+H+Hiftt) 17 100%
Liu Lit Chi (Chairman, Since 12 July 2017) BB (FE H-E—+tFtHA+=-HE) 11 100%
Tong Tsin Ka (fetired on 9 May 2017) ERR(R-Z—tFHANAEF) 1N 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher TR 1 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo el 1n 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur (appointed on 8 March 2017) BRR(R-ZE—tE=ANNAZF) 0/0 0%
Ma Hung Ming, John (appointed on 8 March 2017) ER#(R_FE-—tE=F/\AZF) 0/0 0%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eirc (appointed on 7 March 2018) ER(KR-F—\E=F+HZ(E) 00 0%
Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) TRIE(HE) 11 100%

. Committee members are allowed to take independent

professional advice at Company’s expense.



(G)

Details of the mandate and summary of the work by the
Nomination Committee during the year are set out in the

Nomination Committee Report on page 39.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock

Exchange’s website.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
The Company has set up the Corporate Governance
Committee on 7 March 2012, which is mainly responsible for

performing the corporate governance duties of the Board.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu

Kwun Shing, Christopher.

Its other current members are Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, and
Mr. Lee Wai Hung, both of them are Executive Directors of
the Company and two Independent Non- executive Directors
namely, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Dr. Ma Hung Ming,
John.

The committee meets at least once per annum.

The Corporate Governance Committee determines the policy
for the corporate governance of the Company. The duties
performed by the Corporate Governance Committee include

the followings:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make

recommendations to the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors of the

Company and the senior management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to the directors and the employees of the

Company;

(v) toreview the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report as required under the Listing Rules;

and

(G)
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(vi) to hold regular meetings with all department heads
from time to time requesting them to review their
corporate governance within the department and
require them to submit proposal or remedy action to

redress the matters.

Details of 2017 Corporate Governance Committee meeting

attendance record are set out below:

(vi)y TREMEHMIEEETHRITE
& BRmERSESBMARNZD
XEh YREEZZXBRITH
MEER=E -

—tFELEERZEEER D
aEﬁ%%WJZID—F:

il

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HESHERY HER
Members of Corporate Governance Committee TEBEREESERE
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B,

(Chairman, appointed on 9 August 2017) (£ RZE—tENAAAZE) 1n 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BEfR 1N 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John BBk 17 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BEE 1 100%
Lee Wai Hung TRl 11 100%

(H)
m

Committee members are allowed to take independent

professional advice at Company’s expense.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance

Committee are available on the Company’s website.

DELEGATION BY BOARD

RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT

The Board and management (include different departmental
heads) fully appreciate their respective roles with supportive
commitments of creating a healthy corporate governance

culture.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the processes that
management (include different departmental heads) has in

place to identify business opportunities and risks.

The Board has delegated management functions to Executive
Management Committee and different department heads for

the Company’s operations and daily business affairs.

ZESZERABRBEYEEER B
AR RD FIFASE -

BRACXEARZES CHERE  f3
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E% R

EREZHEF
i%”*& BE(BESHMAEE) TS
Eﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁilﬁtﬁﬁiﬁﬁlﬁafﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁ%%ﬁ
Xt EEEZAE -

EZenAEREEE(BESHME
EEEHHEERCREAREF
EEgCRENTEEZBE G REHM
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(I1) BOARD COMMITTEES: SPECIFIC TERMS OF

m
m

REFERENCE AND REPORT TO FULL BOARD

The Board currently has five Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and Executive
Management Committee, each of the Committee have

specific written terms of reference.

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and all

members are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Dr. Cheng Mo
Chi, Moses and has a majority of Independent Non-executive

Directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Lit Chi, the
Chairman of the Board and has a majority of Independent

Non-executive Directors.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu
Kwun Shing, Christopher and comprises two Executive
Directors and two Independent Non-executive Directors of

the Company.

The Executive Management Committee comprises four

Executive Directors of the Company.

Each Board committees present their respective reports to
the Board after each meeting, for addressing their work done

and findings.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION POLICY
PREAMBLE

This policy sets out the Company’s standards and practice in

relation to communicating with its shareholders and prospective

investors.

The Company is committed to maintaining a policy of open
and timely disclosure of relevant information on its activities

to shareholders, subject to applicable legal requirements.

The Company believes that providing regular communications
to its shareholders and the market is important to ensure
they have the available information reasonably required to
make informed assessments of the Company’s strategy,

operations and financial performance.
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. Communication channels

Communication is made through:

the Company’s annual and interim reports, which have
been enhanced to present a comprehensive, balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group position

and prospects.

notices of and explanatory memoranda for annual and
other general meetings, which have been enhanced to
provide shareholders with additional information in an

understandable manner.

press releases on major developments of the Company

and its subsidiaries.

disclosures to the Stock Exchange and relevant

regulatory bodies.

Company’s website at http://www.lchi.com.hk from
which shareholders can access information on the
Group. The website provides, inter alia, corporate
announcements, business development and operations,
press releases, annual reports, and corporate

information of the Group.

(I1) SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

. The Board welcomes moves towards a more constructive use

of annual general meeting and regards the annual general

meeting as the principal opportunity to meet private

shareholders.

bR TR TR IRAETT

MEARBFRERPHREZA
B AYAREE 2R NAT R E
HEE - FERZRIBEZ TS

g EEREMBRRAS 2BE

LFHRBEHEIART  UFRE
R 2 TARBRIRE— R -

BERAARRAINEMBRAREAE
RZFE DM -

B T A B B M
B -

BRRAEREARARNR 2 HBE(H
it : http://www.lchi.com.hk)
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EBERREE  MBER F1
RIFEER
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Details of director’s attendance record of the annual general e BE-_T—+tF+-A=1+—"HBHILFE =

meeting of the Company held for year ended 31 December ZARANBIREASESH E s 0 %

2017 are set out below: o oA

#

<

Number of Attendance m

meeting attended rate g

HERER S 2

o

Executive Directors YITES o

Liu it Mo B3R <

(Former Chairman, passed away on 12 July 2017) (FIFEfE  R=FE—tFtH+ZRHifftt) il 100% 8

LiuLit Chi BIlE >

(Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer) (FfE EBHREEFRITREE) il 100% =

Liu Kam Fai, Winston (Deputy Managing Director) BeE (sEEALE) 1N 100% g

Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher =38 <

(also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung) (TRBIEBEZEREE) 11 100% =

Lee Wai Hung ZEE 1 100% >

o

Non-executive Directors FHTES ™

LiuLit Chung EaE 1 100% §

Andrew Liu (resigned on 8 March 2017) BRm(R=E—t£=A/NABE) 0/0 0% B

Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred (retired on 9 May 2017) BRE(R=ZE—+ELF N HEF) 0/ 0% &

Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher AR 11 100% E

|

Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHTES ﬂ\ﬂ}%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses HEE 11 100%
Tong Tsin Ka (retired on 9 May 2017) BRR(W=F—tEZANBER) il 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BEifR 1 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John g 11 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo g 11 100%

The Company arranges for the annual report and financial
statements and related papers to be posted for shareholders
so as to allow at least 21 days for consideration prior to the
annual general meeting. And all other general meetings to be

sent at least 14 days.

The Board encourages and supports shareholder participation
in general meetings. Shareholders are encouraged to appoint
proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their

behalf if they are unable to attend such meetings.

Mechanisms for enabling shareholder participation will be
reviewed on a regular basis by the Board to encourage the

highest level of participation.

Chairman of the Board, appropriate members of the Board
committees and the external auditor of the Company will
attend the annual general meetings to answer questions from

the shareholders.

RERRARVEBER - AQAIRH
RRRBFRENED 21 BRARKTE
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E 14 BESXBA o
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(lll) SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES

. Inquiries from shareholders, investors, media or the public are
responded by the Executive Directors, Director of Finance,
Company Secretary or the appropriate members of senior

management.

. The Company will respond in a timely manner to

shareholders’ queries and concerns.

(IV) THE ADMINISTRATION OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING
. All ordinary shares of the Company have equal voting rights.

Annual general meeting proceedings are continually reviewed

in the light of Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

. Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of

individual directors.

. Preparation of a comprehensive annual general meeting

circular containing:

. re-election of directors;

. general mandate to buy-back shares;

. general mandate to issue shares;

. amendments to the Articles of Association, if any;

. voting at annual general meeting; and

. comprehensive information on each resolution to be
proposed.

The Company’s Articles contain the rights of shareholders to
demand and the procedures for a poll voting on resolution at
shareholders’ meetings. Details of such rights to demand a poll and
the poll procedures are included in all circulars in relation to
shareholders’ meetings and will be explained during the
proceedings of shareholders’ meetings. In case poll voting is
conducted, the poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on the business day following

the shareholders’ meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at http://www.lchi.com.hk where the Company’s
announcements, business development and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information

are posted.

Information on top 10 largest shareholders and location of

shareholders are set out in Directors’ Report on page 31.
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(V) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A

GENERAL MEETING (“GM”)
Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having a right to vote may request

to call a GM of the Company.

The written request: (a) must state the general nature of the
GM; (b) may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the GM;
(c) must be signed by the shareholders making such request,
and (d) may consist of several documents in like form each
signed by one or more of those shareholders. A request by

joint holders of shares must be signed by all such holders.

The request should be deposited at the registered office of

the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is valid,
the Company Secretary will convene a GM on behalf of the
Board by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements or applicable rules or regulations to

all the registered shareholders.

If the request is verified to be not in order, shareholders
concerned will be advised of the result and no GM will be

convened.

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the request proceed to convene a GM, the
shareholders concerned or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may
themselves convene a GM, but any GM so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date of

the deposit of the request.

In the case of a GM at which a resolution is to be proposed as
a special resolution, the directors shall be deemed not to
have duly convened the GM if they do not give such notice as
is required by section 578 of the Companies Ordinance

(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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(V1) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT (VD) RERBREAEREEZZERF
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS
. Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap -« BEARIKIN(EBERECRE)FE

622, Laws of Hong Kong), the Company must give notice of 615 & - Z]X’AETZZD??ZELX—F%( B ZRi%E®
a resolution if it has received requests from the following TSR MEREREL R

number of shareholders:

() Shareholders holding at least 2.5% of the total voting () BARL25%EEREBHERR
rights of all shareholders having the right to vote on the B EZERMBEIEOIRERE
resolution at the annual general meeting to which the ARE FMZRBFRRANRE
request relates; or B9

(i) not less than 50 shareholders who have the right to () DLRSORBEREEZENRET
vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting to MREEFEARS FRRZRERE
which the request relates. SREIPEER o

. The written request: (a) must be signed by all the EMMENK Q) EHERBIRES

shareholders concerned; (b) may be sent to the Company in (b) Al ££ BB ED$)—BK§;§%§$“ETEH%
hard copy form at the registered office of the Company; (c) WER: (COBAEREERLBAME
must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given; (d) FHRZR (DBAKFBEREZEK
must be authenticated by the person or persons making it; BARE: ReWBETENZENX
and (e) must be received by the Company not later than 6 FrE8 IR B F KeRisk (ANEE) 3%
weeks before the annual general meeting to which the Ne@ME P/ NEERZRERANT -

requests relate; or if later, the time at which notice is given of

that meeting.

. The request will be verified with the Company’s share . ZEBRERAANTERMGDBEEILRZ

registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is valid, T —BZERKEREBEN  NATE
the Company will give notice of the resolution or circulate the R R A S B

statement provided that:

(a) if the request relates to an annual general meeting, (a) BZEERERREEFEFASER
Bl
(i) the proposed statement is received in time to () AAREZEEZZZHEAR
enable the Company to send a copy of the B ETEREFFA
statement when the notice of annual general e HEBIAEA ;- 3k

meeting is despatched; or

(i) otherwise, the shareholders concerned have (i) BAERRBETEAKREE
deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the FAS/HAISEAERHN
Company’s expenses in regard thereto not later B RN IE DA AR A B BE I E
than 7 days before the annual general meeting. HEHRE Y o

(b) if the request relates to a GM (other than an annual (b) BZIBEESRE (B R FEE AL LS
general meeting), the shareholders concerned have B)BREASER  BIEHEKRESR
deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the ERERIRE RS 7 BRISFEAE

Company’s expenses in regard thereto not later than 7 BB IRIE AT AR D BB E

days before the GM. Y -



. If the request is verified to be not in order or the shareholders
concerned have failed in the above manner to deposit
sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for the
said purposes, the shareholders concerned will be advised of
the result and no action will be taken by the Company in that

regard.

. Pursuant to section 616 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under section 615 of the Companies
Ordinance to give notice of a resolution must send a copy of
it at the Company’s own expenses to each shareholder of the
Company entitled to receive notice of the annual general
meeting in the same manner as the notice of the meeting;
and at the same time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable

after, it gives notice of the meeting.

The above procedures are subject to applicable legislation and
regulations, in particular, the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622, Laws
of Hong Kong). For further details on the shareholder
qualifications, and the procedures and timeline, shareholders are
kindly requested to refer to Sections 566 to 567, 571, 578, 580 to
582, 610 and 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622, Laws of
Hong Kong).

(VIl) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A
PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR
Subject to applicable laws, rules and regulations, including
Companies Ordinance (Laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules and
the articles of association of the Company as amended from time
to time, if any shareholder(s) of the Company intends to propose a
person other than a director of the Company for election as a
director of the Company at any GM, the following procedures shall

apply:

. a notice signed by a shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
for which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall
have been lodged with the Board at the registered office of

the Company;
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. the minimum length of the period during which such
notice(s) are given shall be at least 7 days and that the period
for lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the GM
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days

prior to the date of such GM; and

. in order for the Company to inform shareholders of the
Company of that proposal, such notice(s) for the nomination
of a director must state the full name of the person
nominated for election as a director and include the person’s

biographical details as required by the Listing Rules.

(J) CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were changes to the Company’s Articles of Association in
the annual general meeting held on 29 April 2015, the shareholders
of the Company approved the amendments to the Articles of
Association of the Company. The changes were carried out in
compliance with the latest Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) which came into effect on 3 March 2014. The revised Articles

of Association is available in the Company’s website.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RRE - HEREBRES

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Throughout the years of operation and development, we have
been adhering to our business philosophy of Corporate Social
Responsibility (“CSR”). This report is prepared with reference to
the “Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG”) Reporting
Guide” under Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“"HKEXx”).
Since its establishment, the Group has strived to carry out property
investment and management activities diligently and
professionally. We believe such conviction can help us to avoid or
minimise the impacts on the public in the vicinity of our managed
properties and create a sustainable and better environment for the

community.

Unless otherwise specified, this report covers our progress and
performance on ESG issues from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2017, focusing on the core activities of the Group, which include
property investment, property development, property

management and hotel operation business.

ABOUT LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED

The Group's investment properties mainly include commercial
buildings and residential buildings, and the prime locations of our
retail and residential properties result in their high occupancy
rates. For the year ended 31 December 2017, our primary
properties include offices, commercial buildings, residential

buildings, industrial building, land and a hotel and serviced
residences (which is expected to commence its operation in 2018)
in Hong Kong; and commercial building, commercial and residential

properties in PRC.

Over the past twenty years, the Group has built a solid reputation
with its property development and remodeling works to enhance

the value of the properties it invested in.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Identifying and clarifying stakeholders is indispensable in
sustainable development. Continuous communication with our
stakeholders enables us to make informed decisions and to
accurately assess the potential impacts of our business decisions.
The table below shows a list of the Group’s stakeholders, as well as

our efforts in commmunication and response.

FripELm

Bl R AR E WA HERRN S TR R
Do BEDERFTBBEDRFIELNBR
EWEEMFEEBRROEELE - TK
5| AR S B A Fr 9 & DA R R P68 8 K B 8
Gl

Stakeholder Groups Specific Stakeholders Methods of Communication
HREAR BEEHE BEE
Investors ° Shareholders > (Corporate website
REX RR AGTE D
> Annual financial report
EENBRE
> Annual general meetings
FERRAE
> Conference call
EY =
Employees o Senior Management > Training, seminars
&8 BREEE 3 - e
o Staff > Face-to-face meetings
T EHEEH
o Potential recruits > Independent focus groups and interviews
BEHES BUEEMREH
> (SR and volunteering activities
CEHEEARTREEEE
Customers ° Tenants > (Customer satisfaction survey
EF HFE EFREERD
o Buyers > Guest comment card and client feedback
EX survey
BEERFREFRENAE
> Designated customer hotline
EEEFAR
Suppliers/Contractors ° Material suppliers > Supplier assessment
s,/ AEH B R HER T
o Subcontractors > Daily work review
2EE A IR
> Site inspection/meeting with contractors
HERR ERAEH
Government ° National and local governments > Written correspondence
B B R it 5 B E@EA
o Regulators
EERM
MATERIALITY ANALYSIS EEMSH

To ensure that this report addresses the issues that are critical to
the Group and significant to our stakeholders, we have conducted
a materiality assessment on the Group’s CSR agenda. By doing so,
we are able to identify the areas for improvement in our CSR work
with a more comprehensive, transparent and specific response to

enhance the quality of the annual report.

RERARSHEREHASEMSEHE
ERHRMANTHEMSBEZNRE - ]
MEHAREENCREEEEFSETER
PERTAE o FE itk - BMIEABREELSEME
THERFRENGR  AE2HE  BAKA
BHOCEEERRESFRNEE -



PROTECTING OUR ENVIRONMENT

EMISSION CONTROL

As far as environmental management is concerned, the Group
strives to minimise greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions, hazardous
and non-hazardous waste generation and always develops new
practices that are beneficial to the environment. By adhering to
the environmental policy, we have implemented industry-accepted
measures and initiatives in a number of aspects including energy-
efficient system, waste recycling and pollution prevention. We
conducted periodic monitoring and reviews of the relevant key
performance indicators to protect the environment of our
operation location. To comply with applicable environmental
protection laws and regulations, the operations of Chong Hing
Bank Centre, Chong Hing Square and Fairview Court are governed
by the requirement under ISO 14001:2015 which is certified by the
British Standards Institution. Under the standard guidelines, we
consider and properly manage the impact of the lifecycle of our
projects on the environment and advocate the importance of
environmental management within the Group’s strategic planning

processes.

GREEN DESIGN

In spite of the insignificant emissions impact the Group had made
to the environment, we are dedicated to ensuring sustainable
development and protecting the environment from the potential
environmental impact which may be made by the development of
our daily business operations. The Group has taken a number of
efficient initiatives to infuse the energy-saving and emission
reduction philosophy into the entire process of its development

and operation.

To conserve energy, occupancy sensors are installed to
automatically draw the curtains to block out the sunlight, room
temperature is pre-set between 24°C and 26°C at One-Eight-One
Hotel & Serviced Residences, and escalators are set to operate at a
slow speed when unoccupied in Chong Hing Finance Centre. These
measures can help to reduce noise emission and extend the

service life of the parts and components.

As a responsible corporation, we endeavour to support social
integration and to create a barrier-free environment in our daily

operations by installing disabled access in all our properties.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has not received
any notice of non-compliance in relation to environmental laws

and regulations.
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HE 1=
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Hs T 35 SRR AT B0 FE b e st & o BP9 BRI
Mg AR R ORBER  AREL S
BHIRIE o RESTHEARBREEELAN -

BIERITHR L AIEES R EERMMNEE R
HEEZEABEREMNISO 14001:2015 48 E i

TER - RIERSEERS RNBRLE
SEREALSBPHRENYE - LA
EEGERIEREBRETRERATENE
Bt o

IRRERE

BEASEBENHRYRENZEE /)
BPDABRHERAIFEERMRERRER
REFNBAERBLENRELNEERE -
7N B B BREX % TR B MU e A £ BE R B 22
DEABREZRRLEERIES -

BEABEIR © FATE One-Eight-One B JE &
REXNEFELEAFPBERABDHERBERER
EEEX  ERREERE24°CE26°CZ
B THEIESRP LK TFERRTEAE
|EAGERREIERET - LHEEARE
BEPRRIERTEHHEASS o
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GREEN OPERATION

We strive to minimise the impact of our operations on the
environment and natural resources. With a view to ensuring the
GHG emissions are reduced to the best possible amount and
raising the awareness on climate change issues, Chong Hing Bank
Centre and Chong Hing Square have been recognised by the Hong
Kong Government’s Indoor Air Quality Certification Scheme with

“Good Class” certifications.

We also promote the use of electric vehicles to reduce urban
pollution. For our forthcoming One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced
Residences, electric sockets for charging such vehicles have been
installed. This initiative further complements our GHG emission
control as electric vehicles will be provided for our hotel limousine
service. Moreover, we have introduced and followed the
“Environmental 4Rs” Principles to explore possible measures in our
daily business operations, which are to reduce, reuse, recycle and

replace waste and pollutants.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has not received
any notice of non-compliance in relation to the Air Pollution

Control Ordinance.

GHG emission data during the review period:

Begs
BABNBAEROEEEIRERAARER
MEE RMAZFRNERLEREHFREE
RELRSAMEREECEENER - &
B SR 1T A 0 2 Bl B 35 1 B B U = N ZE SR
BT aRER [ REFR] -

BMTHEFERAES BRI ASE - 5t
B B A 458 ) One-Eight-One JB & & AR 15
AEEMS RMELXREEHERERAD
BRAEE - Wi R EEERMHEEEXR
% b E— P R ERAIROR = R RE
AR i RMESIAREREIERR
4Rs] R - ERAEEBLEPRRAILURD
A EA BREERDREAED RS
R B IEBE ©

BE_T—tHFt+_-_A=+—RHLEFE X
5 B R BN 8 R E RIS R E B R B
A RBA

1A EIREH Py il = SRAS HE BB

Aspects CO, equivalent (Unit: Tonne)
gk “EitEE (B M)

Scope 2

&2

Indirect GHG Emissions 336.21 tonnes

B REREHEN

Scope 3

#E3

Other Indirect GHG Emissions
HirfRE R B g

16.36 tonnes i

The calculation of the above quantitative information is based on
our best approximation and the data available up to 31 December

2017.

FREEERNAERERBE_T—tF
TZA=+—HUENBEMBRELLE -



REDUCING WASTE AND PROMOTING RECYCLING

Waste generated from each business division is different in nature
and needed to be handled differently. Due to our business nature,
no significant hazardous waste was generated from our operation
in 2017. We recognise the importance of waste reduction and thus
waste management measures have been introduced to minimise
both the amount of waste generated and the impact on the

environment.

Our waste recycling campaign has commenced in 2016 and we
have carried out a variety of initiatives, such as placing recycling
bins in convenient spots. Chong Hing Bank Centre has set up
disposal waste fluorescent tube to store chemical and metallic
waste for a licensed waste collector to collect disposal items
regularly. The provision of collection service from licensed waste
collectors are to comply with the requirement of the
Environmental Protection Department (“EPD”) and relevant

regulations in Hong Kong.

From the daily operations of Chong Hing Bank Centre and Chong
Hing Square, waste cooking oils (“WCQO”) were unavoidably
generated. Properly recycling WCO not only can produce industrial
products such biodiesel and soap, but can also avoid
environmental pollution arising from improper handling. In order to
protect the environment and prevent WCO from re-entering the
food chain, we are committed to following the guidelines of the
EPD to only authorise registered eligible collectors to handle our

WCO.

With our efforts in promoting environmental sustainability, we

target to strengthen our recycling practices and reduce waste.

Waste Management Achievements in 2017

iR BE ¥ R AR 3 B Wy F A
BEEBHMAEENEYUEET— FHHE
BRI - N ERMIFTEITENERMEL K=
T HFUMNRELBELERGEREY -
BPIERERLBEYNEEE - AMEHRN
BEMERERAZTER D IELNEY M EF

BHRENZE

BB T AFRRMAEYLEKAAEES -
WEETZEER  fINERNMERE
Ol AE - BIEIRITHOERBEERZRERE K
FRiCERSBREY  EFEREYRER
EHRBEEREY M - FEEDRERERD
WIRH D RBTREREE ((RRE]) RE
ERRGIRANBE o

BIERITHR O KA ES A B8 48 & fE ]
REELEFERRM ZEDWEEREM
TMEREEEEMEBRIEESETEER
MAEMATERBERRIRE L - BRE

RELMBEEERRBBRNEARYE &K
PAHBERRERENES - EHRESELH
BERBERRBERFINEERRM -

BPBHTEBIRSREAIFENL  BO%
AP EY [ R PR e BOR D R o

-t EBEYEERR

2017
Issue BYER Unit By —E—+5&
Non-hazardous waste |ERY tonne 7} 1,800
Used cooking oil RERBHARM tonne W 61.2
Grease trap waste T St & 4 tonne 7} 91.3
Paper #® kg N 29,614.3
Plastic 2B kg NI 82
Aluminium 43 kg af 100.8
Electronic waste ETEY kg N 50

The calculation of the above quantitative information is based on
our best approximation and the data available up to 31 December

2017.
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GREEN PURCHASING PRACTICES

During the review period, we have adopted sustainable
consumption practices. The Group would consider the
environmental impact of our suppliers’ products and to the extent
practicable, favour those suppliers and contractors who follow
environmentally-sound practices such as offering products with
greater durability and greater energy efficiency. Before procuring
any materials or products, our procurement staff examines the
necessity and manages demand of the product or service to avoid
any unnecessary consumption. During the selection process, the
aspects we take into account include the quality of products as
well as safety, health and emissions, pollutants, natural resources
required such as noise, energy consumption and waste materials
at all stages. We should also consider the alternatives for
purchasing a replacement product with greater durability and

greater energy efficiency.

For the forthcoming hotel service in 2018, we have selected
biodegradability products to reduce significant impact on the
environment as biodegradation is organic materials breaking down
into simpler substances, such as carbon dioxide, water and
ammonia, by the action of microorganisms in wastewater
treatment plants. The materials will normally be degraded into

stable compounds or their elemental ions.

USE OF RESOURCES

Our commitment to the environment extends beyond our
operations. We also capitalise on the opportunity to reduce waste,
conserve water, and save energy in our customers’ facilities by

achieving innovation in terms of sustainability.

Environmental Performance at Chong Hing Bank Centre and

Chong Hing Square in 2017

REREBES

REEHA - ZF—EESHRAAFEDN
HENMEER ASEgZEHEREMRTE
mBRNREZE  YEVERTTHHER -
BEER BB REAMNES (NREHE A
K EEGERE M) MR KRB o ERE
T KEMRA - RPNEKBARSE
ERRBENERIRBEELELT EEFK
B NEBREMTLENHERE  EBRERF
T RfeEmERERERERERRT R
fRE LB SR - R EREREIE -
WRE - BETRHRE SRR - AP EE B
BEMAMERIGEESNERER -

AR - NFEENEERBEME
BADEFR YRR ERNAR D SRR
MBARE - LR AE RS /KEE KT
MBAEMIER - ISBERYB DB S =R
KERBREBRHENE - ZEVM BT SR
REREAMIEERNRT -

BREHR
BFIHERBNABTIRBRREFNERS - R,
PITFEERE N TP ARG RRE - fiKkK

ERge - BIRAIFFEMEIR o

T —tFRIERTPOREIEFISHIRIT
R

Aspects Unit Consumption
i Bfy HFE
Electricity consumption and its intensity (per full-time employee) kWh 449,973
EERAETE (BE2HES) TR&E
per employee 1,584.40 kWh T FLBs
BEES
Water consumption and its intensity (per full-time employee) m? 819
RkERRKEE (BE2HES) N FK
per employee 2.88 m*u Ak
S£ES

The calculation of the above quantitative information is based on
our best approximation and the data available up to 31 December
2017.

LREMERNFAEDERBE-_T—LF
TZA=+—RALENBIEMBSKELLE -



CIVILISED DEVELOPMENT UPGRADES

The Group is highly attentive to the impact on the environment
and communities during its project development. We strictly
comply with all applicable laws and regulations on environmental
protection and follow the standards of civilised construction. Since
Chong Hing Square has been operating for a relatively long period
of time, the management had commenced a substantial renovation
to the building to increase the capital value of the property and
further complements our environmental concerns. We are also
aware of the potential environmental impacts resulting from
emissions and wastewater generated from operations and the
corresponding concerns from the local community. Therefore, to
adhere to the “Building Energy Efficiency Ordinance” issued by the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department of Hong Kong, we
have upgraded the chiller plant inside Chong Hing Square for an
efficient operation. The building exterior and billboard are also
replaced with light-emitting diode (“LED”) lighting to reduce

energy consumption.

INNOVATIVE DESIGN

With the establishment of Phase 3 of The Grand Riviera, Foshan,
the Group has attached significance to the impact on the
environment. The design philosophy of The Grand Riviera Phase 3
adopts the green design concept of Phase 1 and Phase 2 and is to
ensure the design revolves around environmentally-friendliness,
cost-effective management and comfort. There are 4 major
ecological garden designs and a garden avenue up to one

kilometre in this project, and over 47% landscape area has

conformed to our determination on the philosophy of greening.

NAEREMELR
AEERERTERR BERBRYIRE R
B R & o RPIEIRE ST PR ERRIRER
R MR G TR - iR AIEE
SHREREAYERE  BEEECHZARE
ETRBRENBT LR WRAZYENE
AEEME-TRERMHREBAIE - &
FI7R B R B A 2 B A RO B PR R B K P 2R Y
BHERBZEAR AN ROEEERE -
It RETEBRE TIRBRMHCGEEY
R R - BPIE B A HES AR
BANBRSREE - KEIME R E S IR
FHRENX_®BE(TLED]) R D BEIR
SHFE ©

BIHT R &
EERGLURNZNTES =M ~AKE
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In addition, water smoke spraying device is set in the self-provided
power supply system. The emission level is minimised to comply
with “the Standard for Emission of Air Pollutants” of Guangdong
Province. Sound absorption control has been incorporated into the
air inlet, wall and ceiling in order to comply with “Industrial
Enterprises Noise Standard Boundary” and “Acoustic
Environmental Quality Standards”. Elevator system is controlled by
microcomputer to increase energy efficiency of the device and
lower any noise pollution; elevator fans and lights will be turned off
automatically once the elevator has not been occupied for a period

of time.

For our new One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced Residences, we
dedicated and considered the aspect of environmental impact
within our future daily operations. The interior lighting design in
the hotel adopts LED lighting system for power saving purpose.
To further conserve energy, the external windows of the hotel are
all applied with double Low-E coating which allows to minimise the
ultraviolet and infrared light that can pass through glass without

compromising the visible light that is transmitted.

Additionally, for better protection of our hotel guest’s privacy, we
have adopted an acoustic treatment in the hotel, the duct airflow
velocities shall be limited to control noise generated from airflow
system to achieve overall maximum STC50 level of sound

insulation requirement.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

As we look to the future, sustainability will remain an integral part
to our business, our employees, and the innovations we bring to
market. The environmental challenges in the world today must be
addressed by the leading corporations which are willing to
transform their industries with enhanced efficiency, technology
and sustainable practices. The Group will continue its sustainability
journey in the direction of positive social, environmental and

economic improvement.

BESN - TAFIEY B REEREEEREFHKEE
BRE - BURRENBKFAETERE
[RESRMBNRE] - ERO - EHRK
TEREBRZEFIKE - WEBT [ TELER
REREBRBHWEE] R BREEEFTE] -
TE#AGHMEERIZES  RIESEEDH
R K RERFFR BT EEA R
BRI EAGER - FHEREORS R BB 2R
Be o

FLANEE E /)2 FT One-Eight-One /B & & AR 7
AEEMS KMBEMZET REKABLE
PRI BRI o 5/ AR R ETR
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WATER CONSERVATION

In accordance with the suggestions from the Water Supplies
Department, Chong Hing Bank Centre complies with the standards
of the Quality Water Supply Scheme for Buildings and takes
various water-saving measures to ensure water is efficiently
utilised. These measures include the installation of flow controllers
on water taps, dual flush toilet cisterns, more durable materials and

replacement of Eco urinals with automatic sensors.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

CARING FOR OUR EMPLOYEES AND COMMUNITY
Employees are valuable assets and human rights should be
respected — we uphold this idea by planning a comprehensive
approach of recruitment, employment, promotion and retention
with reasonable remuneration and benefits for our employees. We
advocate a community spirit that thrives on mutual respect and
equal opportunities and we firmly comply with the legislation on
equal opportunities, such as the Sex Discrimination Ordinance,
Race Discrimination Ordinance, Disability Discrimination Ordinance

and Family Status Discrimination Ordinance.

To ensure diversity and equality, our selection process is non-
discriminatory and is solely based on employees’ performance,
experience and skills. During the hiring process, candidates may be
perceived positively by test assessors who see the close
connection between the test taken and the job, and we focus more
heavily on behaviour rather than simply assessing characteristics.
A comprehensive framework incorporating detailed human
resources management policies is embedded in our Human
Resources Operation Manual and Staff Handbook. The operation
manual and handbook provide information and guidelines to our
staff in both Hong Kong and the PRC in the areas of working
conditions, benefits and remunerations, training and development
as well as health and safety. Employees are also encouraged to
discuss their goals in job advancement and career development
with their senior management in daily activities and a performance

appraisal is to be conducted annually.

Additionally, we are fully committed to complying with any laws
and regulations that are relevant to the Ordinances mentioned

above and do not engage any forced and child labour.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has not received
any notice of non-compliance in relation to employment and

labour laws and regulations.
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STAFF COMPOSITION ETHM

During the year, we employed a total of 284 staff, including back MR ERNBLER T284ET @ BiEE
office and site staff. All our staff members are located in Hong #IRBHMET - FAE THMNREERFAE
Kong and PRC.

Number of employees Employees by age group
PN g B #2547 i B 7y

B Age over 60
6055 LA L
M 51-60
B 41-50
W 31-40
B 18-30
Employees by gender and region Employees by employment category
1R B 2 il e [t ) 73 i B 2 Ak 1l ] 2
Hong‘Kong PRC

TREEEAR

B Senior Management
40 BT

4 15 W Contract/Short-term staff
HH M TIENE

i i
o 225
w M Junior Level
sk B T
B Middle Management
@

STAFF TURNOVER BIRRE

During the review period, the Group has a turnover rate of REEEA @ REERE THRARAI18% ° 1%
approximately 18%. The employee turnover by gender is rather 1ERIEID » Hp45% BB MHREE @ 55% B X
balanced this year 45% male and 55% female. Geographically, 60% |18 ' LbHIMAEHE - & E 5 - 60%
of the staff were from Hong Kong, whereas the remaining 40% HEIRBEES @ HEE40% KB EH -

were from PRC.

The employee turnover rate by age group was distributed as HFRREDPWE LREXEZSDHAT © 40%
follows: 40% of the employees were from 18 to 30 years old, 15% N T8 2308 * 15% 1T 31 =
were 31 to 40 years old, 17% were 41 to 50 years old, 21% were 51  405%x ' 17% N F415%x 2505% ' 21% /T F 51

=
7l
il

to 60 years old, and the rest of them were over 60 years old. ME6073% * HERBGOBIIA L ©
The calculation of the above quantitative information is based on  FilE(FEENAENEREEZE T —+tF
our best approximation and the data available up to 31 December +=A=+—HBItMEEMESKETLUIE -

2017.



EMPLOYEE WELFARE

The Group strictly follows the labour laws and regulations and
provides comprehensive leave packages to employees, which
cover sick leave, casual leave, marriage leave, funeral leave,
maternity leave, annual leave, injury leave and statutory holidays.
The welfare system aims to take care of all employees, enrich the
variety of corporate culture activities, and increase the sense of

belonging among the employees.

In addition to the basic social insurance program, the Group

provides a number of benefits, including:
. Group medical coverage (to employee’s spouse)
. Education allowances for work-related training

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

As a leading property enterprise focusing on property
development and investment, the occupational health and safety
risk related to property management business and workplace
operations is relatively low. For the operations of property
development business, inevitably our employees and workers may
suffer from health and safety risks. To ensure site safety and
promptly rectify any findings in major breaches and unsafe
condition, the project team carries out site visits and inspections
on a regular basis. The Group has continued to optimise its work
practices and daily management for the sake of the staff’'s health
and safety with the aim to create a safe, healthy and comfortable
working environment. As such, we target to have zero accident

and fatal case in 2018.

Our property management business had obtained OHSAS 18001
certified by the British Standards Institution for the recognition of

our compliance with occupational health and safety requirements.

For the year ended at 31 December 2017, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance in relation to health and

safety laws and regulations.
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Work Injury Statistics for 2017

“E-LEIGHHEE

Number of work-related fatalities TIHERBERT AR
Rate of work-related fatalities TEMBERT =
Lost days due to work injury RIEmERNIER

0A
0%

14 daysH
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

We understand that human capital plays a crucial part of our
business. Thus, we have established a series of training
programmes to ensure all the employees receive a significant level

of training.

During our review period, we have launched a series of training

programmes for our operational staff as shown below:

. Fire, chemical and water leakage prevention workshops for

office and property management staff;

. Chemical handling and cleaning trainings for housekeepers in
hotel;
. Building safety and maintenance workshops for property

management staff;

. Digital marketing training workshop for marketing
department;
. Seminars on sustainable development and waste

management for property management staff; and

. Green building training provided by Building Environmental
Assessment Method (“BEAM”) Plus professionals to

encourage sustainable development.

BEAM Professionals (“BEAM Pro”) are green building professionals
accredited by the Hong Kong Green Building Council in various
aspects of the green building lifecycle. In our daily operations,
BEAM Pro can assist in integrating the latest green building
standards and practices into our building planning, design and
construction as well as broadening our green knowledge, in order

to facilitate our contribution in creating a sustainable community.

To enhance the competitiveness of the Group and of each
individual, we not only have provided plenty of training sessions to
the senior management, but have also encouraged employees
from all levels to participate in training sessions offered by the

Group.

During the review period, the percentage of employees
participated in trainings by gender was 10% of male and 9% of
female, with average training duration of approximately 2 hours
and 5.3 hours respectively. The percentage of employees
participated in trainings for senior management, middle
management and junior level were approximately 25%, 43% and 4%
respectively. The average training duration by each of these
employee categories were approximately 9 hours, 3.8 hours and

2.3 hours respectively.

The Calculation of the above gquantitative information is based on
our best approximation and the data available up to 31 December
2017.
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GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

We are committed to supporting the community by incorporating
social participation and contribution in our strategic development
and we believe this will nurture great corporate culture and

practices in the Group.

During the review period, we continually took part in community
activities, which not limited to Hong Kong but also sparing our love
to the PRC for the benefit of the community and the Group’s
stakeholders and strived to inspire our staff to play an active part

in employees’ relationship and social welfare initiatives.

During the year, we have had a relocation of one of the
departments in our office and donated some office equipment to
Yan Chai Hospital. This can not only help advocating the idea of
offering greater durability to office equipment but supporting

charity development and the community.

WASTE NO MORE

As part of our continuous support and belief of rescuing edible
surplus food from different sectors of the food industry that would
otherwise be disposed of as waste, we partnered with Food Angel
to assist in preparing raw vegetables and packed food in

December 2017.

The packed food will be turned into nutritious hot meals in Food

Angel’s central kitchen and be redistributed to the underprivileged

communities in Hong Kong.
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GIFT THAT EMPOWER

In October 2017, we partnered with MicroForests, a social
enterprise which focuses on providing opportunities and assistance
to single moms and low-income women to achieve social equality.
In the workshops held by the social enterprise, staff gets to create
their own unique MicroForests. As part of our commitment is to
support the next generation, especially children in need, we have
also invited children from Tung Wah Group of Hospitals — Jockey

Club Lei Tung Integrated Services Centre to join us in this event.

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

We believe by sharing happiness and care with those in need,
contributing in voluntary services promotes a stronger community
bonding. We hold a strong principle that our staff can contribute
to the community by participating in voluntary services while
developing their personal capabilities such as leadership,
management and communication skills. In 2017, our community
engagement services mainly focus on contributing in children and

youth development, elderly caring and poverty alleviation.
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OPERATION PRACTICES

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Suppliers are indispensable to our value chain as their responsible
business practices are crucial in contributing to our success in the
pursuit of quality excellence and in enhancing our reputation. With
a comprehensive supply chain management mechanism, we have
been able to monitor and evaluate different aspects of their
performance including product and service quality, business ethics
by periodic assessment and collecting feedback on the supplier
performance. Periodic reviews are performed in order to
compliance. For instance, we would require the contractor to
provide a combination of supporting documents for us to perform
a background check. These documents could be the certificate of
their related products/services, maintenance manuals, health and

safety logbooks, and the warranty of their products.

During the review period, local suppliers were usually be flavoured
by overseas suppliers so that the transportation footprint was to
be minimised. The following chart demonstrates the number of the

Group’s suppliers by region for the year:

Number of Suppliers by Region
e [ ) 23 O HERE R O H
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B Hong Kong

B Asia (except Hong Kong,
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B Europe
TR
PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITIES
Customers are the foundation and motivation of the Group’s

sustainable development and the stimulus for its product
innovation. We insist on providing comprehensive customer
services and we further refined the customer satisfaction surveys
for different regional subsidiaries. With customers’ feedback on
product positioning and quality, planning, sales, business operation,
property management and customer service obtained in customer
satisfaction surveys, we can generally visualise customer
satisfaction towards the Group. Comments from our customers are
to be inspected, and a standardised complaint handling procedure

has been established to address our customers’ concerns.
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For our property development business, we focus on providing
high quality service in our business operations. Our quality
management system is certified to be in compliance with the
requirements and standards of the ISO 9001:2015 Quality
Management System, which is certified by the British Standards

Institution.

At One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced Residences, the Group places
emphasis on security of customers’ personal data and supports a
general policy of openness about how we collect, use and disclose
customers’ personal information. A copy of Privacy Policy and
Personal Information Collection Statement are placed in each hotel
room, and we strongly recommend customers take their time to

read them carefully and retain for future reference.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has not received
any notice of non-compliance in relation to data privacy laws and

regulations, such as the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

We abide by the stringent anti-corruption policies and
procurement practices governed by the Independent Commission
Against Corruption (“ICAC”) which outline the conflicts of interest,
intellectual property rights, privacy and confidentiality of
information, bribery and corruption and equal opportunities. A
whistleblowing policy and comment boxes are in place to provide
a confidential platform for employees to report issues observed
from our operations. By doing so, we are actively aware of the
ever- changing landscape of corruption and fraud. We may
establish certain policies internally to strengthen the employees’

awareness of the relevant laws and regulations.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has not received
any notice of non-compliance brought against the Group or the
employees in relation to corruption-related laws and regulations,

such as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong.
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PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY RIEHIBHEE g
ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE! IRIERIR Z
4
Unit 2017 Performance E
Efy —E-tEEE g
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) BEREREHN (EE?2) tonne CO, equivalent 336.21 >
B-EithEs 5
Other Indirect GHG Emissions (Scope 3) HitEEREREER(HE3) tonne CO, equivalent 16.36 Q
B_EthER o
GHG emissions intensity BERBHRZE kg COz/employee 1,183.83 o
AFZEthH/ 8T >
Non-hazardous waste disposal BEBYRE tonne 1,800 =
] )
Non-hazardous waste intensity BEENZE tonne/number of days 4,93 %
W,/ KE b
Zz
>
z
Recycled Materials Unit 2017 Performance 2
BEMR By “E2-tFYE "
®
Plastic B kg 82 m
Af B
Paper 4@ kg 29,614 E
Af I
Used Cooking Oil EERBHERMH tonne 61.2 I
] :
Grease trap waste W St EE ) tonne 91.3
M
Aluminum Cans R kg 100.8
N
Electronic Waste ETEN kg 50
N
Energy consumption Unit 2017 Performance
BRERE B “E-tFYE
Electricity consumption REE KWh 449,973
TR
Electricity intensity RERE kWh/employee 1,584.40
TRE/BI
Fuel Consumption — Towngas MELHE — R MJ 372,144
Fuel Intensity REERERE MJ/employee 1,310.40
M ,/E&T
Water Consumption k8 m? 819
A FK
Water Intensity AKRE m%/employee 2.88
YHK/EBT
Note et
1. The calculation of the above quantitative information is based on our best 1. i EENFAENERBE_T—+tF 95
approximation and the data available up to 31 December 2017. + - A=1+—HBItMEEEHNRELLME - g
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SOCIAL PERFORMANCE — EMPLOYMENT PRACTICE'

HERE — BREE

Unit 2017 Performance
By “Z-tEYE

Total workforce by employment type BRRERNEINALEH

Full-time 28 no. of people 269
AE

Part-time i no. of people 15
A

Total workforce by gender BERID YIS E HEH

Male S no. of people 154
AE

Female z no. of people 130
A¥

Total workforce by age group BREREIINETILY

18 — 30 years old 18— 307 no. of people 66
AE

31 —40 years old 31— 405 no. of people 56
N |

41 — 50 years old 41-505%% no. of people 59
AE

51 — 60 years old 51— 60 5% no. of people 75
AE

Over 60 years old 60 3% AL no. of people 28
A¥

Total workforce by geographical region BEHERYESNALE N

Hong Kong BB no. of people 170
AE

Mainland China R AR no. of people 114
AE

Total workforce by employee category BRETHEREINETHY

Senior Management SREBAE no. of people 4
AE

Middle Management HEEEAS no. of people 40
A¥

Junior Level IRET no. of people 225
AE

Contract/Short-term staff SN/ EEIEAR no. of people 15
AE

Average Training Hours by Gender BRI D FH IS

Male ES hours 2
N

Female g hours 5.5
N

Average Training Hours by employee category %5 T 5|89 F193E Ik

Senior Management EREEAE hours 9
N

Middle Management HEEEAE hours 3.8
N

Junior Level BIF hours 2.3
AN

Note B

1. The calculation of the above quantitative information is based on our best
approximation and the data available up to 31 December 2017.

1.
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SOCIAL PERFORMANCE — EMPLOYMENT PRACTICE’

(CONTINUED)

HERRE — BREE' (&)

Unit 2017 Performance
By —E-tFYE

Employee turnover by gender BUERBANEIR

Male S % rate 45%
Bl

Female z % rate 55%
ERild

Employee turnover by age group RERESNEIRAE

18 — 30 years old 18— 307 % rate 40%
Btk

31— 40 years old 31—405% % rate 15%
Batt

41 — 50 years old 41-507% % rate 17%
Bl

51 — 60 years old 51— 607 % rate 21%
Bl

Over 60 years old 603 A L % rate 7%
Bl

Employee turnover by geographical region it EE S HE I Hi%kE

Hong Kong BB % rate 60%
Btk

The People’s Republic of China mEARLANE % rate 40%
Batt

Work and Safety IEAZRZ

Occupational health and safety BERENZZ

Total number of work-related fatalities THEEBRTER no. of people 0
AE

Work-related fatalities rate TERERTE % rate 0%
R4

Lost days due to work injury AIGEMELNIERE no. of days 14
PN

Note ﬁEI

The calculation of the above quantitative information is based on our best

approximation and the data available up to 31 December 2017.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
CONTENT INDEX

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The following table provides an

RE HENESRETRSI

ABERBEERMEXZMAERARES L
MARAMER =/ [RE - HEREARE
1ol e - TERBURIESI S EREBTRE
ER— AR ERERENIESR  UHIIHE

overview on the general disclosures and key performance #iHEEHERR 2 ZEESIRMHEEINRER ©
indicators (“KPIs”) of various aspects under each subject area,
which are either cross-referenced to the relevant chapters of the
Review or supplementing the Review with additional information.
Description Reference Remark
it 8% i
ENVIRONMENTAL
B5

Aspect AT: EMISSIONS
BEA #H

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and

non-hazardous waste.

—REE BREBRRRAZEREHEN  mkRLBHES FEREERENNESE
M @BER ROBTHBTABEAZENERZERRHINER -

KPIA1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data

BREWEEMN  FRYEERAEEHRSE -

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (6.9.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

BRENEEN 2 RERBAHNE CUEHE) R (NER)EE (WHABESEN  B1ER
HatE) o

KPIA1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

BRENEEMN] MELEEEENEE UNHE) R (WER)ZE (NMUEESEN
HRHEEE) o

KPIA1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

BRENERML FELEEEZEVEE QAR R (WER)ZE (WUSEREN -8
R E) o

KPIA1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved

BREWEEMNS HEREERENRERRASHRR -

KPIA1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction

initiatives and results achieved

BRENEGMNG BIREREREZERNNGE AEELENERRAEHR

Protecting Our Environment

Performance Data Summary

RAUBRE

Performance Data Summary

RRHUBREE

Protecting Our Environment
REREZ
Protecting Our Environment

RERE

Pages 81-84

E81EE

We do not generate significant air
emissions in our operation. Please
refer to Performance Data Summary
for our greenhouse gas emissions
data.
BANEEL BRI RABRER
Hh - BERMNAEERES
HESHRERERRARE
WE -

Page 82

EOE

Hazardous waste generation and
handling are not material to our
operations.
BIMWEBLESREREN
MEENEE

Page 83

E8E

Pages 81-83
FOERE

Page 83

E8E




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE B, HEHNEERNTES(E)
CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED)

Description Reference Remark
it 2% i
ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

R (&)

Aspect A2: USE OF RESOURCES
EEA : EFHIER
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General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw Protecting Our Environment  Pages 85-86
materials
— R BHERER (BEER KR EMEAR) HEE o RERR EHEHE
KPIA2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) intotal  Performance Data Summary ~ Page 84
(kWh in"000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)
BREWEEN REHRAINEER /RBEERWE  fh)ARKE UTETEE XRUERE H4E
FE)REE (MUSESEN  BERHEHE) o
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per Performance Data Summary  Page 84
facility)
BRENEEN? BRKEREE (MUSESEN  BERHHE) o RRUBERE £845
KPIA2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved Protecting Our Environment ~ Pages 85-86
BRENEREAN HlRERANRTEARAEKE RERS FEHEHE
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Protecting Our Environment ~ Page 87
efficiency initiatives and results achieved
BRENERAL  HEREERKR LB EARE  UREARKRETEARAERE - RERR $87H
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with We do not generate significant
reference to per unit produced packaging material waste in our
operation.
BRENEENS HERFRAEEMRNEE UNHE) R (NER) BEEEtLE - %ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%%&@%%ﬂ
=D

Aspect A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
EEA3: RERAAER
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural  Protecting Our Environment ~ Pages 86-87

TESOUrces

—RIRE BEBRTARRERARERERERFBNEE - RERZ EL XA

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural Protecting Our Environment ~ Pages 85-87
resources and the actions taken to manage them

BREWEEN  HAXRITDHRERAAERNEAVERCKNERAHEFENTY o RERE FHEE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

BEREIER

Aspect B1: EMPLOYMENT

BEBI - E

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and () compliance with relevant laws and regulations  Caring for Qur Employees Page 87
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, ~ and Community
recruitment and promation, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

— R E ERTMRAE BERER  TERY BRY - FERE . 2t R BEEERLE FOE
BERUAREMFEREAN : @B%K  ROBTHBRTABEATEN 99
HEEERRANER o J
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region Performance Data Summary ~ Page 88 ®
7R ERER  FRANRMEIINESLEY - L .
B EMIEEBI RRUBRE E
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region Performance Data Summary ~ Page 88 2
BRENEER2 MR FRANRBEISNEESRALE RRUBRE $88E o
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Description Reference Remark
it 2% i
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

ERRZIER ()

Aspect B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY
EER : REEZE

General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations  Caring for Qur Employees

that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working and Community
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards
— MR ERRUZ2TERERREEEREBEMREN  QBEK ROE BEEERUE
FHETABEAYENREEERRAINER -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Performance Data Summary ~ Page 89
BRENESR] RIFBREMETHABRILE- RBRYERE £898
KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work Injury Performance Data Summary ~ Page 89
BRENISER? BEIFBAIFEH- ®AYERE £89E
KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are Caring for Our Employees Page 89
implemented and monitored and Community
BRENIEZR] HEFEANBEREEZ2ER  ARBERHTRERLE BEEERILE £808

Aspect B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
EEB3 : #RRE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees” knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. — Caring for Our Employees Page 90

Description of training activities and Community
—REE BHRAEERTIERENABREAENEE « HIEEE HREERME F0F
KPIB3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category Performance Data Summary ~ Page 90
BRENIEER  RURRESER(WSAERE  PAEEES ASNTIEEEIL o RRUBHE £908
KPIB3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category  Performance Data Summary — Page 90
BRENWIESR?2 RUNRESERNE? BEEETHIIINTIIRE RRYERE ELVIEY

Aspect B4: LABOUR STANDARDS

EEB4: #TEE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations  Caring for Our Employees Page 87
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced and Community

[abour
—REE BEBLEIRRHEIN  QBE ROBTHBTAGEAYEN BEESRLE HE
HEEERRHNER o
KPIB4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced Caring for Our Employees The child and forced labour issues
labour and Community are not material to our operations.
BREWEER HARNBREANERIBREIREHET - HREERLE BMNEBLESRERET
FRHS THERRR
KPIB4.2 Description of step taken to eliminate such practices when discovered Caring for Our Employees The child and forced labour issues
and Community are not material to our operations.
BREWEER? HATBRRERERWEREREBERARRNSR o HREERME BANEBLRSRERET

MBHZE THNERER

Aspect B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
EEBs  HEHREE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Operation Practices Page 93

—REE ERHERNREREERREE 2EE ERE)

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region Operation Practices Page 93

BREMIERER kMBS NHRESHE o 2EE £03E

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the  Operation Practices Page 93
practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

BEyiESee HAERERAMERNES  nEITERENNUEERHE  UREE 2EEHR £BE

BHINSITRERR %




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
CONTENT INDEX (CONTINUED)

IRE - HER

EBRERSI(H)

Description Reference Remark
it 2% et
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
EREREIER(E)
Aspect B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
BEBS : EmEF
General Disclosure Information on:(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations  Operation Practices Pages 93-94
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services provided
— % ERMRUERNREENRRERZ2  BY EBRABSEURENS 2E8K FRZEUE
EN QBE ROBFHBRTABEAZENERLZERRHINESR -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health Operation Practices There were no recalls concerning the
reasons. provision.
BRENIESR CEICERXERAHTRZ2EREEMMARKNASLL EEER TER
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt  Operation Practices There were no validated complaints
with received during the reporting review
period.
BRENIESR. BHEENERRRENRFEAUREESLE ZEEH ¢§§§%ﬁ§EWﬂﬁ%w
AT ©
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights  Operation Practices Intellectual property rights are not
material to our operations.
BRENISER] HAREERRELNBEEFHENEN - 2EEH BRNEBHRARENZER
WRERFE o
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Operation Practices Recall procedures are not relevant to
0ur operations.
BREWIEERY HAEERTARREREWER - EEEHK %%55@&%%¥ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
e ©
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are Operation Practices Pages 93-94
implemented and monitored
BRENIERBS HIUEEEERRERMBEE  UREBHTRERLE EEER FRZEUE
Aspect B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION
EBEB . RES
General Disclosure Information on () the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations  Operation Practices Page 94
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering
—REE BEMLER BE BERAREN  QBK  ROETHRTAGE 2EEK FUE
FENEELERROINES o
KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Operation Practices There were no non- compliance
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its
employees during the review period.
BREWEEE RERBRERTAZEEEREYCELENESHARENEERF EEEY HELTHRN AEERHEET
AER TRERERTA
KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are Operation Practices Page %4
implemented and monitored
BRENIER HARSERREGER  ARBEHTRERELE EEENR FUE
Aspect B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
EEHBS : HtERE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities Giving Back to the Community ~ Page 91
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities” interests
—REE BEUHESHRTREEMELEZEARREERIDEZEHE OEHE FNE
FIRHEER o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (¢.g. education, environmental concerns, labour needs, Giving Back to the Community ~ Pages 91-92
health, culture, sport)
BRENIEER DISHEE(NEE RESE HIEXR #F Ut EE) - EEHLE FNENE
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area Giving Back to the Community ~ Pages 91-92
BREWEER? AEIHEMBAER(WEERKH) o EHLE FNERNE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A& & #

Asat7 March 2018 R=Z—\&F=AtH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Lit Chi

(Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston

(Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher

(also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung)
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Liu Lit Chung, MBBS (Lon), MRCP(UK), F.R.C.P. (Lon)
Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,

Assoc. AlA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, GBM, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.

Mr. Tong Tsin Ka, FCA (AUST.), FCPA, FCIS
(retired on 9 May 2017)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John, PhD, BBS, J.P.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, Msc(Econ), BA(Hons), CPA (Canada),
CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric, CACAust), CPA (Practising), CFE
(appointed on 7 March 2018)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lee Wai Hung

(ZE  EFBEERITHARE)
BeErE
BIEFREE)
I S
(MRBRBEBLEZEREE)
FEELLE
EBITEE

BRI BB MBBS (Lon), MRCP (UK), FER.C.P.(Lon)
FFER IR
BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,
Assoc. AlA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD
BIARITES
BIRE1E L 6BM, GBS, OBE LLB (HK), J.P.
EERR LA FCA (AUST.), FCPA, FCIS
(RZZ—tFHANARE)
2SRRI E
SRS 18 I Pho, BBS UP.
BRER AN L A Msc(Econ), BA(Hons), CPA (Canada),
CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)
BB RRIT A CAAUsSD, CPA (Practising), CFE
(R=ZZE—NF=AtHZE)
ATRE

FERERLE



AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric (appointed on 7 March 2018)

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric (appointed on 7 March 2018)

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Ms. Cavior Liu (Secretary)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

Executive Management Committee
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston
Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher

Mr. Lee Wai Hung

EZEEE
WKL (F/F)
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[ 85 IR e £
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A& & #

As at 7 March 2018 —N\E=A+tH

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT HEADS

Ms. Eva Liu

Mr. Luk Chi Chung

Ms. Cavior Liu

Ms. Yan Yuet Lam, Charmaine

Mr. Pan Sze Yuen, Cecil

Mr. Jan Kwok Wai, Kim

Mr. Tong Tse Hon

Ms. Hung Shuk Yee

MANAGERS

Mr. Tam King Hung, Peter

Ms. Tsia Fung Yee, Tina

Ms. Wong Yuk Man

Ms. Cheng Suet Kiu

Mr. Wong Ming Kwong

Mr. Ho Chi Chung

Mr. Pui Yuk, Ray

Head of Property Development

Head of Finance Management and

Information Technology

Head of Human Resources

Head of China Budget Hotel

Head of Project Development

Head of China Property

Development

Head of Leasing

Head of Property and Facilities

Management

Senior Project Manager

Accounting Manager

Accounting Manager

Manager of Finance Management

and Information Technology

Maintenance Manager

Project Manager

Property Manager
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Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited BEIRITEBE AR AT (-3'
z
China CITIC Bank International Limited FFERTT (BIFR) AR A A 5
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Chong Hing Bank Limited BIEIRIT AR A F] g
e o 78t
Credit Suisse AG Hong Kong Branch T EERITRMODERATEE DT i
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited ERIFET(BB)BRAF]
Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited BHLIT(ER)BRAA]
Hang Seng Bank Limited BEARITERA A
Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited MR FEIRITERAA
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited FEEKZIRITERA A
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited BITRTT (FB)BR AT
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited KA EeH =% RUFJIERTER AR
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited EB EBELIRITER AR
United Overseas Bank Limited RERITAERAA
Wing Lung Bank Limited XIEIRITERA A
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A& & #

Asat7 March 2018 R=Z—\F=A+H

REGISTERED OFFICE

23rd Floor Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2983 7777 Fax: (852) 2983 7725

Email: info@Ichi.com.hk

GUANGZHOU OFFICE
18A Office Tower A

339 Huan Shi Dong Road

Yue Xiu District

Guangzhou, PRC

Tel: (8620) 8375 8993 Fax: (8620) 8375 8071

Email: guangzhou@Ichi.com.cn

SHANGHAI OFFICE
Room 3105, Chong Hing Finance Center

288 Nanjing Road West
Shanghai, PRC
Tel: (8621) 6359 1000 Fax: (8621) 6327 6299

Email: shanghai@lchi.com.cn

FOSHAN OFFICE
First Phase, The Grand Riviera

1 Guilong Road

Luocun Social Management Office, Shishan Town

Nanhai District, Foshan

Guangdong Province, PRC

Tel: (86757) 6386 0888 Fax: (86757) 6386 2218

Email: foshan@lchi.com.cn

ot i 3% 38 B2
B

EEEh =T %
BIERITHR O =+ =12
B E 0 (852) 29837777 {BHE : (852) 2983 7725

B : info@lchi.com.hk

&% | 3% 55 B2
o B T

IRMRKE = =%
AHIEIBAE
i 0 (8620) 83758993 {EH : (8620) 83758071

B : guangzhou@lchi.com.cn
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& 0 (8621) 63591000 fEE : (8621) 6327 6299

B : shanghai@lchi.com.cn
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R REMIER — A

B3 1 (86757) 6386 0888 {EH : (86757) 6386 2218

B : foshan@Ichi.com.cn



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAER[BM

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. LIU LIT CHI

aged 78, is the Chairman of the Board of the Company since 9
August 2017. Mr. Liu has been serving as the Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 26 February
2014. Mr. Liu has been an Executive Director of the Company since
its incorporation in 1970. Mr. Liu also serves as the Chairman of
Executive Management Committee and Nomination Committee as
well as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Liu, who was educated in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom, is
also a director of a number of other companies in Hong Kong and
elsewhere. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any
directorship in any other listed public companies in the previous
three years. Mr. Liu is the brother of Dr. Liu Lit Chung, an uncle of

Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher.

MR. LIU KAM FAI, WINSTON

BA., MSc.

aged 51, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company
since 1997. He was re-designated as the Deputy Managing Director
of the Company in August 2008. Mr. Liu holds a Master degree in
Economics from the University of London, specialising in Finance
and Macro Economic Policy. Mr. Liu oversees the Company’s
strategic development, project implementation and business
operations. Mr. Liu also served as a member of Corporate
Governance Committee and Executive Management Committee as
well as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. His
other directorship in public listed companies in the last three years
includes Freeman Financial Corporation Limited, which is a public
company listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any other
listed public companies in the last three years. Mr. Liu is a nephew
of Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a cousin of Mr. Liu Kwun
Shing, Christopher.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENOSREEAEREN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MR. LIU KWUN SHING, CHRISTOPHER

aged 42, is an Executive Director of the Company, a position which
he has held since August 2008 following a re-designation from his
previous role since 2000 as Non-executive Director of the
Company and alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung (who is a
Non-executive Director of the Company). Mr. Liu also serves as the
Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee and a member
of the Executive Management Committee as well as a director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu is a holder of a
Master of Arts degree in Jurisprudence from the University of
Oxford. He is also a qualified solicitor in both Hong Kong and
England & Wales. Prior to joining the Company on a full-time basis,
he was a partner of Deacons in Hong Kong, with a primary focus in
corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions and private equity
matters, and currently remains an advisory legal counsel of the
international law firm. Mr. Liu is a member of the Foshan Municipal
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (CPPCC) as well as a director of both Beijing Chinese
Overseas Friendship Association and Shanghai Chinese Overseas
Friendship Association (COFA). Mr. Liu is also a director of the
Federation of Hong Kong Foshan Association Limited, Hong Kong
GuangFoZhao Fraternity Association Limited, the Federation of
Hong Kong Chiu Chow Community Organization, Hong Kong Chiu
Chow Chamber of Commerce, an executive director of Guangdong
Chamber of Foreign Investors, a Vice-chairman of Foshan
Investment Chamber of Private Enterprises, a board member of
Entrepreneurs’ Organisation (Hong Kong), a member of Hong
Kong- Shanghai Economic Development Association Limited and
a director of Shanghai Huang Pu District Association of Enterprises
with Foreign Investment. With a passion for the betterment of
society and education, he is also a member of the Institutional
Review Board of Hong Kong University/Hospital Authority Hong
Kong West Cluster and the Joint Chinese University of Hong Kong
— New Territories East Cluster Clinical Research Ethics Committee
as well as a school manager of Liu Po Shan Memorial College. Save
as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any
other listed public companies in the previous three years. He is the
son of Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a nephew of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, a cousin of Mr.

Liu Kam Fai, Winston.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. LEE WAI HUNG

LLB, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ATIHK, MBA, PgD in CRE

aged 55, is an Executive Director and Company Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Lee is also serving as a member of Corporate
Governance Committee and Executive Management Committee as
well as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Lee holds a Bachelor of Law degree, a Master of Business
Administration degree and Postgraduate Diploma in Construction
and Real Estate. He is also a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (Practising) and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Before joining
the Company, Mr. Lee had worked in an international accounting
firm for over six years. Mr. Lee has over twenty eight years of
experience in corporate finance and accounting. Mr. Lee joined the
Company in 1992 and was appointed as director in 1994. Mr. Lee is
primarily responsible for the Company’s finance and secretarial

matters.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
DR. LIU LIT CHUNG

MBBS (Lon), MRCP (UK), F.R.C.P. (Lon)

aged 68, became a director in 1979 and also the Deputy Managing
Director of the Company for over ten years. He holds a Medical
degree from King’s College Hospital, London University and is a
Member of the Royal College of Physicians of the United Kingdom.
He was awarded the Fellowship of Royal College of Physician of
London for his work in Motor Neuron Disease. In 2005, he was
further awarded the Honorary Fellowship by the Hong Kong
College of Physicians. Dr. Liu is the brother of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, an
uncle of Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and the father of Liu Kwun

Shing, Christopher.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENOSREEAEREN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. KHO ENG TJOAN, CHRISTOPHER
BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC, Assoc. AlA,

Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD

aged 55, served as Non-executive Director of the Company since
May 2011 and he is now serving as a member of Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Kho
holds a Bachelor of Environmental Studies degree on Urban and
Regional Planning and a Master of Architecture degree. He is an
Authorized Person under the Buildings Ordinance, a Registered
Architect under the Architects Registration Ordinance, a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects, a corporate member of
Royal Institute of British Architects, an associate member of Royal
Australian Institute of Architects, a member of Royal Architectural
Institute of Canada and an associate member of American Institute
of Architects. Mr. Kho was an Executive Committee of the
University of Waterloo Alumni Association and a Committee
Member of the University of Manitoba Alumni Association from
1989 to 1990. During the year from 1997 to 2003, he was a Director
and Council Member of the Wah Yan (Hong Kong) Past Students
Association Limited. Mr. Kho is also a Committee Member of the
Professional Committee of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian
Associations since 2009. Furthermore, Mr. Kho is appointed as a
Council Member of Fukien Chamber of Commerce and Director of

Fukien Chamber of Commerce Education Fund Limited in 2017.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
DR. CHENG MO CHI, MOSES
GBM, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.

aged 68, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in August 1999 and he has served as Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng is a practising solicitor and
the Consultant of Messrs. P.C. Woo & Co. He is also serving as
Chairman of The Insurance Authority and Chairman of the Process
Review Panel For Securities and Futures Commission. Dr. Cheng
was a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong. He is the
Founder Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors of
which he is now the Honorary President and Chairman Emeritus.
He was also the President of International Alliance of Practising

Lawyers.

In addition to his directorship in the Company, Dr. Cheng currently
holds directorships in China Mobile Limited, China Resources Beer
(Holdings) Company Limited (Formerly known as China Resources
Enterprise, Limited), K. Wah International Holdings Limited,
Guangdong Investment Limited, Tian An China Investments
Company Limited, Towngas China Company Limited and Kader
Holdings Company Limited, all being public listed companies in
Hong Kong. Dr. Cheng’s other directorship in public listed
companies in the last three years includes ARA Asset Management
Limited, which was formerly listed in Singapore. Save as disclosed
above, Dr. Cheng did not hold any directorship, whether in Hong
Kong or overseas, in any other public listed companies in the

previous 3 years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkeREBEAEBBN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

MR. AU KAM YUEN, ARTHUR

aged 78, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 3 December 2012 and he also serves as a member
of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Au studied Law in
Sydney and London respectively. He was admitted as a solicitor in
England in 1975 and in Hong Kong in 1976. He is a sole proprietor
of Arthur Au & Co., a firm of solicitors established since 1979. Mr.
Au is a Notary Public and was a member of the Notary Public
Disciplinary Tribunal Panel. He is also a School Management
Committee Member of the Clementi Secondary School. He now
serves as legal adviser to the Association of Hong Kong Nursing
Staff (previously named as the Association of Government Nursing
Staff) and The New Territories North District Manufacturers
Association of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Au is an active Rotarian, he
was a District Governor of Rotary International District 3450 (Hong
Kong/Macao/Mongolia) in 1990-1991.

DR. MA HUNG MING, JOHN
PhD, BBS, J.P.

aged 51, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 3 December 2012 and he has also served as a
member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee of the Company. Dr. Ma
currently is the executive director of Carrianna Group Holdings
Company Limited, this is a public company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He has extensive experience in
the catering industry, as well as property management and
development. He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS)
from The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in 2003 and a Honorary Doctorate of Philosophy by
Morrison University in 2004. As for the community service, Dr. Ma
was the Chairman of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals for the year
2002. He is a member of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Advisory
Board, the Standing Committee of Shenzhen Committee of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and the
President of Youth Council. He also serves as the Vice Chairman of
Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organisations,
Vice President of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce
and the Vice President of Kowloon Federation of Associations. On
1 July 2015, Dr. Ma was appointed to Justices of the Peace by The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
Save as disclosed above, Dr. Ma did not hold any directorship in

any other public listed companies in the last three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)
MR. CHENG YUK WO

Msc (Econ), BA(Hons), CPA (Canada), CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA(Practising)

aged 57, was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 7 March 2014 and he has also served as member
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng obtained a Master of
Science (Economics) degree in Accounting and Finance from
London School of Economics, England and a Bachelor of Arts
(Honours) degree in Accounting from University of Kent, England.
He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada and the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Cheng has over 20 years’ of expertise in
accounting, finance and corporate advisory services. Mr. Cheng is
currently an independent nonexecutive director of Chia Tai
Enterprises International Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited, C.P.
Lotus Corporation, CSI Properties Limited, HKC (Holdings) Limited,
Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, CPMC Holdings Limited, Top
Spring International Holdings Limited, DTXS Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited, Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited,
Somerley Capital Holdings Limited and Kidsland International
Holdings Limited, the abovementioned companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. His other directorship in public
companies in the last three years include Imagi International
Holdings Limited, which is a public company listed on the Stock
Exchange in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheng has
not held any directorship in any other public companies the
securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong

Kong or overseas in the last three years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENOSREEAEREN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)
MR. TONG TSUN SUM, ERIC

CA (Aust), CPA (Practising), CFE

aged 47, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the audit and the nomination committee of the
Company in March 2018. He obtained a Bachelor of Economics
from University of Sydney, Australia, a Master of Commerce in
Professional Accounting from Macquarie University, Australia. He is
a member of CPA Australia, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand. He is also a member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, the Governance Institute of

Australia and the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MS. EVA LIU

MA (Cantab), DipArch (Kingston), MA (City), ARB (UK), RIBA

aged 54, Head of Property Development. Ms. Liu is a Chartered
Architect (UK), holding Master of Arts Degrees, in Architecture
from the University of Cambridge, and Property Valuation And
Law from The City University in London. She was in architectural
practice in England before joining the Company in 1999. She is the

sister of Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston.

MR. LUK CHI CHUNG

FCCA, CPA (Practising), MAEB

aged 50, Head of Finance Management and Information
Technology. Mr. Luk is a professional accountant, holding Master
of Arts Degree in Electronic Business and has over twenty eight
years of experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Luk joined the
Company in 1995 and is in charge of Finance Management

Department and Information Technology Department.

MS. CAVIOR LIV

aged 53, Head of Human Resources. Ms. Liu holds a Bachelor
degree in Psychology from University of British Columbia. She
joined the Company in 2000, in charge of Human Resources &
Administration Department. Ms. Liu is a school manager of Liu Po
Shan Memorial College. She is the sister of Mr. Liu Kam Fai,

Winston.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

MS. YAN YUET LAM, CHARMAINE

aged 43, Head of China Budget Hotel. Ms. Yan joined the Company
in 2007. Ms. Yan was educated in Vancouver, Canada. Before
joining the Company, Ms. Yan had worked with various mainland
companies at senior management post for leading and handling
numerous successful real estate projects including the Shanghai
Forest Manor, one of the top residential villa projects in Shanghai.
In addition, Ms. Yan has extensive experience in business club
operations both in Beijing and Shanghai. Ms. Yan is currently in

charge of the Company’s budget hotel business.

MR. PAN SZE YUEN, CECIL

MA (Cantab), DipArch (Cantab), RIBA

aged 54, Head of Project Department. Mr. Pan is a Chartered
Architect (UK), holding Master of Arts Degree in Architecture from
the University of Cambridge, and has over twenty years of
experience as a practicing architect in both UK and Hong Kong.

Mr. Pan joined the Company in 2006.

MR. JAN KWOK WAI, KIM

BEng (Civil), CEng, MICE

aged 49, Head of China Property Development. Mr. Jan joined the
Company in 2008. Mr. Jan is a professional engineer with over
twenty years of construction and project management experience
representing Clients, Consultants and Contractors on both private-
sector and government funded projects in China, Hong Kong and

Macau.

MR. TONG TSE HON

BBA (First Class Honor), CFP

aged 49, Head of Leasing, holding a Bachelor (First Class Honor)
Degree in Business Administration and a Certified Financial Planner
conferred by the Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong. Mr.

Tong joined the Company in 2004.

MS. HUNG SHUK YEE

aged 53, Head of Property and Facilities Management. Ms. Hung
holds a Master Degree in Business Administration of the University
of Hull. She has over twenty years of experience in general
administration, procurement and facilities management in the
banking sector. Ms. Hung joined the company in 2016 and is in

charge of the Property and Facilities Management Department.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING BRRAFAS B S

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of Liu

Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) for the year 2018
(“2018 AGM™) will be held at 27th Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre,

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 15 May 2018

at 1:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1.

To receive and adopt the audited consolidated Financial
Statements together with Reports of the Directors and of the
Auditor of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2017.

To approve the payment of the final cash dividend of
HK$0.42 per share for the year ended 31 December 2017
(“2017 Final Dividend”).

To re-elect (a) Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, (b) Mr. Lee Wai
Hung, (c) Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, (d) Mr. Tong Tsun Sum,
Eric as directors of the Company and (e) to fix the directors’

remuneration for the year ending 31 December 2018.

To re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor
of the Company and to authorise the Board of Directors to

fix their remuneration.

As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or

without modifications the following ordinary resolutions and

special resolution:
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ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS I ifi iR =

“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company
to Buy-back shares of the Company on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) or
on any other stock exchange on which the shares of the
Company may be listed and which is recognised by the
Securities and Futures Commission in Hong Kong and
the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to and in
accordance with all applicable laws and the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any other stock
exchange (as amended from time to time), be and is

hereby generally and unconditionally approved;
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6.

(o))

©

the aggregate number of shares of the Company which
the Company is authorised to buy back pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10%
of the aggregate number of issued shares of the
Company as at the date of passing of this resolution,

and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and
for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of

this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting

of the Company;

(ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the articles of association of the
Company or the Companies Ordinance (Chapter

622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to be held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting.”

“THAT:

(@)

(o))

subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company
to allot, issue and deal with additional shares in the
capital of the Company and to make or grant offers,
agreements and options (including bonds, warrants,
debentures, notes and any securities which carry rights
to subscribe for or are convertible into shares of the
Company) which would or might require the exercise of
such power be and is hereby generally and

unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) to make or grant offers,
agreements and options (including bonds, warrants,
debentures, notes and any securities which carry rights
to subscribe for or are convertible into shares of the
Company) which would or might require the exercise of

such power after the end of the Relevant Period;

(b
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING BRRAFAS B S

©)

(d)

the aggregate number of shares allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) and issued by the
directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a
Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) the exercise of
any rights of subscription or conversion under any
warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and any securities
of the Company which carry rights to subscribe for or
are convertible into shares of the Company; (iii) an issue
of shares of the Company upon the exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to any options granted
under any share option scheme adopted by the
Company; (iv) an issue of shares as scrip dividends or
similar arrangement providing for the allotment of
shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on
shares of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association
from time to time; or (v) specific authority granted by
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting,
shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate number of issued
shares of the Company at the date of passing of this
resolution, and the said approval shall be limited

accordingly; and
for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of

this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting

of the Company; or

(ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the articles of association of the
Company or the Companies Ordinance (Chapter

622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to be held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting; and
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7.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a
period fixed by the directors of the Company to holders
of shares or any class of shares of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the
Company on a fixed record date in proportion to their
then holdings of such shares as at that date (subject to
such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors
of the Company may deem necessary or expedient in
relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to
any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the
requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any
stock exchange in, any territory applicable to the

Company).”

“THAT conditional upon Ordinary Resolutions Nos. 5 and 6
set out in the notice convening this meeting being passed,
the general mandate granted to the directors of the
Company to exercise the powers of the Company to allot,
issue and deal with additional shares pursuant to Ordinary
Resolution No. 6 set out in the notice convening this meeting
be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto of an
amount representing the aggregate number of shares of the
Company bought back by the Company under the authority
granted pursuant to Ordinary Resolution No. 5 set out in the
notice convening this meeting, provided that such extended
amount of shares so bought back shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate number of issued shares of the Company at the

date of passing of this resolution.”

[EMB] EARRZESNE
R MRS E L8k A BB 5
REIBR B M2 AR BB A
MERIBRDZHEA  BEER
% B2 FER L PR 2 B E R (HE
ARRRZEFA R THEBERE
EZREARARB ZEMBDEE
B EA D 2 MR B HEERE
MRAUEERBRENTFRS
PrZRER FHRERRME
HEE ZBBRNITHRA R
BE) - |

(BN S ARG B EMAFE S 6IEER
RERERBE  BAAAREFER
FTARGBEMERBFECBL BRE
RATEARA RN AR - BITHE
ERHz—MEE EEESNEER
ARBRBAREREMHBESHER
RBEET 2 RERIEEARRE 2 KRG
2E - Mz EERHEE TEEB
BARFTRIRFRBBAPEEITR
DHEEZ10% ° |

SPECIAL RESOLUTION 455l i Rix

“THAT:

The current Article 113 of the articles of association of the

Company as extracted below:

“A Managing Director shall not, while he continues to hold
that office, be subject to retirement under Articles 105 and
106 hereof, but, subject to the provisions of any contract
between him and the Company, he shall be subject to the
same provisions as to resignation and removal as the other
directors of the Company, and he shall, ipso facto and
immediately, cease to be a Managing Director if he ceases to

hold the office of director from any cause.”

be amended and replaced entirely by the following new
Article 113:

8.

E

WITARRIEZERMAAENIERERLOT
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING BRRAFAS B S

“A Managing Director shall be subject to retirement under
Articles 105 and 106 hereof as other directors of the
Company. Subject to the provisions of any contract between
him and the Company, he shall be subject to the same
provisions as to resignation and removal as the other
directors of the Company. He shall, ipso facto and
immediately, cease to be a Managing Director if he ceases to

hold the office of director from any cause.”;

save for the aforesaid, all other articles of the articles of
association of the Company remain unchanged; and the
company secretary of the Company be and is authorised to

deal with all relevant procedual requirements.”

To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

Liu Lit Chi

Chairman, Managing Director

and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018

Notes:

1.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM is
entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote in his
stead. A member who is the holder of two or more shares may appoint
more than one proxy to attend on the same occasion. A proxy need not
be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other
authority (if any) under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy
thereof, must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not less
than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any
adjournment thereof.

[R5 AN Z 12 10515 F1 5106 1§ 9 48
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Record dates of entitlements of the Members:

(a) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the 2018 AGM to be held on Tuesday, 15 May
2018, whose name should be recorded in the Company’s
shareholders book on Tuesday, 15 May 2018. The Register of
Members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 10 May
2018 to Tuesday, 15 May 2018, both days inclusive. In order to qualify
for attending and voting at the 2018 AGM, all share certificates with
completed transfer forms either overleaf or separately must be
lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 9 May 2018.

(b) For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for the
2017 Final Dividend, whose name should be recorded in the
Company'’s shareholders book on Friday, 25 May 2018. The Register
of Members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 23
May 2018 to Friday, 25 May 2018, both days inclusive. In order to
qualify for the final dividend, all share certificates with completed
transfer forms either overleaf or separately must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s Registrars, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 21 May 2018.

The registration for attending the above meeting will start at 10:30 am on
15 May 2018.

The Chinese translation of this notice is for reference only, and in case of
any inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.

If a Typhoon Signal No. 8 or above is hoisted or a Black Rainstorm
Warning Signal is in force at or at any time after 800 am on the date of
the meeting, the meeting will be postponed or adjourned. The Company
will post an announcement on the Company website (www.lchi.com.hk)
and HKEXnews website (www.hkexnews.hk) to notify shareholders of the
date, time and place of the rescheduled meeting.

The meeting will be held as scheduled when an Amber or a Red Rainstorm
Warning Signal is in force. Shareholders should decide on their own
whether they would attend the meeting under bad weather condition
bearing in mind their own situations.

A circular containing further information on the proposals regarding the (i)
re-election of Directors; (ii) general mandates for the buy back and issue
of shares and (iii) Amendment to Articles of Association will be sent to
shareholders today along with the Company’s 2017 Annual Report.

As at the date hereof, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises
Executive Directors: Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman, Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston (Deputy Managing
Director), Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher (also alternate director to Dr.
Liu Lit Chung) and Mr. Lee Wai Hung; Non-executive Directors: Dr. Liu Lit
Chung and Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher; and Independent Non-
executive Directors: Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur,
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric.

3

5.
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MARKET PRICE MOVEMENT AND MARKET CAPITALIZATION CHART
mEEZRTEBEBX

Closing Price per Share & AU

Last Trading Closing Price per Share Marketing Capitalization
Date of Each Month it il ] March 2016 to December 2017
SRBHXHH (HKS 355 (HKS in millon 4 & & 7T) Hif:%giiﬂii?*t¢+j
29/1/2016 8.400 3,180 14
29/2/2016 8.620 3,263
12
31/3/2016 8.840 3,347
29/4/2016 8.760 3,316 10
31/5/2016 8.900 3,369
30/6/2016 9.140 3,460 8
29/7/2016 9.660 3,667
6
31/8/2016 11.400 4,316
30/9/2016 11.100 4,202 4
31/10/2016 10.960 4,149 ol - ol
S EHE B § E H
2 o< G~ 2 = bd b
30/11/2016 10.800 4,089 g E B E ~ ~
3012/2016 10.380 3930 = E B E = g g S
0
2111/2017 10.760 4,074
28/2/2017 11.180 4,233
31/3/2017 11.100 4,202 Market Capitalization T1{&
March 2016 to December 2017
28/4/2017 12.280 4,649 :gfﬁiz\ﬁiizgjﬁi"':ﬁ
HK$ in Million &% — B & 7T
31/5/2017 12.080 4,573 6,000
30/6/2017 12.020 4,551
317712017 12.920 4,891 5,000
31/8/2017 12.780 4,838
29/9/2017 13,080 4,952 G
31/10/2017 13.400 5,073
301112017 13520 5118 S0
29/12/2017 13.500 5,111
2,000
, ; v 1,000 e 2 S 2 g
note: Closing price (HK$) are extracted from the web site of The Stock G [ Ge] I ST T
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.(Stock code: 00194) g g g g
HisE BT R EEEA X BHERA RSN - (REHRI - 00194) SIS = B



LIU CHONG HING GROUP SIMPLIFIED CORPORATE STRUCTURE CHART
2 Al B 55 B i b 2R 18 B

As at 31 December 2017
R-E—tF+-A=t+-A

ALBA HOLDINGS LIMITED LIU’S HOLDINGS LIMITED OTHER INVESTORS

EESEARAR BREEERQF HipiREE

16.64% 34.95% 48.41%

*LIU CHONG HING
INVESTMENT LIMITED

*BRIESEERAR

Property Property Property Trading & Hotel
Investment Development Management Manufacturing Business

MERE LUE 335 MEEE HEERRER B

. *ONE-EIGHT-ONE Liu Chong Hing Maanshan Gaoke Hanting Express-
Chong Hing Hotel & Serviced Property Management Magnetic Material Guangzhou,
Bank Centre Residences & Agency Limited Company Limited Yue Xiu Pan Fu
AIRRATHO *ONE-EIGHT-ONE BAIRYLEER SEI AN SEERE
BERBHER TS REERAF MRERA R M AR

The Grand Riviera Guangzhou Wealth Good
. Property Management
Chong Yip Centre ‘Fosr‘1an+ Company Limited
e ZippitE s
JE M3
(#) NEEBHRAT

100% 90% 100%

Fairview Court
EEm

100%

Chong Hing Square
Rl E S

100%

Chong Hing
Finance Center,
Shanghai

LBRAIESR P

100%

Japan Warehouses * Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BARE * HREEESHARSIERAR LD
** Formerly known as Western Harbour Centre
 FIRES L

50%
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

KEBEEYER

As at 31 December 2017 A=F—+&+=-F=+—H

Description

it

Interest in

the property
attributable
to the Group
AEEEEZ
MERER

Approximate
site area

(sq. )
BAHEER
(FER)

Total gross

floor area

(sq. ft)
BEZENER
(FAR)

Existing use

BRAR

Investment properties
REWF

Hong Kong:

&8

1. Chong Hing Bank Centre
24 Des Voeux Road Central

AIERAT O
fREE T 245

2. Chong Yip Centre

402-404 Des Voeux Road West

RIEES

EERIE T 402-404 3

3. Fairview Court

94 Repulse Bay Road

EEH
RIETE 945,

4. The Westwood
8 Belcher's Street
FAEH
BERFHSHR

100%

100%

100%

10%

7,100

32,400

30,000

110,000

54,000

26,000

221,900

C/P

RIP

C/P

411,900

Kowloon and New Territories:

NEERHR :

5. Chong Hing Square
601 Nathan Road, Mongkok

AIEES

I /B K& 601 5%

6. Bonsun Industrial Building
364-366 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan

BRIXAE

8D 1 364-366 5%

7. Chatham Place

388 Chatham Road North, Hung Hom

AES

AR RE T 38855

100%

100%

10%

12,300

18,000

182,000

8,200

61,000

C/P

251,200




Description

it

Interest in

the property
attributable
to the Group
AEEEEZ
NEER

Approximate
site area

(sq. t)
BAHEER
(FHR)

Total gross

floor area

(sq. ft)
BEZENEE
(FRR)

Existing use

BR A%

Investment properties
People’s Republic of China:
FE\RAFE :

8. Chong Hing Finance Center
No. 288 Nanjing Road West
Huang Pu District
Shanghai
RIESFAL
L
IR PG 2% 2688 5%

100%

56,000

103,000
413,000
180,000

696,000

Japan:
A

9. Higashi Matsuyama Logistics Centre
296-1, 294-1, 301-2, 3011, 300-1, 299-1, 302-1, 2951,
Shingo, Ooaza, Higashi Matsuyama-shi,
Saitama Prefecture
R
15 E R Shingo,
(Ooaza 2961 » 2941 ~ 301-2 » 301-1 ~ 300-1 ~ 299-1 ~ 302-1 ~
295-1

10. Kakegawa Logistics Centre
102, Shobugaike, Kakewawa-shi, Shizuoka Prefecture
BR AL
i %41 Shobugaike 10255

50%

50%

102,800

509,000

193,600

457,000

650,600

2,009,700
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

KEBEEYER

As at 31 December 2017 A=F—+&+=-F=+—H

Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (s t.) (sa. ft) Existing use  Status
AEEEG BOHEEER 2 AREEEEE
it MERER (EAR) (FAR) REAE IREE
Properties under development/Properties under development for sale
BRAYE GHERRTYE
Hong Kong:
11, ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel & 100% 10,800 162,000 H  Construction in progress
Serviced Residences EIETH
181-183 Connaught Road West
ONE-EIGHT-ONESE /& R RS A1 %
T B 181-1835%
12, Various Lotsin D.D. 29 100% 262,000 n/a nfa  Planning
Ting Kok Road, Tai Po NEA NER  FHEW
KETAR
205 B}
Peaple’s Republic of China:
HEARLFE
13, The Grand Riviera 90% 2,755,000 5,840,000 R First, second and third phase:
West of Luocun 350,000 © Completed
Luocun Social Management Office 2,097,000 P %H-ZR=H:EEK
Shishan Town 63,000 S
Nanhai District 85,000 T Fourth phase:
Foshan Construction in progress
ZENER SEIUE  fTETH
HIlm
MLEBNHEEER
R R
8,435,000
8,597,000
C=Commercial B3  H=Hotel /& |=Industrial T 3 P=CarPark #f  R=Residential {£% 0=0ffice B F1&

S=Clubhouse and recreational facilties & i }2 BE 4435 58
W=Warehouse & &

T= Others (including kindergarten, property management office, etc.)
Hit(BEORE  NEEERAES)



SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION R R & ¥

FINANCIAL CALENDAR As at 7 March 2018

BMEESA - \F=A+H

RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
E N
Interim Results
for six-month ended 30 June 2017
BE-F—tFAA=tAL
NME Az R EAZAR

Annual Results
for year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F—LF+-A=f—HL
FEZEFERE

Announced on 9 August 2017

ER-ZZE—EFNANBRMH

Announced on 7 March 2018

ER-ZZ-N\F=ALB QM

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
BERXE
Annual General Meeting

BREFAE

Latest time to lodge transfer forms

B P X RIEHIR

Closure of Register of Members
(for purpose of ascertaining entitlements
to attend and vote at the 2018 Annual
General Meeting)
TEERMBFPELFE
(BREARLEFE_ZE—N\F

To be held on 15 May 2018
BR=ZE—N\FRA+TRART

4:30 pm on 9 May 2018
ZE-N\FRANBTTFERE=+T5

From 10 May 2018 to 15 May 2018
(both days inclusive)

—E- \FHEA+AE-Z—\FHEA+EA
(BRAXBEER)

RRBFAE RIZRE
CASH DIVIDENDS
ReERR
Interim cash dividend
FEIR SRR B

Paid on

XfTHE
Proposed final cash dividend
HRARHIR AR E

Payable on

X fTHE

Ex-dividend date of final dividend
REARR EBRE R

Latest time to lodge transfer forms

EZ B X ERIRHIR

Closure of Register of Members

(for purpose of ascertaining entitlements

to receive the final dividend)
TERERMDBEELRFE
(1 E A EYE R HARR B.)

HK$0.18 per share
HRRAE0.187T

29 September 2017
—E—+FhA=F+NA
HK$0.42 per Share
BB 0.427T

5 June 2018
—E—-N\FXARAR

18 May 2018
—F-NA\FRA+/\H

4:30 pm on 21 May 2018
2 N\FRAZT+—BTNFHEE=1+5

From 23 May 2018 to 25 May 2018
(both days inclusive)

—E— \FEA-+=BE-F—/\FHEA-FHA

(BEEMRBRERN)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION R R & ¥

Share Registrars and transfer office Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East Wanchai,
Hong Kong
& 1 & 50 R R BERRELSELBRAR
BERBEFERRKER —N\=%
AR LTEE—FE—ZFE—t— %

Share listing : The Company’s shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

IR E RARIRENEBERBBMERZFIERA A
BEREE

Stock Code | 00194

A& 1 5% 00194

Board lot | 2,000 shares

BEEHN 2,000 A%

No. of issued ordinary share : 378,583,440 shares

BETE RN A 378,583,440 %

Company’s e-mail address : info@lchi.com.hk

NGRS b info@lchi.com.hk

Investors and Shareholders contact Attention: Mr. Lee Wai Hung
23rd Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre
24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2983 7779
Fax: (852) 2983 7723
Website: http://www.lchi.com.hk
& B T AR R B FEERE
BAERHET — THRAIERITHRL T =1
B E ¢ (852) 2983 7779
{EE : (852) 2983 7723
#E : http/;ww.Ichi.com.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B M #Z HEh ¥k & &

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF LIU CHONG HING
INVESTMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Liu
Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 137 to 232, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“"HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in

compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter as they represented 58% of the Group’s total assets,
combined with the judgements associated with determining the
fair value. As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the investment properties are located in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The carrying
amounts of investment properties amounted to HK$8,392,900,000
as at 31 December 2017 and a gain on changes in fair value of
HK$292,070,000 was recorded in the profit for the year then

ended.

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuations performed by an independent qualified professional
valuer (“Valuer”). Details of the valuation techniques and key
inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements. The valuations have been
arrived at using direct comparison method and income
capitalisation method, which are dependent on certain key inputs
and assumptions in respect of prevailing market conditions such

as unit sale rate, reversion yield and monthly market rent.
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HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment

properties included:

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
Valuer;
. Obtaining an understanding of the valuation process and

significant assumptions to assess if the adopted approach is

appropriate for the respective properties;

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation methods
used based on our knowledge of the property markets in
Hong Kong and the PRC; and

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs, including unit
sale rate, reversion yield and monthly market rent by
comparing these estimates to entity-specific information and
market data based on our knowledge of the property

markets.

Valuation of properties held for sale

We identified the valuation of properties held for sale as a key
audit matter due to the judgements associated with determining
the net realisable value of the properties held for sale. The carrying
amount of properties held for sale situated in the PRC is
HK$544,261,000 as at 31 December 2017 and an impairment loss of
HK$48,359,000 was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2017.

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
future selling prices are estimated by reference to the recent
selling prices of similar properties in the same project or relevant
locations. The management also estimated the future selling
expenses by reference to the actual selling expenses of the
Group’s completed projects, adjusted by certain current market
data.
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HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the properties held

for sale included:

. Assessing the appropriateness of the estimated future selling
prices of the properties held for sale, on a sample basis, by
comparing them to recent transaction prices of similar
properties in the same project or relevant locations, based on

our knowledge of the property markets in the PRC; and

. Comparing the estimated future selling price of properties
held for sale, on a sample basis, to the actual selling price of
properties sold subsequent to the end of the reporting period
to evaluate the reasonableness of the management’s

estimation.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body,

Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not

in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong

assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise ERB(E BRI ERETEIABRED -
BMERATEXEAE  RETEXEREE -

TAIIE

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal

control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.
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. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent

auditor’s report is Sze On Tat.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
7 March 2018

- B BEXERER %%%ﬁ“ﬁéiﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁ&{m
BEEGE EAENERE AR
EUBHREREL - HMARE ES
BEONSR - EBMBT - RAARE
AERAERBAL-

BrE b AN - B A ,\/n@/ﬁﬁTﬁ?UE’J
HirEE BHETHE EXBHERS
FERFITE R 5T P A4 Bl R B4 %UE‘JEHEK

BRBA o

BFERVREERREHR  FHARMETA
BRABLMEMNAREEEBRENR  LEMB
BREURAEMKARETERIE I&F

WAEBERMEMEE  UREERNE
™ HEREE i

WELRIEEREBNEETR  RMIBEHLES
BHEAPGEMBRERNETRAEE - A
MEKERETEE - RPN REF
HMELEIE - RIFEERBEZRTATRRE
BELEE  EBmERNBRAT AR
EREEHERMRETBEBRESTEHEKRNE
HEFRBAEENARIE - BIRAETE
EREFBBZEE -

ARBIRBMBENEERABAR
MZE -

#ED - BRI W AT

P ES

&

—N\F=A+H



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS #&#HE @ &

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HLFE g
>
4
2017 2016 2
“Z-t% “Z-RE r
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000 E
i BT T BETT o
Revenue g ® 2,215,351 1,031,138 :
Direct costs BEERA (1,290,323) (438,027) %
925,028 503,111 [
Other income =gl N 7 8,506 8,566
Administrative and operating expenses THREERX (217,886) (169,600)
Other gains and losses HttEREE 8 278,911 109,294
Finance costs BRI R 9 (26,658) (21,939)
Share of results of joint ventures et EEs 1,645 ®)
Profit before tax BB AR 969,546 519,429
Income tax expense ek 10 (195,730) (50,631)
Profit for the year REEER 11 773,816 468,798
Profit for the year attributable to: REERERDBER -
Owners of the Company AARRER 744,888 457,907
Non-controlling interests FIERRRER 28,928 10,891
773,816 468,798
Basic earnings per share BREKEF 14 HK$ 8% 1.97 HKS &% 1.21
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #r

cEmRkHEMEEWE R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF “Z-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Profit for the year REEER 773,816 468,798
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hi 2@k ()
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to BANEEN 7 B2 EnRZER -

profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on translation BEMEL 2 ERZE 246,044 (240,002)

Fair value gains (losses) on available-for-sale At EERE 2N FEERS (B8)

investments 37,939 (77,376)

Investment revaluation reserve reclassified to Rt EREREFREREN 282

profit or loss in relation to impairment loss on BRE2RESMHHE

available-for-sale investments 39,360 20,440
Investment revaluation reserve reclassified to HETMHEEREENEH 2 ER

profit or loss upon disposal of available-for-sale BREZREEGRES

investments = (1,522)
Exchange reserve reclassified to profit or loss RHEEMBRARAEREH P EE

upon disposal of subsidiaries BRECERRE = (2,872

Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year AEEEMEEWE ()

(net of tax) (BBi%) 323,843 (301,332)
Total comprehensive income for the year rEELXENSEE 1,097,659 167,466
Total comprehensive income (expense) attributable to: ZEWNE () ABIER

Owners of the Company ARERR 1,057,499 170,633

Non-controlling interests FERRRER 40,160 (3,167)

1,097,659 167,466




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

=mE MR R R

As at 31 December 2017 A=FE—+&+=-A=1+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF “Z-RE
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
BiaE BT BETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties RENE 15 8,392,900 7,881,519
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEZE 16 125,804 125,828
Properties under development BREAYE 16 1,207,006 1,005,598
Interests in joint ventures BELEER 18 192,210 1,225
Investments in securities HERE 19 690,486 651,653
Long term loan receivables REEWRER 4,763 15,799
Fixed bank deposit with more than three months to maturity BEAZERARHZ
when raised EHRTER 22 = 247,065
Deferred tax assets ELEHIBEEE 26 3,850 5,807
10,617,019 9,934,494
Current assets REEE
Properties under development for sale FHERRERYE 17 659,998 954,969
Properties held for sale SHEyE 17 555,975 622,481
Inventories BE 20 26,949 13,429
Trade and other receivables g5 R EMEWERED 21 115,285 127,489
Investments in securities BERE 19 16,793 12,305
Derivative financial instruments SRITATA 25 26 -
Taxation recoverable EEEEN 20,706 14,989
Fixed bank deposits with more than three months to maturity BEAZEA%RHz
when raised EHRTER 22 359,796 775,857
Other bank balances and cash HiRTEIRES 22 2,162,588 1,265,226
3,918,116 3,786,745
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables g5 REMERFER 23 1,001,766 1,295,710
Taxation payable e 100,005 960
Borrowings — due within one year BR—R-FRZH 24 383,655 144,768
1,485,426 1,441,438
Net current assets RBEETFE 2,432,690 2,345,307
Total assets less current liabilties BEERRBDEE 13,049,709 12,279,801
Non-current liabilities P =R
Rental deposits from tenants mEFKEEERE 98,597 91,094
Borrowings — due after one year BN —R—F%3H 24 864,345 1,038,861
Derivative financial instruments SRTETR 25 790 -
Deferred tax liabilities EXHBEEE 26 247,102 226,910
1,210,834 1,356,865
11,838,875 10,922,936

it
z
>
z
@
>
=
Y
m
b
o
2
—'
E
£l
=
At

LTHEETURE D

& -

% b B HF —



=
H
o

£10Z 140d3d TYNNNY | GILIWIT INJWLSIANI ONIH ONOHI NI

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

irE B AR R 3R
As at 31 December 2017 R -F—+F+-F=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF “Z-RE
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
BifaE BETT BETT
Equity R
Share capital R 27 381,535 381,535
Reserves #E 11,418,154 10,542,375
Equity attributable to: REAER :
Owners of the Company ARERR 11,799,689 10,923,910
Non-controlling interests FERRRER 39,186 974)
Total equity RELE 11,838,875 10,922,936

The consolidated financial statements on pages 137 to 232 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7

March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

MR. LIU LIT CHI
ENEEE

CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
T EFREIERITHARE,

BREIZTE2I2 B ZEREVBRRENR S
—NFZALtRESEESH EREERTT
W RINALTRERE :

MR. CHENG YUK WO

BpRFOSE £
CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

ERZEETE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GREBRBBE

Ra G it R EARE  BRER & RRER gt
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
E¥Trn  BETn  BMTn EBTR BRTn  BMTn AT E#¥Tn BETr
(notea) (note b)
(Wata)  (Httn)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+F+-A=1+—RAILFE =
S

4

Attributable to owners of the Company 2

EARARRELR e

Property  Investment Non- 3

Share Special  revaluation  revaluation  Exchange Accumulated controlling S
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests Total :
DEEG  REER 2R &

=

it

At1 January 2016 WZE-~"E-5-H 381,53 13915 296817 104,59 333,73 71254714 10,916,068 28263 10944331
Profit for the year REERR = - - - - T 47 10891 468,798
Exchange diferences arising on randlain B EFEECERER - - - - (259 - (254 (14,058 (40,000
Fair valug losses on avallable-for-salg THREEREZ AL EEFE

investments - - - (77,376) - - (17,376) - (77,376)
Investment revaluation reserve reclassified HETHEEREEY

fo proft or oss upon cisposal of ENSREERRY

avalable-for-sale investments REBfRE = - - (152 - = (1522 - (1522
Investment revaluation reserve reclassfiedto - Rt EREHEFRER

profitor loss n reaton to impaimment s~ B ABHERE

on avaiable-for-sale investments REBfHE - - - 20,440 - - 20,440 - 20,440
Exchange reserve reclassified to proft or HEMBAREHEH 28

loss upon disposalof subsidiaies BREZERGE = = = - (2872 - (2872 - (2872
Other comprehensive expense fortheyear — AEEEM2EX A = = = (58458 (228616) - er2ry (14008 (301332
Total comprenensive (expense) income REERE (T H) WBLE

for the year - - - (58,458 (228816) 457907 170,633 (3,167) 167,466
Dividends recognised as disrbution (note 13 CHEBA K2 RE (M3 19 - - - - - (162791 (162791 - (162791
Divdends paic to non-controling inferests A ERREEERE - - - - - - - (26,070) (26,070)
At 31 December 2016 R-E-xE+-A=1-A 361,635 13915 2956817 46,134 104919 7420590 10,923,910 (974 10,922,936
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERBEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —+F+-A=+—RAILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAARRER
Property  Investment Non-
Share Special  revaluation  revaluation Exchange  Accumulated controlling
capital Teserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
NREfRE  REEf FER

B BRES B B EXBR  RREA & RREs it
HSO0  HSO0  HKSO0 WSO HSO0 MO0 HKE0I  HKSOMD  HKSOD
B¥Tn ERTn  ERTn  ERTn  EMTn EWTR BRTR ARTR BETR

(noteq) (note b)
(Wika) (ko)

At Jenuery 2017 RZE-t§-5-H 31,53 13915 2956817 46,134 104919 7420590 10923910 (974 10,922,936

Proftfor the year KEERR - - - - - 744,688 744688 2928 173816

Fychange difrences arsng on nsiion REFELZEIER - - - - B S T 12 U0

Fair value gains on avaltle-fo-sale vesments. A ERE 2 APEENE - - - 3793 - - 3793 = 37939

Investment revaluaion resene reclessfiedo  REHEREHEFEER

proft o loss i elation fo impiment loss ENPBEERRY
on avalblefor-sele mvestments REE(RHE - - - 39,860 - - 30,860 = 30,860

Other comprehensive income for the year REEHM2ENRLE - - - 77799 24612 - 312611 11,232 323843

Total comprehensive income for the year KEE2ENRAE - - - 7779 24612 744888 1057499 Q0160 100765

Dividends recognised as distibuton (ote 1)~ BEZASEZRE (K19 - - - = - s (8172) - (i8172)

At 31 December 2017 R_E-t&+-A=1-H 361,53 13915 296,817 123933 339731 7983758 11,799,689 30186 11,838,675

notes: ffzE -

(a)  Special reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid () FhFEEEAEENHZEZE_ZETENFE+_A
and the carrying values of the underlying assets and liabilities attributable —+—BIEEERHBE-_ZT——F+—_4
to the additional interest in a subsidiary acquired during the year ended 31 =t+—HBIEER—RHB AT NKE
December 2004 and the year ended 31 December 2012. HERZNBATEINES ZHBEENRE

BERREE Z5 -

(b) Property revaluation reserve represents the reserve arising from valuation (b) MESLREEEERAREYER  HEDY

of properties under property, plant and equipment upon transfer to 2 . MENBEE NYEMESNEE -

investment properties in previous years.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEBRETmER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HLFE

2017 2016
Bt —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Profit before tax K% B REA 969,546 519,429
Adjustments for: A
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties RENELATEBEEZBNE (292,070) (158,302)
(Gain) loss on changes in fair value of financial assets & AP EEAREZEREEATEE
at fair value through profit or loss 25 (k) BR (4,490) 791
Loss on changes in fair value of derivative THEEMIAATEELZBER
financial instruments 764 -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale-investments HETHEHERE NG - (1,816)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBA N = (10,841)
Dividend income from investments RERSWA (10,936) (60,075)
Interest income FEWA (45,801) (31,335)
Imputed interest income on non-current interest-free BRREDSELFERERERZ 2
advance to an investee company HEFISWA = (49)
Share of results of joint ventures FiihaE e (1,645) 3
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ BERRETE 11,012 8,899
Finance costs B R AR 26,658 21,939
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE BERREER - 379
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ARHERE 2 REBEER
available-for-sale investments 39,860 20,440
Impairment loss recognised in respect of Hi BRI 2 EEERER
other receivables 12,898 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BHENEZHBESBED
properties held for sale 48,359 -
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital K& EE &2 B EEHERE 754,155 309,462
Decrease (increase) in restricted bank deposits ZREBRTERZED () 43,379 (223,780)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables B 5 REMBERERR 2D (Bm) 31,638 (1,237)
Decrease in properties held for sale FHENEZRD 1,149,352 333,173
Increase in properties under development for sale FHERRERYEZEM (714,981) (578,072)
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEZ (M) R (12,579) 6,548
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables EHREMEMIRFZ O )12 m (411,283) 1,021,383
Cash generated from operations RELRHERS 839,681 867,477
Income tax paid 2AMEHR (91,765) (57,942)
Dividend received on investments ERBRERE 10,936 60,075
Interest received 2WFIE 36,083 31,335
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHRE2RLTE 794,935 900,945
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEBRITmER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RE
NOTE HK$°000 HK$'000
fitzE BT BETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Addition of available-for-sale investments AHRHEREZEM (892) (3,780
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BERZE (9,736) (32,259)
Advance to a joint venture BEELE (190,565) -
Dividend received from a joint venture hEBaEtEsRE 1,225 -
Addition of investment properties REMEZEM (28,787) (17,011)
Addition of properties under development BEMYEZIZM (175,300) (252,582)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of YeER BTt EEREMEHE
available-for-sale investments - 1,886
Placement of fixed bank deposits with more than BEAZERERSE
three months to maturity when raised THRITEX (42,844) (539,978)
Release of fixed bank deposits with more than HE=ER%ZHz
three months to maturity when raised EHRTER 705,970 339,558
Repayment from an investee company BREQTER - 5,000
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AT 38 - 10,546
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBNE (R 2R FE 259,071 (488,620)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METE
New borrowings raised HEVSER 193,406 349,849
Repayments of borrowings BERBR (162,250) (483,108)
Dividends paid BRE (181,720) (188,861)
Interest paid on borrowings ERERAE (33,615) (68,609)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETHAAZRETE (184,179) (380,729)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRBeSEEREMTE 869,827 31,596
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF ENzEE¢RHELZEER
THE YEAR 1,041,446 1,043,618
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES SNEHpRER e 55,227 (33,768)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR, FERvBEERESEEER
REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH NRTERRES 1,966,500 1,041,446




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HLFE

1. GENERAL

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
address of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company is disclosed in the Corporate Information section to

the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company are property investment
and investment holding. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in notes 39 and 18,

respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the

Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for

the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

(“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7  Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

HKAS 12 Unrealised Losses
Amendments to As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRS 12 HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.

1. —BREH
BRIEAEBRAR(ARAD A—HEESR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments also
require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows from
those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in

cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed:
(i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from
obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii)
the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair

values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
these items is provided in note 35. Consistent with the transition
provisions of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart from the
additional disclosure in note 35, the application of these
amendments has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated

financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK{FRIC)-Int 22

HK{UFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
a Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Financial Instruments!

Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related Amendments!

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration!

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'

Transfers of Investment Property!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and

measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge

accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

. all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”).
All other financial assets are measured at their fair value at
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or

loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

. in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are

recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company
anticipate the following potential impact on initial application of
HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

. listed equity securities and unlisted equity securities classified
as available-for-sale investments carried at fair value as
disclosed in note 19: these securities qualified for designation
as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9, however, the fair
value gains or losses accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve amounting to HK$123,933,000 as at 1
January 2018 will no longer be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss under HKFRS 9, which is different from the
current treatment. This will affect the amounts recognised in
the Group’s profit or loss and other comprehensive income

but will not affect total comprehensive income.

. all other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue
to be measured on the same bases as are currently measured
under HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment:

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the

application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will

result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred

in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised

costs and other items that subject to the impairment provisions

upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the
expected credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the
accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised by
Group as at 1 January 2018 would be increased as compared to the
accumulated amount recognised under HKAS 39 mainly
attributable to expected credit losses provision on trade and other
receivables. Such further impairment recognised under expected
credit loss model would reduce the opening retained profits at 1
January 2018.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it

becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach

to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)
Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has
been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus

agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures, however,
the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing and amounts

of revenue recognised in the respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the

related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for
lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low

value assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows,
the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investment cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use
and those classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing and operating cash flows, respectively by

the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and a
related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented

if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an

operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$38,527,000 as disclosed in note 31. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the
Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low

value or short-term leases.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$2,616,000 and refundable rental deposits
received of HK$139,875,000 as rights and obligations under leases
to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease
payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments
relating to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the
carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised
cost and such adjustments are considered as additional lease
payments. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would
be included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would be

considered as advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated

above.

Except for the new and revised HKFRSs mentioned above, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements when they become effective.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in HKAS 36

Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its

highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
. has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or

more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to

control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the

Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent

of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an
investment in a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint

venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable

amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of
HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between
the carrying amount of the joint venture at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in
the joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for
all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that joint venture on the same basis as would be
required if that joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that joint venture
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon

disposal/partial disposal of the relevant joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the joint venture that

are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,

rebates, other similar allowances and sales related tax.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for

each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are

delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the respective properties have been completed
and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments received
from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated statement of financial

position under current liabilities.

Service income (including property management fees and hotel

operation income) is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the rights

to receive payment have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing

below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating

lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of

rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred to
the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire property is accounted as an operating
lease. Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold land
and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building element

at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and building
elements, the entire property is generally classified as if the

leasehold land is under finance lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s interests in joint

ventures.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve

(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to

the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time,

rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment/properties under
development

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than properties under construction as described below) are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are

ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment/properties under
development (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than properties under construction) over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced by
end of owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item (including the relevant
prepaid lease payments) at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly

to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised

in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or

for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are classified and
accounted for as investment properties and are measured using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties are included in profit or loss for

the period in which they arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period

in which the property is derecognised.

For a transfer from properties under development for sale to
investment properties (which is evidenced by commencement of
an operating lease), any difference between the fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying amount is

recognised in profit or loss.

For a transfer from investment properties to properties under
development for sale which is evidenced by the commencement
of development with a view to sale, any difference between the
fair value of the property at the date of transfer and its previously
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. The property’s
deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the

date of change in use.

Properties under development for sale
Properties under development for sale are transferred to
properties held for sale when the relevant completion certificates

are issued by the respective government authorities.

Properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by reference to

estimated selling price less selling expenses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs

necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which

the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), available-for-sale
("AFS”) financial assets and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.

Financial assets at FV/TPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset
is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in

the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may

be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the grouping is

provided internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined

contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and is included in ‘other
gains and losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in the manner

described in note 34c.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated
as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and
receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets
at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
AFS financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period except for unquoted equity investments whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS debt instruments relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, and changes in
foreign exchange rates, if applicable are recognised in profit or
loss. Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in

the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in
an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such unquoted equity investments are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting

period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, loan receivables, fixed bank deposits
with more than three months to maturity when raised, and other
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of

interest would be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of that security below its cost is considered to be

objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest

or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation; or

. disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective

interest rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of loan receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
loan receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the

period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have

been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve. In respect of
AFS debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after

the recognition of the impairment loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at FV/TPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is (i) held for trading or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

repurchasing it in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at F\V/TPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading

may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

. the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the grouping is

provided internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined

contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
interest paid on the financial liabilities and is included in the ‘other

gains and losses’ line item.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, and bank
and other borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or

loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

3. FEESHBER(E)
ST AR(E)
EHMaBERRATA(H)
BAFIEET AR ME & (B)

BEBIFEEREMIIMIEREE  HSHE

MRERFHWIEE RIERATFEBEG ABR
fid
- ZETHHEIBEREERAEMARE

HBE 2 EELHRAT 2 K

- XEBZERAGEK—AHTREENL
TREBEZHOHME - ERBFREAR
%EﬂﬁZHﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁéfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂi
BEELENG - MBERYEZERLRS
EERABPRME ¢ 2L

LAKE S —ExZERAXTETA
#EE - MEB A ST ZERIFE 395
EREHAN(BEXRARB BER
FEEARE -

ﬁF

WO N

D) =113 U>

BAVEEAABRZERABRATEE
e REHMEm LR 2 KRS ERNIE
AR FERR o N IB et AR M AR 2 W ot 3l BT 183 B
BREASBRABEMNZEANE - FEFA
FEBRmRZHEMKaE MERE -

BB AT EN LB EE
cHEAE(REES REMEMER

HAbER) B H
iTE o
fTEE&mMI A
MEIEFMIIAD%J EHIUAFE
BYIFER UHEERREHREFITER
HRAFEE- Eiﬁ@ﬂﬁlﬁ%’éﬁaiﬁﬂ&?ﬁﬁ
RRER  BRIEZITE T AWIETEAERNY
LA EEBEBRT - BRIBEMNE/ME
SRIAE PR ERAMEE -

CERTT R
BRI BEIR A R RIZ E HAR AN

it
z
>
z
a
>
r
Y
m
o
o
2
—'
E
£l
=
At

EvHERTERE

& -

% b B HF —



N
N

£10Z 140d3d IVNNNY | Q3LIWIT INIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for

the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in

equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profit or loss.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods

if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those

involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the

Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s

accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and concluded that
(a) the Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong are not held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, (b) the Group’s investment
properties in the PRC are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties in Hong Kong, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the
Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of investment properties located in Hong Kong as the Group
is not subject to any income taxes on disposal of these investment
properties. The presumption that the carrying amounts of the
Group’s investment properties situated in the PRC are recovered
entirely through sale has been rebutted and the deferred tax on
the changes in fair value of those investment properties is

recognised according to the relevant tax rules.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement of

financial position at 31 December 2017 at their fair value, details of

which are disclosed in note 15. The fair value of the investment
properties was determined by reference to valuations conducted
on these properties by an independent qualified professional
valuer using property valuation techniques which involve certain
assumptions of prevailing market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions may result in changes
in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the changes in fair value reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the carrying
amount of these properties included in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The carrying amount of the Group’s
investment properties at 31 December 2017 is approximately
HK$8,392,900,000 (2016: HK$7,881,519,000).

Impairment of properties under development for sale/
properties held for sale

The Group’s properties under development for sale and properties
held for sale in the PRC and Hong Kong, details of which are set
out in the consolidated statement of financial position and note 17,
are expected to be recovered through future sales. In case the
future selling prices, less all related direct selling expenses, are less
than their current carrying value plus further costs to complete the
properties under development for sale to a saleable condition, the
Group will recognise losses. The future selling prices are estimated
by reference to the recent selling prices of similar properties in the
same project or relevant locations. The management also
estimated the future selling expenses by reference to the actual
selling expenses of the Group’s completed projects, adjusted by
certain current market data. The carrying amounts of properties
under development for sale and properties held for sale of the
Group at 31 December 2017 are approximately HK$659,998,000
(2016: HK$954,969,000) and HK$555,975,000 (2016:
HK$622,481,000), respectively. During the year ended 31
December 2017, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$48,359,000 (2016: HK$nil) in respect of properties held for

sale was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of unlisted available-for-sale investments

The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale investments that are

stated at fair value are determined with reference to market values

of underlying assets, or arrived at using valuation techniques,
including market multiple approach and discounted cash flow
techniques, which included some assumptions that are not
supportable by observable market prices or rates, the inputs may
include prices information, volatility statistics, liquidity statistics
and other factors. In determining the fair value where discounted
cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are
based on management’s best estimates, earnings growth factor
and the adjusted discount factor. The carrying amount of the
Group’s unlisted available-for-sale investments at 31 December
2017 is approximately HK$342,230,000 (2016: HK$334,646,000).

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2017, a deferred tax asset in relation to unused
tax losses of approximately HK$65 million (2016: HK$81 million)
has been recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position. No deferred tax asset has been recognised on
the tax losses of approximately HK$437 million (2016: HK$461
million) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are less than expected, a material reversal of deferred
tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss

for the period in which such a reversal takes place.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE 5. K=
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows: AT B REBRANERZWZS DA :
2017 2016
—E—tF “E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BETT
Gross rental income EHSUWA 365,611 361,136
Sales of properties held for sale GHENEHE 1,686,008 479,937
Sales of goods ENE 75,984 63,048
Interest income on available-for-sale RIFRRTHEEREZFIERA
investments and bank deposits 45,801 31,335
Property management fees MEEEE 19,742 18,608
Hotel operation income BRELERA 11,269 16,999
Dividend income from listed investments held for trading tmiEBERRRE2RERA 289 138
Dividend income from available-for-sale investments AHHEREZREWA 10,647 59,937
2,215,351 1,031,138

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the
purposes of resources allocation or assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods and services delivered or
provided. No operating segments identified by the CODM have
been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segment of the

Group.

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments under

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:
1. Property investment — investment and letting of properties
2. Property development — development and sale of properties

3. Property management — provision of property management

services

4. Treasury investment — dealings and investments in securities

and other financial instruments

5. Trading and manufacturing — manufacture and sale of

magnetic products

6. Hotel operation — management and operation of hotels
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. HHEEH (&) 2
Segment revenue and results SEWERES -
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by RN AREREERoE 7 ANEFBKE R E g
operating and reportable segment. BT o o
Property Property Property Treasury  Trading and Hotel Segment §
investment  development  management  investment manufacturing operation tofal  Eliminations  Consolidated i
WERE  WERE  MEER  MERE E5REE  EELE  SE4: H &4 s
BSODD  HKSO0  HKSO0 KOO BKSOM HKSOOD RSO0 HKSODD HKSOO
ATn  A%Tr A%t BETn  B%Tn  AMTn AMTn RETn B¥Tn
For the year ended BE-E-t%
31 December 2017 tZR=t-ALEE
Segment revenue 2EkE 369,829 1,694,507 3191 48,238 75,984 11,269 2,231,198 (16,447) 2,215,351
Comprisig; g
— revente from customers —ZFlis 365,611 1,694,507 19,742 48,238 75,984 11,269
— intersegment transactions (o)~ — EEAR (K3 418 - 12,29 - - -
(perating expenses EERY (146,748)  (1,254,803) (21,079) (14,102) (68,803) (10615)  (1,516,150) 16,447 (1,499,703)
(Gain on changes in far value of RENENTEEZDNG
investment properties 292,010 - - - - - 29,070 = 292,070
(ian on changes in far value of BAVEETABRL
financial assets at FUTPL SRIENTEE
2ElE - - - 4490 - - 4,490 - 4,490
Loss on changes in far value of SRTETACATEE
dervatv financial insrumens 2EER = = 9 (T6d) = = (764) S (764)
Net exchange gans (osses) B3l (58 8,140 26,635 (297) 1,39 - ) 35873 - 35873
Impaiment loss recogrised Inrespectof - Tt HERE 7 HE
avalable-Tor-sale investments Bk - - - (39,860) - - (39,860) = (39,860)
Impaiment loss recognised in respectof - E AU RS 2 HlfE
afher receivables BERI - - = (2,541) (9452) (905) (12,898) o (12,898)
Segment profit oss) PERN (5B 523,291 466,339 10,595 (3,143) 22n) (252) 994,559 - 994,559
Finance costs R (26,658)
Share of results o oint ventures filtREL$%E 1,645
Proft before tax BB ATRR %9546
note: Inter-segment transactions are charged at prevailing market prices. Mizx : EERAXSIFRNITHEURKE -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

operating and reportable segment.

6. SE&AA(H)
TEMERES(E)

AT REEGREFRD B2 ANEE S KE
BT o

Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel Segment
investment ~~ development  management investment  manufacturing operation fofd  Eiminaons  Consolidated
WERE  NIXBE O MEER HERE ESREE  EESE SES i} &a
HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK§'000
BRI BMTn A%t BRTn BRTn ARt B¥fn BBt EETR
For the year ended BECE-A%
31 December 2016 TZAZT-ALEE
Segment revenue AEkE 364,526 488,390 29,706 82,957 63048 16,999 1,045,626 (14.489) 1031138
Compriing; g
— revenue from customers —ZFlis 361,13 488,390 18,608 82957 63,048 16999
— inter-segment transections (ote)  — EEAR B (K3E) 330 - 11,09 - - -
Operating expenses EERY (130,710) (370400) (21,099) (19,042 (55,129) (17,179 (613549) 14,488 (599,061)
(ain on changes In far value of RENENTEEZDNE
investment properties 158,302 - - - - - 158,302 - 168,302
Loss on changes i fa value of BATEEAERY
financil assefs at FVTPL SMIBNTER
2858 - - - (791 - - (79 - (191
Gain on disposel o avelatle-forsale  (HE T ERERE
investments - - - 1816 - - 1816 - 1,816
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 2 - - - - - 10841 10841 - 10841
Net exchange (osses) gains EXF(BE) W (12621) (20,865 m 6845) - 4 {40,039) - {40,055)
Impairment loss recognised in respectof - AT ERE 2 HfE
avalable-for-sale investments FERI - - - (20,440 - - (20,440 - (20440
Loss on disposal o property, HENE  RERZEFE
plant and equipment - - - - (319 - (379 - (379
Segment profi AR 379497 97125 8,683 37,695 7546 10,665 541,37 - 541,371
Finance costs BBRE (21,939
Share ofresuls ofjin ventures fitRErELE ]
Proft bfore fax vl 519429
note: Inter-segment transactions are charged at prevailing market prices. Wit  EBRRZIEBFITHEUKER

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as

the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment

profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from each segment

without allocation of share of results of joint ventures and finance

costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes

of resource allocation and performance assessment.

EBoBc et BRENEI s ARE S
FHERERARR - D BRN, B EREE AR AR
HEEEXRFEMMBRAZBERLTENHE
PR 2w F, KR Z R - AEEE NI
DETEATBELRRAZ®R  LAIEE
BB MR BRE -



6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. HEEH(EH)
Segment assets and liabilities NHEEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by AT AIRERS B AEBEERABSIT

reportable segment:

Segment assets NDEEE
2017 2016
“E-tf “Z-RE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT BETT
Property investment MERE 8,685,612 8,082,169
Property development MEER 4,211,020 3,935,311
Property management MEEE 3,246 2,985
Treasury investment BISIRE 1,319,535 1,587,864
Trading and manufacturing B RHE 93,570 85,717
Hotel operation HERE 5,386 5172
Total segment assets PEEEAR 14,318,369 13,699,218
Taxation recoverable ARERR 20,706 14,989
Interests in joint ventures ¥R 192,210 1,225
Deferred tax assets EERBERE 3,850 5,807
Consolidated assets RREE 14,535,135 13,721,239
Segment liabilities NHEaE
2017 2016
“E-tf —Z-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Property investment MERE 182,362 176,417
Property development MERR 898,224 1,191,472
Property management VEER 3,055 3,001
Treasury investment BI#RE 1,722 5,567
Trading and manufacturing B REE 15,082 9,668
Hotel operation ER S 708 679
Total segment liabilities PEEEAE 1,101,153 1,386,804
Taxation payable R 100,005 960
Borrowings RN 1,248,000 1,183,629
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBERE 247,102 226,910
Consolidated liabilities Se8E 2,696,260 2,798,303
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, all assets are allocated to
operating segments other than taxation recoverable, interests in
joint ventures and deferred tax assets. All liabilities are allocated to
operating segments other than taxation payable, borrowings and

deferred tax liabilities.

Other segment information

Property Property Property
investment  development  management
NERE NEER NEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T

6. FEEAHE(K)
SEEERARE(R)
RERNBRAMROBEEIEER @ BN
ARERK - A EEENED RREHIRE
B FBEEEADREXHDE  MKRE
AHF - ERREERAEREN  HERE
VR EXEBHDE -

HipEER
Treasury  Trading and Hotel
investment  manufacturing operation  Consolidated
BHRE BHREE EEgE &e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETL  BETR  BEFR BETR

Amounts included in the BETESEEE
measure of segment results RoBEEY
and segment assets: 25
2017 —T—+tE
Additions to non-current FREEELEM
assets (Note) (HEE) 32,476 203,029 -
Depreciation E 1,047 926 -

Impairment loss recognised i+~ EHHENE 2
respect of properties held BEEEED

for sale - 48,359 -
2016 —B-RE
Additions to non-current FREBEELM

assets (Note) (HrEE) 42,497 269,102 -
Depreciation e 6,388 232 -

134 4123 169 230,931
643 2,367 3 11,012
g s s 48,359
3,085 3427 3 318,143
76 2,12 77 8,899

note: Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures, financial instruments
and deferred tax assets.

i ERBAETRES SOEME  SMTA
RIFEEBIEARE -



6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other segment information (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and other parts
of the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing operations
from external customers is presented based on the location of the
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current assets is

presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

6. SE&AF(H)

Hip 5 EEHF (8)
i [ &

AEBEBUNEENHEE MR -

ERASBERERLEIIRETR ZWRERTD
BREXGELRER - AREAKEIER
BEEMNENAREEMTELEZ5R

Revenue Non-current assets
& FRBEE

2017 2016 2017 2016
“E—tE& —E-RE —E-tF —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT BETT BT BETT
Hong Kong ) 269,341 314,103 6,769,547 6,267,422
PRC th 1,946,010 717,035 2,956,163 2,745,523
2,215,351 1,031,138 9,725,710 9,012,945

Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures, financial

instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers
There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016 contributing over 10% of

the total operating revenue of the Group.

7. OTHER INCOME

FRBEETBEEE
RIERFBIAAFE
FREFER
BE-TLtF+ZA=+—"HRZF—R
FT-A=T-RLFE IEREFFPZ
Wras i A R MR E et #BiB10%

7. HugA

tEERD  ERMIA

2017 2016
“E—tF “E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BETT

Imputed interest income on advance to BRFRREQRZEENSRA
an investee company - 49
Others Hit 8,506 8,517
8,506 8,566
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8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES H Wi R E5iE
2017 2016
—E—tF “E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties & A LEEESB WS 292,070 158,302
Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of BAVEEFTABRZERIANTEE
financial assets at FVTPL B (HE) 4,490 (791)
Loss on changes in fair value of SRTETI A2 ATEESBEFSE
derivative financial instruments (764) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments HETHEERE NS - 1,816
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB LAz = 10,841
Net exchange gains (losses) 5 F W (58) 35,873 (40,055)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of AHEERE CHEFERR
available-for-sale investments (39,860) (20,440)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HinE T 2 REEEER
other receivables (12,898) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  BERERBER = (379)
278,911 109,294
9. FINANCE COSTS Eu oS
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BETT
Interest on borrowings: BHFE
Bank loans RITEF 44,466 57,586
Other borrowings HibfEH 1,225 1,023
45,691 58,609
Less: Amount capitalised as cost of properties under 35 : NEENF2.75% F 4.96% B AR (bt =
development/properties under development for (ZF—RE 1 246%F 4.96%) 5l
sale at a capitalisation rate ranging from BEMEFHEBRTNERL
2.75% 10 4.96% (2016: 2.46% to 4.96%) BEXe
per annum (19,033) (36,670)
26,658 21,939




10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. Fig#H X H

2017 2016
“E—tf “E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BRI
The charge comprises: SHERE
Current tax: REEFHE
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBRER 17,052 18,263
PRC Enterprise Income Tax hE S EFES 132,408 7,820
149,460 26,083
(Over)underprovision in prior years: BAEE (BB TERE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax ERFIEH (160) 64
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RE EREH = 2,418
(160) 2,482
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) B+ A ER 36,799 13,161
Deferred taxation (note 26) BIEDE (M5 26) 9,631 8,905
195,730 50,631

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

REE 2 IR RS B et R PT/RER B AR

tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows: RN :
2017 2016
“E-tf “E-RE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Profit before tax BRBLATER 969,546 519,429
Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5% BBR165% (ZB—NE 1 165%) 582
(2016: 16.5%) EEFEH 159,975 85,706
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures A bEEEoHinyE (271) 1
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose ~ FAIMNRERA KK E 20,412 12,472
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BEFHMA 2B BT E (54,035) (64,651)
(Over)underprovision in prior years BAFETR (B35 BE (160) 2,482
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERREFRZHEE 4,778 7,129
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRRBRBAZHEEEZBBEYE
previously not recognised (8,937) (353)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMFRZEERE 2B AR TRBE
operating in other jurisdictions 258 45,154 1,564
PRC LAT B+ IS ER 36,799 13,161
Tax effect of PRC LAT hE LI ER 2 RS E (9,200) (3,290
Others Hith 1,215 (3,590)
Tax charge for the year KEEHRBELH 195,730 50,631
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10.
notes: st -

(a) Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the estimated (a)
assessable profit for both years.

(b) Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (b)
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2016: 25%).

(c)  The Group has estimated the tax provision for PRC LAT according to the (©)
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The
actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax authorities
upon completion of the property development projects and the tax
authorities might disagree with the basis on which the provision for LAT is

FisBxl (&)

BB IRIENEEE ST ERBUET
EHE16.5% (ZF—7"F 1 16.5%) 51 H

BREAREMBESERERE([DEME
BOED ROEMSHEERAR - PEKE
NFERERB25% (ZB—7NF : 25%) °

RBPBETERRANEBRE  AREE
TEER A B IR E R o AR 1 IR E L RRER
RRBBRBENERERBNRTREM
TE » BRA Al BE AR Rl AN S [ 4 1 M IR (E R
BENAERE -

calculated.
1. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR . FEEEH
2017 2016
et S o 3 —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: REERFENBRTHEE :
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) HEME (M 12) 33,678 36,391
Other staff costs HME TR 54,414 48,659
Staff retirement scheme contributions, ESTRABAMRT  MBRR R
net of HK$467,000 (2016: HK$126,000) FBHE 467,000 T (ZF— 1 © B%126,0007T)
forfeited contributions 2,717 2,427
Total staff costs ST AEG 90,809 87,477
Auditor’s remuneration A Gk 2,674 2,523
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W BERZERTE 11,012 8,899
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings t#RIEFELRANzEE 6,610 8,183
Selling expenses (included in “administrative and HERY (BRETHREERS))
operating expenses”) 51,441 18,921
Impairment loss recognised in respect of properties BHENE HERFERER
held for sale (included in “direct costs”) (BFEfE [EERAK]) 48,359 -
and after crediting: PEA
Gross rental income from investment properties RENELRSWA 365,611 361,136
Less: direct expenses of investment properties B EREEHSRAZRENEEEZER
that generated rental income during the year (31,278) (28,489)
334,333 332,647




12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’

12. EE - THEZERESME

EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 14 (2016: 14) BEfNKENTL4EZ(ZE—RFE 14R)EFH
directors were as follows: ZBeT -
Other emoluments @ &
Performance Retirement
Salariesand related incentive scheme Total
Fees other benefits  payment (note f) contributions emoluments
E230 )54 Bl BINEF
e HitEdl  RES (S STEIER ol
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETT BETT
2017 —E—tfF
Executive Directors (note a) HITES (Mizta)
Liu Lit Mo EEdiny 250 6,227 132 175 6,784
Liu Lit Chi BaE 150 8,710 420 504 9,844
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BEE 150 4,793 211 330 5,550
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher E3i:b) 150 3,940 267 291 4,648
Lee Wai Hung Rl 150 3,084 260 309 3,803
Non-executive Directors (note b) FHTES (HaEh)
Liu Lit Chung BRR 150 1,099 - - 1,249
Andrew Liu BER 150 - - - 150
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BRE 150 - - - 150
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher HEE 250 = - - 250
Independent Non-executive Directors BV FHITES
(note c) (BaEe)
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses B 250 - - - 250
Tong Tsin Ka ERR 250 - - - 250
AuKam Yuen, Authur B#fR 250 - - - 250
Ma Hung Ming, John =54 250 - - - 250
Cheng Yuk Wo EEA 250 - - - 250
Total ‘@t 2,800 21,913 1,356 1,609 33,678
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. ¥ - THAZ R EEMLS(8)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Other emoluments E A B &

Performance Retirement
Salaries and related incentive scheme Total
Fees other benefits payment (note f) contributions emoluments
HR EEEBEN RIEEA
ok Hitgh  RES (HES) BEEE: el ey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
2016 —E-RE
Executive Directors (note a) HITEE (KaFa)
Liu Lit Mo BRE 20 9,551 250 300 10,351
Liu Lit Chi BRE 150 7922 420 480 8,972
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BeE 150 5376 269 320 6,115
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B 150 3609 A8 259 4,266
Lee Wai Hung TR 150 2,952 28 29 3,645
Non-executive Directors (note b) FBTES (D)
Liu Lit Chung BIA 150 1,092 - - 1242
Andrew Liu B 150 - - - 150
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred Bz 150 - - - 150
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher R 20 - - - %0
Independent Non-executive Directors B JE{TES
(note c) (MzEe)
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses HEE 250 - - - 250
Tong Tsin Ka ERX 20 - - - 20
Au Kam Yuen, Authur BHR 20 - - - %0
Ma Hung Ming, John EjEH 250 - - - 950
Cheng Yuk Wo g A 20 - - - 20
Total st 2,800 30,502 1435 1,654 36,391




12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

notes:

(@ The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

(b) The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries.

(©) The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services as directors of the Company.

(d) The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2017 and 2016 were all
directors of the Group and details of their emoluments are included in
above.

(e) During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the five highest paid individuals (including directors) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016.

® The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference to
the individual performance of the directors and approved by the
remuneration committee of the Group for the years ended 31 December

12. ES THARREEMNS (F)

GEX

@ LARTERZMERREREATRAE
mE 2R EM -

() LPINBITEEZ MORE (AAR XM
BAREF2RBHM -

© LIBUERTEF2MERREATAT

EE2REAH -

) —F—tFR-T-AFAEEELBSH
Atd - 2BAAEEES  LHFMER L
XA «

(&) FA AEEBEMERNESKALTH
AT (BRESF)INEMME  EAMAK
SESIMAREE R 2 RENKBEBAEE - 8
E-ZT—+tHF+-_A=+—HBE-_ZE—XKF
TZA=+—RHALEMEFE  WEZEHRE
S EZRENS N LHE -

f HE-ZT—+tHF+-_A=F+-—BE-ZT—X
F+_A=+—HALIMEFERREGHEZ
HRENEESMERRFETE  WHAEESE

2017 and 31 December 2016. BE S et /& -
13. DIVIDENDS 13. &2
2017 2016
“E—tF “E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: FREANMZKE
Interim dividend paid for 2017 — HK$0.18 per share  —E—+ERRHPHRESRELE 0187
(2016: interim dividend paid for 2016 — (ZB-—RE  ZE2-AEFERPHRE
HK$0.17 per share) BRE®017 ) 68,145 64,359
Final dividend paid for 2016 — HK$0.3 per share “E-RERRAREREERER 03T
(2016: final dividend paid for 2015 — (ZE—RE ZZ-RFERRERE
HK$0.26 per share) SRBEM0.267T) 113,575 98,432
181,720 162,791

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 of HK$0.42 (2016:
final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 of
HK$0.30) per share, in an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$159,005,000 (2016: HK$113,575,000) has been proposed by
the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

RBERR BE-_T—+FE+_A=+—
BIEFEZREREGRABK 42T (ZE
—RNFHEZZ-—R"F+ZA=+—HL
FEZRPBREEFRAELEOI L)  &HELE
#159,0050007L( — & — X F£: B &
13,5750007T) * KBEFEER - WAR
FEERRBFAE L REERERE o
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14. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$744,888,000 (2016: HK$457,907,000) and on 378,583,440
(2016: 378,583,440) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there were
no potential ordinary shares in issue during the years 2017 and
2076.

14.

BIREXRF

ARRRRELEBRERNRATDKEBEAFE
RN B R B 2 0m ) 4978 B 744,888,000
TL(ZZF—7RF B 457,907,0007T) KA
FEBBITLEBAX378,583,440 Kk (=ZZF—<
F : 378,583,440 ) 5T E o

—EEERCE-RNFRAOEEAEES
B RtEEERENTME2R -

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. &Y%

HK$'000
BETT

FAIR VALUE AVEE

At 1 January 2016 R=ZE—7<F¥-A—H 7,888,772

Currency realignment ExHE (182,566)

Additions by 17,011

Gain on changes in fair value ATLEEZBNG 158,302

At 31 December 2016 RIE-AE+ZA=+-H 7,881,519

Currency realignment ERHE 190,524

Additions 20 28,787

Gain on changes in fair value AT EESENE 292,070

At 31 December 2017 R-E—+tE+-A=+—-H 8,392,900

notes: MfzE -

(@)  All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn (a) AERRKEHEABEURIMESZEY
rentals are measured using the fair value model and are classified and ERSHEATEBEERNE  XHERY
accounted for as investment properties. BRBIREYE -

(b)  Fair value measurements and valuation processes (b)) AFEEFEMNGHEBSR

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, it is the Group’s policy
to engage an independent qualified professional valuer to perform the
valuations. The management works closely with the valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

On 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, independent valuations were
undertaken by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Ltd. (“Vigers”), an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group
which has appropriate professional qualifications and recent experience in
the valuations of similar properties in the relevant locations.

The valuations have been arrived at using direct comparison method by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in
the same locations and conditions or, where appropriate, by capitalising
the market rentals of all lettable units of the properties by reference to the
rentals achieved in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is made
by reference to the yield rates observed by the valuer for the similar
properties in the locality and adjusted based on the valuer’'s knowledge of
the factors specific to the respective properties.

HAHREMEN QT EER - AEEHBE
DERBIABERERAEMETHE B
BEEGEMZIAE  EXESHMEER
M S EAEE A\ B -

RZB—tF+-A=+—BR-ZE—RF
ToA=+—R BUGERAMKRNEE
HABER AR AR (TEARHT D) EST o BURHET
REAREEY MEE BT ABREXMGE
B - BRI AL EETHERFE
BHBEEER T HLER -

HEAERLEETI2Z AR MR RARED
BUMENTISERLSEN BB ELED
EE(E A R AT R A RV H R B A B A
twEmANANEMNTSHEERER
F)EH - MEET - MEMA AL EH
MISHEETI2E ] H BAOER MEE AR
BT BRUMENEMBRBRFERE - B
RATAME RN RS E B %
BHBEUMEBERMENKEER  BERE
fE (LB AT AN A AR 5 e W 2276 A 0 5 e R =5
BIRERA -
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15. IREWE(F) 2
notes: (Continued) MisE : (8) ;
m
(b)  Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued) (b) RAFEEF=MHEBRREE) 8
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of EEEIEATBERN  WENZSLRE 3
the properties is their current use. RS BEERAR - =
The following table gives information about how the fair values of these TRINEEAREMENAFBENMETE i
investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation HER (ERAERETRFTBEMNGHERDG LE i
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which ABED)  UAREBEAFEBESETHEAZE
the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1to 3) based on the A AERSENREE  BEAFEBESENSE
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable. ENFEEREFORFNE—ZF=FFHI) -
Investment properties held by
the Group in the consolidated Valuation technique(s) Significant Relationship of unobservable
statement of financial position  Fair value hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
AEEHENREMES TABAGLNEYE
RiFEHBRR R ALEERE REEDRTESY EXFABASHNEY ATEENER
Investment properties in Hong Kong ~ Level 3 Direct comparison method
with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$1,056,120,000 The key input is
(2016: HK$980,000,000)
(1) Unit sale rate Unit sale rate, taking into account the time, An'increase in the unit sale rate used would result in
ocation, and individual factors, such as frontage  an increase in the fair value measurement of the
and size, between the comparable and the investment properties by the same percentage

property, ranging from HK$110 to HK$21,300 increase, and vice versa.
(2016: HK$100 to HK$19,300) per square fest on

gross floor area basis for properties and ranging

from HK$740,000 to HK$1,300,000 (2016:

HK$640,000 to HK$720,000) per unit for car park

spaces.
EEBNRENZLRAE F=R5 BB
7B#1,056,120,000 T (= F
—7R% © 7E#5980,000,0007T) TERES
(1) EMHEER ZRIKE WHRERNEENE FANELHEEK-BLA SR

AEZENERNRER  NFEEER ENENATEETERRENEITL
FE BUSEEREABEINE BN R2TR-
FHREEE110TEBE21,3007T(=

T—RE BEI00TEBE193007T)

(REEHERRET)  FEHT2AH

FB740,000 TTE B 1,300,000 7% (=

TN BEE640,000 T E B

720,000 7T) °
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15.

()

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

Investment properties held by

15. IREWE(F)

B=E - ()

(o) ADFEEEMGEEBRE(E)

the Group in the consolidated Valuation technique(s) Significant Relationship of unobservable
statement of financial position  Fair value hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
REERENRENRET TABENGENEHE
RiE BT ATEERE REFOREESY EXFABABHNEY ATEENER
Investment properties in Hong Kong ~ Level 3 Income capitalisation method

with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$4,408,200,000
(2016: HK$4,183,800,000)

EERNREANEMREE F=A5H
787 4,408,200000 70 (=%

— 7N ¢ 7#4,183,800,000

)

Investment properties in the PRC with  Level 3
an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$263,189,000

(2016: HK$251,537,000)

EPENRENEAREE H=R5H
7263,189,000 T (=%
— R ¢ BH251,587,0007)

The key inputs are

(1) Reversion yield

(2)  Monthly market rent

WEERL
IERYA
(1) MAHEHEHEE

@ ®AmSHE

Direct comparison method
The key input is

(1) Unit sale rate

BB
E2:3 10
(1) EUHEER

Reversion yield, taking into account of the
capitalisation of rental income potential, nature of
the property and prevailing market condition,

ranging from 3.3% to 4.8% (2016: 3.3% to 4.8%).

Monthly market rents, taking into account of time,
location and individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable and the
property, ranging from HK$40 to HK$220 (2016:
HK$29 to HK$260) per square fest per month on
|ettable area basis.

ZRIBSERRAERSE - MM
ERBEBTR - BT RERERIN
B48%(ZF—RE 1 33%E48%) °

ZEEISRE A RBRRENE
e ENERNER  wEARF
B 5ADSHET AR HERR
SFEFARMBRAOTERE 20T
(ZB-RF BB O TEHEE 260
) °

Unit sale rate, taking into account the time,
location, and individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable and the
property, ranging from RMB4,950 to RMB24,000
(2016: RMB5,800 to RMB24,000) per square
meter on gross floor area basis for properties.

EZRIGH  wBRERYEEYE
AEZBENENRER  NFEEER
FR BHEEREAST KA
ARE4950 T E AR 24,0007 (=
E—RE: ARBSS0TEARE

24000 70) (REBEEEE)

Aslight increase in the reversion yield used would
result in a significant decrease in the fair value
measurement of the investment properties, and vice
Versa.

Aslight increase in the monthly market rent used
would result in a significant increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment properties, and vice
Versa.

FANERENRREEREM LA
ELRENENATEETEEEAT
B R2ZR e

FANSATSHESERERLA &
SREMENATEEHEFERL
FroRZFHR e

An'increase in the unit sale rate used would result in
an increase in the fair value measurement of the
investment properties by the same percentage
increase, and vice versa.

FIRNENHEEBR-BLA 8RR
BNENLTEEBERRNEI L
B R2HA -



15.

()

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

Investment properties held by
the Group in the consolidated

statement of financial position  Fair value hierarchy
AEEREHRENES
REGEBBRRRK AFEERE

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

HERGREEZH

15. IREWE(F)

BsE - ()

(o) ADFEEEMGEEBRE(E)

Significant
unobservable input(s)

EXFTBAGLNER

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
FURAGENEHE
AFEENBR

Investment properties in the PRC with  Level 3
an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$2,665,391,000

(2016: HK$2,466,182,000)

ERENRENELERE F=R5
7 2,665,391,000 7T

(ZZB—RE:

5 2,466,182,000 7T

Income capitalisation method
The key inputs are

(1) Reversion yield

(2)  Monthly market rent

BEERL
IRBHA
(1) HEBRODFEE

@ EBATHEE

Reversion yield, taking into account of the
capitalisation of rental income potential, nature of
the property and prevailing market condition,
ranging from 6.5% to 7.0% (2016: 6.5% to 7.0%).

Monthly market rents, taking into account of time,
location and individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable and the
property, ranging from RMB95 to RMBI13 (2016:
RMBO5 to RMBB21) per square meter per month
on lettable area basis.

ZRIBSERRAERSE - MM
BRBEETR - EITHERER65%
B7.0%(ZF—RE 1 65%F7.0%) °

ZEIISRE A RBRRENE
ez ENERNER  WEARF
B 5ANSHETARITHERR
FEFARMARE S TEARY
IBT(=B—REF : ARBBTEA
R¥821 )

Aslight increase in the reversion yield used would
result in a significant decrease in the fair value
measurement of the investment properties, and vice
Versa.

Aslight increase in the monthly market rent used
would result in a significant increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment properties, and vice
VErsa.

Fr R ARR B SRR BEM L7 -
ELRENENATEEFEEEAT
B R2ZR e

FANSATSHESERENLA &
SREMENATEEHEFEXRL
Fro R

The fair values of all investment properties at 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2016 were measured using valuation techniques with significant
unobservable inputs and hence were classified as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties, the
Group used market observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages an independent
qualified professional valuer to perform the valuations of the Group’s
investment properties. At the end of each reporting period, the Group
works closely with the valuer to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs
where inputs can be derived observable quoted prices in the active
market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt
valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the directors of the Company.

There were no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.

—T—+tF+=_A=+—BR=ZZT—X~"F+=A
=+ BRAREMENDAFEENFAETIE
BBENERGAZH 2 HERDT  MOBEAAT
BEEEE=M7 -

EFASEREMENDITEER  AEEE
BERNRE TRECBTS LATBAZER - 55
—BANBABBRLTAE  AEEEREBILE
REXGHEMHEAEEREMEFELGEE - ELER
EHR - ARERGEMB NG AL REFE
F_FRIRE=AFIAFEEFTENSBEHERD
REAZY - ARBEGAZHAOERT 5 L1
AERRETSHEAREE  2EEEBNRAE
Z&B - BE BRI ARBIL A B - AKE
BRAREF =M BWAZBNGERD - EBE
RFEEAEEREDR RPN ERGRAARFE
EER -

FRRBEASERE=RF -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT

16.

YVE BERRE BTRPYE

Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold motor vehicles
land and Plantand and computer
buildings machinery equipment Total
B
HELH £E BHH
kT ELE £ REKRE #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETR BET BET
COST BA
At 1 January 2016 RZE—-~"E-H-H 81,484 35,045 129,895 246,424
Currency realignment E=AE - (1,964) (3,598) (5,562)
Additions 2 23,653 3,427 5179 32,259
Disposals HE = (1,187) (29,695) (30,882
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"E+=A=+—-H 105,137 35,321 101,781 242,239
Currency realignment EXREE - 2,191 1,819 4,010
Additions =10 - 4,123 5,613 9,736
At 31 December 2017 WZE—tH+=B=+—H 105,137 41,635 109,213 255,985
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION HEREH
At 1 January 2016 RZE-"F—-A—H 10,985 18,985 111,776 141,746
Currency realignment ERHE = (1,083) (3,209) (4,292)
Charge for the year KEELH 1,738 2,126 5,035 8,899
Eliminated on disposals R EREE = (1,068) (28,874) (29,942)
At 31 December 2016 WZE-R"E+=A=+—-H 12,723 18,960 84,728 116,411
Currency realignment ERHE - 1,195 1,563 2,758
Charge for the year AEEXH 2,377 2,357 6,278 11,012
At 31 December 2017 WZE—tH+=B=+—-H 15,100 22,512 92,569 130,181
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2017 R=B—t&E+=RA=1t—H 90,037 19,123 16,644 125,804
At 31 December 2016 RZB—R"E+=ZA=1t—H 92,414 16,361 17,053 125,828
notes: 5T
(@)  The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a (@) LiiE - BMERZEERNIREGEE

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Qver the shorter of the term of
the lease or 2% to 3%

Plant and machinery 10%

Furniture, fixtures, motor vehicles and 10-20%

computer equipment

(b) As at 31 December 2017, properties under development amounting to
approximately HK$1,207,006,000 (2016: HK$1,005,598,000) represent the
cost in relation to the redevelopment of a property located in Hong Kong
into a hotel. During the year ended 31 December 2017, additions of
properties under development amounting to approximately
HK$201,408,000 (2016: HK$268,873,000).

(o))

THFERFE

BRHRES ERE 2RO
2% % 3%
BERES 10%
B EE BRAE 10-20%
B

RZE—+F+-_A=+—0 EETY%
AE1207,006,0007C( —T—RE B
#1005,598,0007t) R X #& —BUREH
NMESHEEMBENKRAE RZT—+
F+-_A=Z+—ALLFER  BEDYEEL
A #E 201,408,000 T ( —F—NF : &
268,873,000 7T) °



17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying value of properties under

development for sale of approximately HK$659,998,000 (2016:

HK$954,969,000) is expected to be realised after twelve months

from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying value of properties held for
sale of approximately HK$544,261,000 (2016: HK$610,767,000)
and HK$11,714,000 (2016: HK$11,714,000) are located in the PRC

and Hong Kong, respectively.

The cost of properties held for sale recognised as an expense
during the year amounted to approximately HK$1,149,352,000
(2016: HK$333,173,000).

177. FHEBRRDPYE HHEME

R-BE—+E+-"A=1+—08 FHERE
R EREEL BB 659998000 (=
T — N4 ¢ B 954,969,000 7T ) TBEAE IR
EHR+_EA%BER -

R_E—+F+-_A=+—H8 uURFEEK
BEANFEEMEREE IO R ALK
544261,000L( = T — XN F: B
610,767,0007T) R 4 =75 #1,714,000 T(=
T—7NF ¢ BN, 714,0007T) ©

FR BEEREAIZHEHEDERANE
75 #51149,352,0000( —E —RF : B
333,173,0007T) ©

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. EELXEHER
2017 2016
—E—tF “E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Cost of investments in joint ventures — unlisted RENGELEZHA—FLH - 3
Deemed contribution to a joint venture (note c) BHEAHSELENTE (M) 190,565 -

Share of post-acquisition results and other bR EER EM2E NS

comprehensive income, net of dividends received HREWERE 1,645 1,222
192,210 1,225

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures at 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016 are as follows:

THARAEER _FE—tF+_-_A=+—H
MZB-—RF+_A=+—BHEEEXEAE
P

Place of
incorporation/ Class of Proportion Proportion
Name of company operations shares held of ownership interest of voting power held Principal activities
BELELE HEMAIL S FAEERGER RERRELLLA FEREE LA 5 A3
2017 2016 2017 2016
“2—tF C—Z-xF Bt CZZ-~F
Falconmate Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong ~ Ordinary - 50% - 50%  Deregistered
EB/EB BER (note a) (note a) EEL
(HzEa) (Mizka)
Value Investing Group Company  Hong Kong/Japan Ordinary 50% - 50% - Property investment
Limited (‘Value Investing’) &% /B A& EBR (note b) (note b) MERE
EBEREREERAA (FfEED) (BEED)
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18.

notes:

@

)

©

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Falconmate Limited has been
deregistered.

In November 2017, the Group entered into the sale and purchase
agreement with Value Partners Group Limited (“Value Partners”) to
acquire 50% of the issued share capital in Value Investing which in turn
through a wholly-owned subsidiary holds 100% of the trust beneficial
interests in the properties located in Japan, held under operating leases to
earn rentals.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement which Value Partners agreed
to sell and the Group agreed to purchase 1share in the issued share capital
of Value Investing, representing 50% of the entire issued share capital of
Value Investing at the consideration of HK$1. Upon completion, the Group
has provided an interest-free shareholder’s loan in the amount of
JPY2,749,848,740 (approximately HK$191 million) to Value Investing to
repay the corresponding amount of shareholder’s loan owing by Value
Investing to Value Partners, the effect of which is to ensure that the
shareholders’ loans of the Group and Value Partners will be pro rata to
their shareholding.

Upon completion, the Group exercises joint control over Value Investing
and the financial results and financial positions of Value Investing is
incorporated in the Group’s consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting.

Deemed contribution in a joint venture represents loan advanced to a joint
venture which is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment
terms. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the loan is in
substance formed part of investment in a joint venture.

The consolidated financial information of Value Investing, which is

prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards, is set out below:

18.
Bt sE
(@

(b

©

T3

wE

BELXES(H)
RBE-F—t5+-A=+—ALFE"

Falconmate Limited 24Xz °

REZE—tF+—F AREEAFEEERRAF
(DI EE S  BABEREEEARA
ASO%MBHEITRA - WERBHEEMBRR -
BI00% Emi) A AY % - BREL SN ABRIUE

RIEZEE WS BERAEENRERAEE —T
MRELHEREBERD  HERNEERESESR
RNAEIREEEITRAMNS50% ° K HTHIE - AEE
MEEREEEBRARIEHE T 2,749,848,740 H
& (#97%% 191,000,000 7T) B SRR E R - FAfE
EBEEEREAEEBERARLEREENREERDN
HESE  HIEAARRASE REEMEMAARR
BRSIRBE SRR BIGTE -

ZHERE  AEEAHEERESEARARER
KRZEHNES  MEEREEEERATNGTS
EEMPBN - BARRE AREENGA Y
BHRKRF ©

—HELR LR ABRETERNBXTRERE
BEAHEELENTE - ARAIEERR/ZLEN
BEERBECEREN—#D -

BEBEREEEERAANREERTS
BRI 2 AR BER -

2017
—E—tfF
HK$’000
BET T

Current assets

RBEE

426

Non-current assets

FRBEE

394,027

Current liabilities

RBEME

381,003

Cash and cash equivalents

RERREEEER

426

Current financial liabilities

hBREEE

381,003

2017
—B-t#%
HK$’000
BRI

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

FEERNR2HENEAHE

13,450




18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 18. AELEER(EH)

Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated financial B EFEEEREEBAR AR ZMiliisg S B
information of Value Investing to the carrying amount of the BEARFANZLEESTBRAIRFERZEE

interest in a joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial — {PEE#EZS -
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statements:
2017
“E—tF
HK$°000
BETT
Net assets EEFE 13,450
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in Value Investing AEEMEBEREEEBRARZIERERZ ZHD 50%
6,725
Deemed investments BEBRERK 190,565
Pre-acquisition profits WEERTER (5,080)
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Value Investing FEERNEEREEEBRARZEZREE 192,210

The summarised financial information below represents the LA R##ll 7 BB EREREBFRNERIFEE K
aggregate amount of the Group’s share of its interests in joint ¥ REZSBEEE

ventures which are not individually material:

2017 2016

—E—+F “E-RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT BETT

Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year AEEBEREAEX A - 3)

EvEe¥THESY G

& -

% b B HF —
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

19. :BHIRE

Financial assets at FVTPL
BRAVEEFABREZEREE

Available-
Held for  Designated for-sale
trading  atfair value investments Total
e BER
EERAE ATEEIE AHEERE okl
notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FitaE BT BETT BETT BETT
2017 —E—+F
Listed equity securities TRRARES @) 16,693 - 288,380 305,073
Unlisted equity securities FETRAES (b) - - 269,922 269,922
Structured products LEMTE () - 7,137 - 1,737
Investment funds REES (d) - - 72,308 72,308
Others Hith () - - 52,239 52,239
16,693 7,737 682,849 707,279
Analysed as: EA:
Listed in Hong Kong BELm 16,693 - 340,619 357,312
Unlisted ¥Lm - 7,737 342,230 349,967
16,693 7,737 682,849 707,279
Analysed for reporting purpose as:  MMEREZRHEA
Non-current assets FRBEE 690,486
Current assets RBEE 16,793

707,279



19. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 19. BHIZEB(E)

Financial assets at FVTPL
BAVEESABRZERERE
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Available-
Held for Designated for-sale
trading at fair value investments Total
b3 BER
BEAER ATEEFE THEERE am
notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i BETT BETT BETR BETT
2016 “E-RE
Listed equity securities IHRAES @) 12,203 - 257,446 269,649
Unlisted equity securities ¥ EmRAES (b) - - 265,522 265,522
Structured products “EMETIA (© - 7,737 - 7,737
Investment funds REES (d - - 69,124 69,124
Others Hith () - - 51,926 51,926
12,203 7,737 644,018 663,958
Analysed as: PEA:
Listed in Hong Kong BALH 12,203 - 309,372 321,575
Unlisted ¥Em - 7,737 334,646 342,383
12,203 7,737 644,018 663,958
Analysed for reporting purpose as:  MMERE 2B EA
Non-current assets FREEE 651,653

Current assets REEE 12,305
663,958

LYWEXIMWRE D
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19.

notes:

@

()

©)

(d

©)

20.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017, listed equity securities classified as available-for-
sale investments held by the Group amounting to approximately
HK$288,380,000 (2016: HK$257,446,000) are carried at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Due to a prolonged decline in the market
price of the investment below cost, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$39,860,000 (2016: HK$nil) was recognised in the profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, unlisted equity securities classified as available-
for-sale investments held by the Group amounting to approximately
HK$269,922,000 (2016: HK$265,522,000) are carried at fair value at the
end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2017, structured deposits of approximately
HK$7,737,000 (2016: HK$7,737,000) held by the Group have maturity
date in 2019 and carry interest rates linked to London Interbank Offered
Rate ("LIBOR”). Such structured deposits are designated as financial
assets at FVTPL.

The investment funds invest in unlisted equity securities issued by private
entities incorporated in Asia Pacific region. They are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Investment funds with less than 12
months operation period before voluntary liquidation from the end of
reporting period are classified as current portion in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group has committed to contribute a
pre-determined capital amount in these investment funds and the realised
gains or losses of these funds are recognised in the profit or loss. These
investment funds may call upon further capital contribution if required up
to the pre-determined capital amount (note 30). There was no capital
returned to the Group from the investment funds during the year ended 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held a perpetual capital securities
amounting to approximately HK$52,239,000 (2016: HK$51,926,000) are
carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Such investments
are issued in September 2014 with a fixed distribution rate of 6.5% per
annum payable semi-annually for the first five years and reset to the
prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury plus the initial margin every five years
thereafter.

INVENTORIES

19.
Bt sE
(@

(b

©

(D

(®

20.

EHREA(E)

R-E—tF+-A=+—08 FEBEMFEEAR
EHRN AT EENE  DEATHEEN TR
AN H K BB 288,380,000 T (Z B — R4 : B
¥ 057,446,0007T) - AR ENTIHEERIHE
KA - 4978 # 39,860,000t (Z T — /N4 :
EVREBERNEBE_E—+tE+-_A=+—8IF
FEZEHBEANTER -

RZZB—tF+-A=+—8  AEEMFEUR
EHRN AT EENE  DEATHEENFELD
PR AR B A4 A8 8 269,922,000 T (=T — /N -
75 #265,522,0007T) °

R-B—tE+-A=t+—H AEREFHFOERE
MEFERREET7,737,000L(ZFT —RF: B
7,737,0007C) * HEXBFRMARITRAERL
ZRRGFE YRR -_T-NFIH - ZEHEBN
FARRIEERAFEEHABREZSREE

ZERBEESTHIRERESARFMK I ZAERE
BERTEITRIIE ETIR AR 5 - BRI ERREHR
BATFEEE - BREHRUAKNEREEANE
BHORT @A ZREESRERABRREA
DHERRBEE - AEERERZSREESR
BEENBEIEZEM  MZSESZEEBE R
HEB TN BEIRANTER - ZFREESTNEAE
HEBEINEERESA  EUABEERNE LR (M
30)  RZZE—+&FE+-_A=+—BR_T—KHF
+ZA=+—BIEFERN  ZFREESWERAE

R-FB—tF+-A=+—0 KEBEMRFENUR
EHARN AT EENE  DEAEERPELAZ S
4 B 75 52239000 T( =T — N F: B
51,926,0007T) ° % B HR T —MEH AT -
KERETAEEECS%  BERFEFFERE K -
HEgf e ShFAXERES R NBVNERERE
o

"8

2017
—B-tF
HK$’000
ERTR

2016
ZB-RE
HK$'000
BT

The Group’s inventories comprise: rEBEFERE
Raw materials FEarst

Work in progress S Sy
Finished goods Bk

Other inventories HizE

1,414
6,747 4,625
15,129 7,974
3,659 -

830

26,949 13,429

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during
the year amounted to approximately HK$55,631,000 (2016:
HK$44,460,000).

N FE R

REBXEZEERRNO R

7 ¥855,631,0000( = F — N F: B
44,460,000 7T) °



21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ESRHth EWERF
2017 2016
—E—tF “E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Trade receivables 2 SRR 24,990 25,632
Deposits paid EfiRES 27,751 20,455
Loan receivables FEW 2R 9,347 11,475
Prepayments and other receivables FBTIRR R H At B WU BR SR 53,197 69,927
115,285 127,489
notes: MI&E -
(a) Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential  (a) EMRTAHECH  AEEFNGEBEEREZ

()]

©

()

customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits
attributed to customers are reviewed periodically. Majority of the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have no default
payment history.

Considerations in respect of sold properties are payable by the purchasers
pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase agreements. Monthly rent
in respect of leased properties are payable monthly in advance by the
tenants. Other trade customers settle their accounts with an average
credit period of 30-90 days. The aged analysis of trade receivables of
approximately HK$24,990,000 (2016: HK$25,632,000) presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

EREEAENRREREFPZEELR - BPHE
ELREEHERSE - K& B 5 EURHIL
EBEAURE - B R -

BRZEBEANENEHEEENEZRE -
MESRAENEREEMEZTARS - H
thESEFANFEHI0O—0R ZEEHE
Ko RAREHR  KEZAHAAZSE
W BR FRA) 751 24,990,000 TL (ZF—7R4F ©
7B 25,632,000 70) ZERERDATIAT ©

2017 2016

“E—tF —ZRF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BETR BETR

Within 30 days 30BA 9,089 8,078

Between 31 days to 90 days JIZ90HA 13,859 11,350

Over 90 days #iB90H 2,042 6,204

24,990 25,632
As at 31 December 2017, debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of (b)) HE—Z—+tF+-_A=+—08 ' it AXE
approximately HK$2,250,000 (2016: HK$2,731,000) were past due and B fE W BRFX 2 AABR (B A 4978 ¥ 2,250,000
aged over 90 days at the end of reporting period but the Group has not TT(ZZF—7RF B 2731,0007L) © £
provided for impairment loss for these balances as management considers RS HRE @HBMA0 A - AEEWES
that the fundamental credit quality of these customers has not ZEEBREEIEIREE  ERATIE
deteriorated. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. BRERFPZEAEEEEZLEAIR -

NGB R 2 S A B AR o
All of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in the functional () AREEMEEFEWEZIARNEFERNERE
currency of the individual entities within the Group. B IhRe E L TI(E o

At the end of each reporting period, the Group performed the impairment (d) MBREHBEAEERD  KEERBEESRAE

assessment of trade and other receivables based on the recoverability of
these balances. Impairment loss is made when there is objective evidence
that the recoverability of the amount becomes doubtful, based on
historical settlement experience, subsequent settlements, business
relationship and credit assessment of counterparties. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, an impairment loss of HK$12,898,000 (2016:
HK$nil) in respect of other receivables was recognised in profit or loss.

ftb, i U5 AR TR B4 BB A U [B1 88 7 1 AR E &S 1S
RIBEATERBER  BEER  BEBERK
HEH 2 EETE - EXEEAMZERE
HEWEEE HBFEE - EIELRERIE - &
E_E—+EF+-_A=+—HILEFEE Hit
FE U BR 3k 2 BB B 18 A 7 12,898,000 7T
(ZZ—RF : 8)RIESIRER -
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a
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HLFE

22. FIXED BANK DEPOSITS WITH MORE THAN THREE
MONTHS TO MATURITY WHEN RAISED/OTHER
BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from

0.01% to 0.25% (2016: 0.01% to 0.25%) per annum. The fixed

deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from 0.25% to 4.20%

(2016: 0.28% to 4.90%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, restricted bank deposits of
HK$196,088,000 (2016: HK$223,780,000) in relation to the pre-
sale proceeds from the Group’s property development in PRC
were included in other bank balances and cash. In accordance with
relevant government requirements of property development in
PRC, the deposits can only be used for payments for construction
costs of the relevant properties when approval from related
government authority is obtained. Such deposits will be released

after the completion of construction of the related properties.

Pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$297,455,000 (2016:
HK$279,619,000) represent deposits pledged to banks to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits amounting to
approximately HK$nil (2016: HK$247,065,000) have been pledged
to secure long-term borrowings and are therefore classified as
non-current assets and the remaining fixed deposits of
approximately HK$297,455,000 (2016: HK$32,554,000) are

classified as current assets.

The Group’s bank balances and fixed bank deposits that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of

the relevant group entity are set out below:

22. EAZEREBEHZERNRTHE
RRBRITERRE S

RITERMBUATSINEAENFE - N F
BFFE0O0I%E0.25% (ZF—/<F : 0.01% &
0.25%) - EEMERMBEEAE - N FTEF
025%&E420%( = T — N F:028% %=
4.90%) °

R_ZE—+F+-_F=+—8 H@ETHF
A NIRE B 5 7HE#196,088,000 TL(ZZF—7X
F: E 223,780,000 ) R HIR1T1F
o BREREREERTR s MEER 2TE
EVMEMSHIBEER - BIBEE AR HKEY
MEBRNER - 27X R 0] AEESBUT
ERZERBIE(NHABYMFERERR - Z
TR %% TR15 DARRR o

B IRITF RA B 297,455,000 (=
T— N4 B 279,619,000 7)) BERE K
WTRITUERAEEER TRTHE - XK
KB E(ZT —NF  B¥ 247,065,000
) B RRAERAEERYE S B AIERE
BE - HATEHERL B 297,455,000 7T
—ZT—RF B 32554,00070) EDEA
MBNEE o
AEEUFHEESEEERNINEEEEN
RITIHF R R EBIRITER - B AT

Denominated Denominated

in RMB in US$

RAR®SIE UETFIE

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+tE+=-B=+-—H 390,134 174,068
As at 31 December 2016 RZE-RE+-B=+-—H 362,761 168,652




2

4

2

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. ESRHEMEMKRR 2

2017 2016 -

—2-LF Sl ©

HK$°000 HK$'000 e

BETT BETT -

&

Trade payables B ENRN 8,828 7,874 S

Construction costs and retention payables ERBERAREGRES 445,909 270,256 ﬁ

Deposits received and receipt in advance in respect of ~ REMEZBWHL KBRS

rental of investment properties 41,278 44,275
Receipt in advance on properties sold SEEMETRK 475,327 948,843
Other payables HAbEEER 30,424 24,462
1,001,766 1,295,710

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the

invoice date.

B HRNRFTNREAZERBBMOMNAOT -

2017 2016

“Z-t%§ —Z-RE

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BT BETT

Within 30 days RO 8,828 7,874

BEEMZFHEEMRI0H - ARELC
EIBEREIRBE - LHERFA BN ERRK
RIEEHASA -

5 6 W 2 78 W BN 4978 15 387,573,000 T (=
T—NEE) EHRERREHRE T @

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure

that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

Receipt in advance on properties sold amounting to approximately
HK$387,573,000 (2016: HK$nil) are expected to be released to

profit or loss after twelve months from the end of the reporting

period.

AENBRERAEDL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HLFE

24. BORROWINGS 24. &R
2017 2016
—E—tE ZE-RE
notes HK$’000 HK$’000
{53 BETT BETT
Secured bank borrowings BERERTER 1,201,027 1,136,273
Amount due to a joint venture EN-Hagh¥E @ - 1,250
Amounts due to non-controlling interests shareholders — FE{$ FEIR R B R 7B (b) 46,973 46,106
1,248,000 1,183,629
The maturity of borrowings is as follows: ERZESMANT
Carrying amount repayable: BREEREE ©
Within one year —FR 336,682 97,412
More than one year but not exceeding two years —FEBTIRBMF 864,345 321,001
More than two years but not exceeding five years MERETEBRE - 717,860
1,201,027 1,136,273
Amount due to a joint venture Ef—EegtENE - 1,250
Amounts due to non-controlling interests shareholders EERRRRAE 46,973 46,106
1,248,000 1,183,629
Amounts due within one year R—FREHIT
— Bank borrowings — RITER 336,682 97,412
— Amount due to a joint venture —Ef-RBeELERE = 1,250
— Amounts due to non-controlling interests — B FERRRAE
shareholders 46,973 46,106
383,655 144,768
Amounts due after one year it LGN
— Bank borrowings —RITER 864,345 1,038,861
1,248,000 1,183,629




24.

notes:

(a

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The amount was unsecured, non-interest bearing and fully repaid during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

24,
MiEE
@

B (48])

FZEGRRBER 28 YERBE—ZT—+tF
TZA=+—BLEFEHEE-

(b)  These borrowings are unsecured and repayable on demand. An amount of b)) ZEERAEEHNLREREEREEHNEL
approximately HK$35,247,000 (2016: HK$35,070,000) bears variable 35,247,0007C (=& —/~4 : ##35070,0007T)
interest at an effective interest rate of 2.03% (2016: 1.90%) per annum, ZHRBEFRZINN KRGS BEREMNXAESF
while the remaining amounts are non-interest bearing. 2.03% (ZE—784F : 1.90%) © A%EA| AR E ©

(c) The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the ©) BRAXRTIEERGEMEHETERAEE -
loan agreements.

(d)  The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than the (d) AEELEBEETENEEEUINZ iS5
functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out below: BZERET :

Denominated

in HK$

LB SIE

HK$'000

BETT

As at 31 December 2017 R-B—+F+-A=1+—H 93,777
As at 31 December 2016 R-ZE—RE+=-A=1+—H 204,743

(e) As at 31 December 2017, HK$ denominated bank loans of approximately (&) RZTE—tF+=—A=+—0 ' BBIEZRIT
HK$731,766,000 (2016: HK$697,592,000) and Renminbi ("RMB”) B A 15731,766,0000( =T — NG B
denominated bank loans of approximately HK$229,997,000 (2016: 697,592,000 70) M A AREFIEZ RITERLE
HK$215,092,000) are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest at ¥229,997,000L( = T — XN F: & ¥
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus a margin of 1.44% to 215,092,000 70) D Rl A A B BRITR EFK S
2.10% and 100% of the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) prescribed interest FHMNL44% E210% F =R M IZ B E K I
rate, respectively. The effective interest rates ranged from 2.75% to 4.96% 100% 2 F B A RRITREFI EHZ BB - BIR
(2016: 2.46% to 4.96%) per annum. The remaining bank loans carry fixed FRNFHFE275% E4.96%( =T —NF : 2.46%
interest rate at 4.96% (2016: 4.96%). Details of assets pledged are set out F4.96%) c HARITERZETEFERE4.96% (=
in note 29. T—NF 1 496%) - BHIBEEFIBEHAMITE29 ©

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. &RITETH

Assets Liabilities
BE af
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E—tF “E-RE “E2—tf “E-RE
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BETT BT T BETT
Derivatives not under hedge e ZATAETR
accounting:
Cross currency swap contract RXEBEHEN - - 111 -
Currency forward contracts RENESH 26 - 679 -
26 - 790 -
Analysed for reporting purpose as:  LMER&E 2R EA
Current ik 26 - " -
Non-current kRE - - 790 -
26 - 790 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR B A

uvT\

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H#Z=-ZF—+F+-A=+—HItFE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Cross currency swap contract

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered into a
Cross currency swap contract to manage its exposure to currency
exchange fluctuation on its operations in Japan with principal
amount of JPY2,749,848,740 at fixed currency exchange rate of
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) to HK$ at 0.07 and due in 2020. Under this
swap, the Group would receive interest monthly at a floating rate
of HIBOR plus 1.44% per annum based on the principal amount of
approximately HK$192,539,000 and pay interest annually at fixed
rate at 1.19% per annum based on the principal amount of
JPY2,749,848,740.

Currency forward contracts
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered into
several currency forward contracts to manage its exposure to

currency exchange fluctuation on its operations in Japan.

25. ERISTET R (E)

ExElen
HE-Z—+tFt+-_A=+—HLEFE &
SECHEBTHETIINEEERRS  KE
BEERBAREBHIINELBER B R
2,749,848 740 HE » KRB TEEEX A
0.07 » 2020 F 8 - RiFEREIEHIR
S AEEBEABKRBEARE B
192,539,000 TLA BB RITRIZEFEM11.44%
FHNEAENNE  REBFXANBREBELRS
2,749,848,740 B [El A& F | 2 1.19% 4 F| =
STEHFE -

EHNESL
BE_T—tHF+-_A=+—BLFE &K
SEFTVHEERHINESOREREEEAN
FKISESNE SRR -

Buy Sell Maturity Contract rate
g B E3): EHFIE
HK$33,869,000 JPY481,097,000 March 2018 to March 2020 0.0704 HK$
78 33,869,000 7T A 7t 481,097,000 —E-\¥=HZE-ZT-EF=R 0.0704 ¥

Details of the fair value measurements of cross currency swap

contract and currency forward contracts are set out in note 34c.

26. DEFERRED TAXATION
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of

financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have

HEEERXXN GBS MRIIMNES L
ZAFEEEFTEHNWE34c -

6. BEEHIE
MEVGETBEHRARME - B TIRLERIE
EENAGBOEERE U TARPTKERE X

been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax ZBEERIIBLZSRD T
balances for financial reporting purposes:

2017 2016
—E—tF “E-RE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BETT
Deferred tax assets ERERIEESE 3,850 5,807
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE (247,102) (226,910)
(243,252) (221,103)




26. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the

current and prior years.

26. BEBIE(E)
N TAREBRAFE RATFFEBEER
TEBREHBEEEREENNEEZD) -

Difference Revaluation

of accounting of investment

and tax properties
depreciation in the PRC Tax losses Total

BitERE EffEH
TEZER ZRENE BIEEE @5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-F—-H 30,337 209,386 (15,836) 223,887
Charge to profit or loss REZR KT 1,432 5,031 2,442 8,905
Currency realignment ExHE - (11,689) - (11,689)
At 31 December 2016 R-E-R"E+=-B=+-A 31,769 202,728 (13,394) 221,103
Charge to profit or loss RERREF R 2,127 4,864 2,640 9,631
Currency realignment ERFE - 12,518 - 12,518
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+F+-A=1+—-A 33,896 220,110 (10,754) 243,252

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$502 million (2016: HK$542 million)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of approximately HK$65 million (2016:
HK$81 million) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining tax loss of approximately
HK$437 million (2016: HK$461 million) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses at 31
December 2017 are tax losses of approximately HK$37 million
(20716: HK$89 million) that will expire within 5 years from the year

of originating. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
the temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$284,318,000
(2016: HK$18,952,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of these temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

RBEBR XREEBEHAHNLBE
502,000,0007L( = & — X F: & #&
542,000,0007T) 2 KRB AR IEE B A A {E
8 R 2 s K o & R 49748 % 65,000,000 7T
(ZZ—7 4 : B%81,000,0007T) BEFER A
BIERITEEE - ARNEETRRAR R F R -
HH #7381 437,000,00070 ( Z T — K F -
75 ¥ 461,000,000 7T ) 2 TR IE 5 18 0 K 1 3R
REEMEBEE - RZE—+ttF+=A
=t+—H AERVEEBEBEFLEELEFE
& A F AR Hr I BB 4% 37,000,000
TL(ZZF—78F : B#89000,0007T) » &
MAIEEEEEERAAEBE T —FE - R
BRRCEMRGRE BT N\F—A—
Hie - B E A 7 BBV M M &R 2R E
AEMTEIN - AR AN BBE M b B
BFERECEH MEBEREZEAETSRN
Al R A RBEE - B AR AR E B IS Rk 5t
BEfEBEARREEMN cEREZEZBE
284,318,000L( = & — X F: B ¥
18,952,000 7T) {E iR IERR TR 4 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HLFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. &
Number
of shares HK$'000
BB EE BT T
Issued and fully paid: EEGHE T
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and R=Z-"§¥-A—-H"
31 December 2017 “E-RE+tZA=t-HK
“E-tFT=A=t-H
Ordinary shares of no par BHEZZER 378,583,440 381,535

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 25 April 2002, for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees, and expired on 24 April 2012. Under the 2002 Scheme,
the Company could grant options to eligible employees, including
executive directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company at HK$10 per option.
Additionally, the Company could, from time to time, grant share
options to outside eligible third parties at the discretion of the
Board of Directors.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the total
number of shares in respect of which options could be granted
under the 2002 Scheme was not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time. the number of
shares in respect of which options could be granted to any
individual was not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time.

Options could be exercised at any time from the date of grant of
the share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price was to be determined by the directors of the
Company, and would not be less than the higher of the nominal
value of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, or the closing price of the shares on
the date of grant.

No options were granted under the 2002 Scheme since it was
adopted. The 2002 Scheme expired on 24 April 2012.

A new share option scheme was approved and adopted by the
Company pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 9 May 2012
(the “2012 Scheme”). The terms of the 2012 Scheme and the 2002
Scheme are broadly similar. The 2012 Scheme is effective for a
period of 10 years.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme since its
adoption.

28. B EAHESHE

RARBER-_ZTZT_FNA-_+ABEB
ZREREMNRO BTSN ([ 2T F5
2 FZEMRARBSESRAERE
B ZizR-—E——EmA=-+mARE
W BB_TT_FHE ARQFAAREE
BEE(BEARARENBARZHITES)
BB UESHEEEBI0TTREAQR

Betn e peHh - RRARARERERE AES
EIBAEREERINAE = E R
1o

EREFSEARFIRRELAAET REZZ
T OFEE AR R RO BETNEEE
RABREAFFEE ZEITRG Z210% © &%
TAEMMERI A+ 2 BT P IR () 81 B T 158
AR B PME AR R R B BT TRAR (D 2 1% o

P {7 BA#E AT 0 9% A B R 5 0 AR AAT By

TE - TRERRARERTER  ENMER
ARRBRORFEHARZEHE REERLY

BERAER S B 2B FHRmERE L
ERZEMHEmEZRSE -

=BT BV R UL SR IR 5

. _EE_FHER_ZE-—_FOA
_+EEIIE/%°
BER-_ZE-—_FHANB@EBZEERER

& —EHRD R EI([ =T ——F5t8l])
EARRRHAERER —FT——F5 821K
RE—TT —FFE 2 FRKRBHER - —F

S—=<

— —FEREEMHARIOF
— T FA BB AR AR 3R A



29. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 29. EERKHE

At the end of the reporting period, the assets shown as below HRIFEHIKR @ THEEDEFE TIHEIT  UE
were pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities made  ANEEER T —KRIETHE

available to the Group.
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2017 2016
—E—tF “E-RE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BETT
CARRYING VALUE REE
Leasehold land and building HELHKETF 61,679 63,173
Investment properties REME 4,636,391 4,277,182
Bank deposits RITER 297,455 279,619
30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30. EXEIE
2017 2016
—E—tF —Z-RE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT BETT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided in the B&NERRGERBHRE LBE
consolidated financial statements in respect of: BREY :
— Property, plant and equipment/properties under — % BERHZE/ZED
development/investment properties ME REYE 38,953 216,043
— Contribution to the capital of investment funds —REESNERERE 22,870 23,715

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. BEHLHKEIE

The Group as lessee EEEBRBEAN
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments R ERE HIZR - 25 5= B S A 450 88 48 & 78 49 M &
for future minimum lease payments under these non-cancellable #ER T EHI AT N2 AR ZERES T

operating leases which fall due as follows: T
2017 2016
—E-tF “E-RE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BETT
Within one year —FR 8,626 12,286
In the second to fifth years inclusive RE_ZEFER (BEERWE) 24,342 21,590
Over five years L% 5,559 9,107
38,527 42,983

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for certain of KE&BHAFBIRAEFEETFSTE  HEY
the Group’s offices, hotel premises and staff quarters. Leases are ¥ NEIB&7ENMNES - B AE—=
negotiated for a range of one to sixteen years and rentals are fixed +NERZ  BEAEHANESCEGSH  2°°

throughout the lease period. #IBRFTRETE ©
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31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group as lessor had

contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease

EERARE(R)
SEMEBHBAA
RBEHR - AREEREHEADEATR
REEME X EBER -

payments:
2017 2016
—Z—tF ZE-RE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BETT
Within one year —FR 318,082 323,722
In the second to fifth years inclusive REZZRFR (BEEEMF) 300,574 320,193
Over five years LF% 16,011 1,505
634,667 645,420

Property rental income earned during the year was approximately
HK$365,611,000 (2016: HK$361,136,000). All of the properties held

have committed tenants for the next one to eight years.

32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
For its eligible employees in Hong Kong, the Group operates a
defined contribution schemes registered under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).

Contributions payable by the Group to the MPF Scheme are
determined based on the rules underlying the respective schemes
and are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employees contribute 5% of the relevant payroll to
the MPF Scheme while the Group contributes 5% of the relevant

payroll to the MPF Scheme.

In addition, certain employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefits schemes. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefits
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to these retirement benefits schemes is to make the

specified contributions.

FANYERES WA BB 365,611,0007T
—T— N B#361136,0007T) © FTEY
¥HERRFEE AN —EN\FMAL -

32 . B k@It El
REBARBBZAEREEET BATEMH
FETE - WERFIMAESFTE T M (M8
BeErEl]) -

AEERBERERFEZEBRUREETE

ENZHR BEEAERRMG - BES
AEBEERRTANESTAES  BAL
BMeEENMRE REBRBESE BT

BIREBEABHRRCRREESFEIN - M
AEBIRIEABEE TABH 5% MMES T
BIHEFK -

gAN - AEERPBEKIZHMBRARZET
BEERBERERRABHEZKE - %F
B ARBZEMEE T A DL AERER
AHEEL R UBN AR - REEY
ZFRRBRIGT &8 2 —RETIF R EH;
K e



33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged

from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 24, net of bank deposits
and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,

comprising issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of

existing debt.

33. EXEBER

AEBEEHENETER  UERAEEE
THEEENEERISECEEAELE B
BN EHEARA  BgFTE - BRES
REEABTR - ANEE 2 BERERAEE A F I &

AEBEzERERBERFE(BEME24
FIREZER) - |RITFARMRSFELAR
AR E GRS (BRERITRA RS RRHE)
AR

ARBREFTEHMRIEREE - (FRRIZ
—H&D BEEEEEAKRARMBIESZHE
RER REEFZER AKREHEEX
MRS« BITHBRARZETHERLE@R
BRBSFTAFEEREBELSER -

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 34. &t TH
34a. Categories of financial instruments 3da. 2 THASE
2017 2016
—E—tF “E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Financial assets SHBE
FVTPL BAFEEARR
Held for trading HEEBERE 16,693 12,203
Designated at fair value EERATEIR 7,737 7,737
Loans and receivables (including cash and EXRERER(BFERER
cash equivalents) He%EER) 2,634,504 2,414,534
Derivative financial instruments ERITEIA 26 -
Available-for-sale investments AREERE 682,849 644,018
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost B 1,733,161 1,486,221
Derivative financial instruments SRITETR 790 -
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include investments in
securities, trade and other receivables, loan receivables, fixed bank
deposits with more than three months to maturity when raised,
other bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,

borrowings, and derivative financial instruments.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), liquidity
risk and credit risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

34. e TH(4E)

34b. M B EEEEBERBIK
AEENETEZSRTIABRERESRRE B85
KEA AR - BUER - FA=Z@EARK
B EHRITER - HMRITERERSE

B RHEMEMNERR  EREERMITETR -

ZESRMIAZHBRESBEAWNTARE -
HZEeHTAEEAzZRRBETSRR(E
%HFW - MR R ERRR) ﬁ@iéffﬁﬁt

RiEERKE - BENMABREZSERR 2K
ﬁ%@’ﬂﬁﬂ? c BEREH LR ?TEEE&

BT DABREESA RIS BN E S BRI

Market risk ™ 15 BB
() Currency risk )  EEEER
The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign AREBAHHESHR 5 2ANEET  FIAS
currencies and, hence exposures to exchange rate fluctuations SEXRIZEZE -
arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and RIREHIFR  ANEBEUAE TR EE L
monetary liabilities, including intra-group balances at the end of 4HNEF|EZEBEELEEAE  BIFEEH
the reporting period that are denominated in currencies other than A FR|FRELBEREL T ¢
the functional currency of the relevant entities are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
EE af
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE—+& —~E —E—tF —~E
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT BETT BT BETT
Group £8
HK$ against RMB BELARY 709 1,794 93,777 204,743
United States dollars (“‘US$”) ETRBERARY
against HK$ and RMB 303,884 294,972 - -
RMB against HK$ AR¥HBE 390,134 362,761 - -
Intra-group balances SEARERGER
HK$ against RMB BEEARE 110,910 103,644 1,329,145 1,352,638
The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange hedging 7N £ [B) B A0 4 SN E B B =18
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors foreign B & B R ET S 1) SN E R W@Eﬁﬁ%gﬁ—ir
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign 2 & ¥ ih 3= 3 HNE & B AR JR o

exchange exposure should the need arises.



34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

() Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 1% (2016: 1%)

increase and decrease in HK$ and RMB against US$ and 10% (2016:

10%) increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB. The respective

percentages are the sensitivity rates used when reporting foreign

currency risk internally to key management personnel and

represent management’s assessment of the reasonably possible

change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes

outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and

also intra-group balances denominated in foreign currencies and

adjusts their translation at the year end for the respective

percentages change in the exchange rates.

A positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit or
equity where HK$ and RMB weaken 1% (2016: 1%) against US$ and
HK$ weaken 10% (2016: 10%) against RMB. For a 1% (2016: 1%)
strengthening of the HK$ and RMB against US$ and HK$ weaken
10% (2016: 10%) against RMB, there would be an equal and

opposite impact on the profit or equity, and the balances below

34, 2T HE ()
34b. B BEIGEEBERBEK (E)

Th 35 [ B (48)

(H  EEERE(E)

BREE DT
TRAFNEBMYBERARKE K EITE XK
EARTE1%(ZZE—RF 1%) URABEBR
ARE R TEI0%(ZZ—/XF :10%)
WHRE SEEOLBREATAEEE
BABERSMANKERELE  RRTE
BEYHERAEAEHENZBNTG - &
BRESMBEUINEGENREHERIER
RAGNETIER S B AR ERERS - WHLE
EEENBED L REEFRAE -

TRAPEHRTAEBHETRE IR (ZZE—X
F:1%) RAEBHLARERZBE1I0O% (ZE—R
F:10%) R E R S ERIE N - BB
MAREHETHEIS(ZZT—RF 1 1%) &
BEH AREAEIOS(ZF—/NF : 10%)
K #afliEseaRBERARAS RN

would be negative. 2 MmMNyEHeEas-
2017 2016
—Z—tF —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
Profit or loss B
HK$ against RMB BEIARE 109,494 121,237
US$ against HK$ and RMB EnHBBRARY 1,518 1,473
RMB against HK$ AREEH B 32,576 30,291
Other comprehensive income Hir2 ks
US$ against HK$ ETRBE 1,221 1,186

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year

end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

RIFEEENER - SUREDS T HE BRI
BRI SARKYE  BAFRAXNER
W RERF AR R E g o
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of

a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

interest rates. The Group currently does not have an interest rate

hedging policy. However, the management monitors interest rate

exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate

exposure should the need arise.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
its variable-rate structured deposits, bank balances and borrowings
(see notes 19, 22 and 24 for details of these financial instruments).
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly attributable to
fluctuation of HIBOR, LIBOR and prevailing interest rates offered
by the PBOC. It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at
floating rates of interest so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk. The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of

this note.

34, 2T HE ()
34b.BIBEMEEBERBE (E)

5 E k& ()
(D FIFERE
ReEmEFNEXRARASRTE Z RKRE R
EREMIZH X “Ebﬂﬂ/)*i@JZﬂﬂ”$%I
B Bl I £ ) & 0 R CEREeR
B E N R E 'TTAE*E$EE¢%‘FET

R BN R LR SRR o

REEREFERABUEETR  RITERKLE

FESREREFERR (ﬁfaiﬂliﬁ
BFRMFEI9 - 22Rk24) c AEENBESRE
NERBREZHEANRBTBRITRERE R
FIRTRIRF R L BHPBEARBITIRENER
TEENRE - KB BERRREHE A
RZH UBRERMIRAFEENERRAR - K
SEHECRABMAINONERER - F15H
RAMZERREE SRR ER

— 8 e
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 34. BT R () §
34b.Financial risk management objectives and policies 34b. M EIGEBEHERBE (H) -
(continued) E
Market risk (continued) Th 35 [ B (48) 3
(D) Interest rate risk (continued) OREENAC-D) §
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT ﬁ

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the T~ HIBEE DT JIEIE AR &£ B RE T4 & IE
exposure to interest rates for the Group’s derivative and non- #$THA T EAEREARATHOFNREREBTE ©
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. The /BEATFWERBESERKRINHHSH T
analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding EBEBER{IKRIE - AXH T ESEAS
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole  [EZRF| R R H F 502 F R E)ZE (=
year. A 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis points) fluctuation is used ZE—;X:50%F)  KREXBEEBHIRESIE
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management A 8¢aYEE N E AL S o

personnel and represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

2017 2016
—B-tF ZE-RE
Change in basis points Change in basis points
HE25 EEEE
+50 -50 +50 -50
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Profit or loss (net of tax) RABEE (RFE) 4,899 (4,899) 1,353 (1,353)
Numbers in bracket mean decrease. R E R AR o

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is HREEEBEEMNER SXESTEHES G F
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the year end ZEF MW TERKNE  RAFEKEATHREM
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year. WA R F RS B R

215
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

@iir) ~ Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through their

investments in listed equity securities. The management will closely

monitor the price movement of the securities and regularly review

the performance and asset allocation of the portfolio.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the

exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective listed equity instruments had been
10% (2016: 10%) higher/lower:

. the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2017 would increase by approximately HK$1,394,000 (2016:
HK$1,019,000) or decrease by approximately HK$25,474,000
(2016: HK$1,019,000), respectively, as a result of the changes
in fair value of investments held for trading and available-for-

sale investments which have been impaired; and

. the Group’s investment revaluation reserve would increase
by approximately HK$34,062,000 (2016: HK$30,937,000) or
decrease by approximately HK$5,224,000 (2016:
HK$30,937,000), respectively, as a result of changes in fair

value of available-for-sale investments.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance its operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with

loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had available
unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately HK$1,495 million
(2016: HK$1,688 million). Details of the amounts utilised at the end

of the reporting period are set out in note 24.

34, 2T HE ()
34b.BIBEMEEBERBE (E)

T 35 [ B (48)
3i)  EEE
REEZBEN EMRAFSF ZREFRER
BERR BEERENERZEES 2ER

e WEHRNARESZRAREED
fig -
BURE DT

TXHGREDTHRERS B HAT KR
BRBRET -

EEEFTRATENERSE FE10%
—E—RF 1 10%) - 8 :

s FAEBBEZZ—+tFT-A=+—H
WEFE e BB 1& 5 A & 3E 88
1,394,000L( = & — X F: B ¥
1,019,000 ) z B 2 B ¥ 8
25474000 ( ZF — N F: B K
1,019,0007T) - REARFKIEEERABK
BERATFEEZFSMAHHEREZR
B &

s AEEMNBRESEHREESEMMOBE
34,062,000L( ZF — N F: B
30,937,0007T ) 2 B P B B K
5224000m( =& — R F: B &
30,937,0007T) * RARAIMHHERE
WRAEEEEZS -

& & E B

EEERDEEBRE  NEBEZERRE
ERERRRANRE KRS EEBEBKYF
REXBZEBRHESYRERSREND
MEE - BEBETRITERZERMNRL K
HEIRE ST B K56 -

REBKBRITEREARDES ZEER
BoM—T—+F+=-A=+—80 ~&H
BRAIB AT AR Z RITE KB ALOBE
1,495,000,0007L( = & — X F: B ¥
1,688,000,0007L) - RREHEAERE S
A& 2 BEERRMEE24 -



34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables below
have been drawn up based on the contractual maturities of the
undiscounted financial liabilities including interest that will accrue,

with reference to their respective contractual interest rate, and for

34. 2R TH(4E)

nBEEER(E)

those variable-rate instruments, by using the appropriate prevailing

market rates at the end of the reporting period as stated in their

34b. B EREEEERBUR (])

AEENFTEERABRUBERSOR
HREMAFIN TR TRERBARMES
BEERRRBANENES OB mHIE -
MEBOIANERMERZSHMETA
D2RARERRERH TSN ERME
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contracts.
More than Total
Weighted  Within 1 year 1yearbut undiscounted
average or repayable less than financial Carrying
interest rate on demand 3 years liabilities amounts
EEZR -z REEHEH
EYS —£R =FR SREE
A= Lt HE ot BEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BET T BT T BRI
At 31 December 2017 R-B—+&
t=A=t-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities — F#T4££MEE
Trade and other payables B REMEMRE = 485,161 - 485,161 485,161
Bank borrowings (note) WBITER () 3.78 342,739 902,127 1,244,866 1,201,027
Amounts due to non-controlling  FE{tFEERRRER
interests shareholders
— Interest bearing —itE 2.03 35,247 - 35,247 35,247
— Non-interest bearing —%E - 11,726 - 11,726 11,726
Total @ 874,873 902,127 1,777,000 1,733,161
At 31 December 2016 R-B-XE
+=A=+-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities —~ #4742 E &
Trade and other payables D5 REMEFIRE - 302,592 - 302,592 302,592
Bank borrowings (note) AT (HEE) 3.50 138,883 1,086,945 1,225,828 1,136,273
Amount due to a joint venture Ef—fagiEsg - 1,250 - 1,250 1,250
Amounts due to non-controlling  FE{F IR IR IR SRAE R
interests shareholders
— Interest bearing —&tE 1.90 35,070 - 35,070 35,070
— Non-interest bearing —%E - 11,036 - 11,036 11,036 217
Total ek 488,831 1,086,945 1,575,776 1,486,221 ;
)]
note: The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non- Mz - Pt AFESTE SR BEFETA 2S5 ;;
derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in variable BRI EF R S ENREAREEAE g
interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates determined at 2RSS E A =B EL &g o »
al

the end of the reporting period.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit

risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to

discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the

carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as

stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk of debts, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, management has regular liaison with the borrowers to
understand their financial position and to identify any early sign of
potential problems. Should any potential default situation arise,
management will take prompt actions to safeguard the Group’s
assets. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that

the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-

rating agencies.

34. £ T H(8)
34b. M EIGEBEBHERBE (EH)

EEER
RZBE—tF+A=+—H XEEAX

%%?E*A“J%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ EES
BAMEL ZEXEERRIVRE&E M
RIR ISR E R mﬂéﬁFzﬁEE@

BRLVEFNEERR  FAEEEEEEZXR
KEFAEBTEEERE EEERLEM
ERRERF BARAEKDNRBRETHURRBHE
e tbsh EEEEMEBEANRE - TH
HM BRI AR EAEERENFHIR -
—BHREMBEEDRR  EEESHRN
RENTHREAKENEE - sl - AR
AEERA/AKENEERRE KABE -

RBESNEERRER  BAITNHEIR
EERFRSERR S EETRNRT -



34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 34. 2T HE (&)

34c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments 34c. 2RI TR AEEEE

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are ZARNEBLDELREENL SR B EIARREH
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The RKE AL EBEIE - TRIEEEHESMEE
following table gives information about how the fair values of ZAFEBEEFTAHAANELR (EE2RmE @ A4 E

these financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation  FJEREEARE AZE) o
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technique(s) and inputs used).

2017
—E—tF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—RE FEZMWA E=RE @
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Financial assets at FVTPL BALEEST ARG
SREE
Non-derivative financial assets BEEBEERZZETLE
held for trading SHEE 16,693 - - 16,693
Financial assets designated as at  EERAFEBEF ABHEZ
FVTPL SHEE = 1,137 - 1,137
Derivative financial instruments {74 4®I & - 26 - 26
Available-for-sale AHHELREE
financial assets
Listed equity securities EmRARES 288,380 - - 288,380
Unlisted equity securities FLEmBRAES - - 269,922 269,922
Investment funds REES - - 72,308 72,308
Others Hitr - 52,239 - 52,239
Total 1z 305,073 60,002 342,230 707,305
Financial liabilities at FVTPL &AL EEFAEREZ
=
Derivative financial instruments {74 £®IE - 790 - 790

LvusETHRS 3

& -

% b B HF —



N
N
o

£10Z 140d3d IVNNNY | Q3LIWIT INIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HLFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
34c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

34. e TH(4E)
34c.ERMMTHEAFEEHTE(H)

2016
—E-RE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—RE EZRA E=RA ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAVEEFABREZ
SREE
Non-derivative financial assets BEEBEERZZETLE
held for trading SHEE 12,203 - - 12,203
Financial assets designated as at 3§ ERAFEETAEBGRZ
FVTPL SHEE - 7,737 - 7,737
Available-for-sale AHHELREE
financial assets
Listed equity securities EmRARES 257,446 - - 257,446
Unlisted equity securities FEmBRAES - - 265,522 265,522
Investment funds REHS - - 69,124 69,124
Others Hith - 51,926 - 51,926
Total ek 269,649 59,663 334,646 663,958

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

The fair values of listed equity securities are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices from relevant stock

exchanges.

The fair values of investment funds are determined by using
valuation technique of market approach, which included some
assumptions that are not supportable by observable market prices
or rates. The inputs used in estimating the value of investment
funds include the original transaction price, recent transactions
and market multiple of the same or similar instruments, completed

or pending third-party transactions in the underlying investment.

The fair values of perpetual capital securities classified as available-
for-sale investments are determined based on indicative prices
provided by the dealers and brokers. In addition, the Group makes
comparison of the indicative prices with the prices obtained from
pricing services providers to substantiate the indicative prices of
these securities. The key inputs used in the valuation models are
the interest rate data, which are observable at the end of the
reporting period. The objective of valuation models is to arrive at a
fair value estimation that reflects the price of the financial
instrument at the reporting date, which would have been

determined by market participants acting at arm’s length.

FR F— F_RF="RBNZEEEE
EfryeEts o

EHRAES T2 EERBR ST sl
SRS EABEEAFEE-

BEREETNATFEERFKARMMS A
ENTTE ERERTEERMSERNKF
KX —LBR - A REZSWEEMN
AN AZE  BRRRNKRE T8
ZRTHZERRSEUNTA - TRHF
FE=ZNXHHEBKE -

BEAAHEERENKABERNEFNAF
EBEREBEHR ML AFMRENERIEE
REERE o SN REBEAR R EERERLE
ERGHER T LESHERMALE - A
SKRABRBEFHEREEREMRARE -
[BERANEIZHAZBR/NIHE  ZH
BEREHREG A ABRG L o HEEXH
BRRENARREB T AERS BHED
B2EEARNFEBMSERN QT EER
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

34c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

The fair values of structured products designated as financial

assets at FVTPL are calculated using discounted cash flows

analysis derived from quoted interest rates, which are observable

at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of unlisted equity securities are determined with
reference to market values of underlying assets, which mainly
comprise investment properties located in Hong Kong held by the
investee company and take into account the discount for lack of
marketability. The valuation of the properties was principally
arrived at using the comparison method, in which property is
valued on the assumption that the property can be sold with the
benefit of vacant possession. Comparison based on prices realised
on actual sales of comparable properties is made for similar

properties in the similar location.

The fair values of cross currency swap contract and currency
forward contracts are measured by the present value of future
cash flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield
curves derived from quoted interest rates and foreign exchange
rates between JPY and HK$, which is observable at the end of the

reporting period.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of the Group’s other financial assets recorded at amortised costs in

the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

34, 2T HE ()
34c. 2T HAFEETE(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H#Z=-ZF—+F+-A=+—HItFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

34c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets

34. e TH(4E)
34c.ERMMTHEAFEEHTE(H)

EMEBEERE =M 2 TEERAH

Available-for-sale

investments

AHHERE

HK$'000

BETT

Balance at 1 January 2016 RIE-RE-F—A&H 388,088

Total net losses recognised in other comprehensive income REtZENEARRZFER (67,190)

Purchases BE 3,780

Matured/disposals B8/ BE (32)

Balance at 31 December 2016 RIB-R"E+ZA=+-B4&%H 334,646

Total net gains recognised in other comprehensive income REM2ERSAER 2R R 6,692

Purchases BE 892

Balance at 31 December 2017 —E—+FE+ZA=+—-HEE 342,230
Included in other comprehensive income is a gain of approximately  EftZEW AR 5 E ¥ 6,692,000 7tk e=
HK$6,692,000 (2016: a loss of HK$57,190,000) related to (ZZFE—/X%F : ## 57,190,000 TEE) + £

available-for-sale investments held at the end of the reporting

period.

The majority of the Group’s investments are valued based on
quoted market information or observable market data. A small
percentage, 2.4% (2016: 2.4%), of total assets of the Group, is
based on estimates and recorded as Level 3 investments. Whilst
such valuations are sensitive to estimates, it is believed that
changing one or more of the assumptions to reasonably possible
alternative assumptions would not have a big impact on the

Group’s financial positions.

RBEMRFAENAHOERERR -
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

34c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

The management performs regular reviews to determine the

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurement.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engages independent qualified
professional valuers or other service providers to perform the
valuations. The management works closely with the valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The respective management team reports the findings to
the Board of Directors of the Company regularly to explain the

cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities is

disclosed above.

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising

from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash

changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for

which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the

Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

financing activities.

34, 2T HE ()
34c. 2T HAFEETE(E)

P T EEFENFEHEBRE
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35. MEGHELEMBEAMN

TRALTAKERBEETHELNABZL
BREASMIREE( BEZDEENE
BEEBLBESRE  AARKNRERE - §
BOBRARENGARESRERNBER
HRERE -

Dividend Interest

Borrowings payable payable Total

fBR ERRE EAFIE Fote)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BRI BET T BT

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+&—-F—-H 1,183,629 - - 1,183,629
Financing cash flows HEBLTE 31,156 (181,720 (33,615) (184,179)
Finance costs BHIS AR - - 45,691 45,691

Dividends recognised as ERRADKZRE

distribution - 181,720 - 181,720
Currency realignment ExFE 33,215 - 58 33,273
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+tH&+=-A=+—-H 1,248,000 - 12,134 1,260,134
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HLFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36. AATIMBRARRGHE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—tF “E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties RENE 1,971,000 1,811,000
Property, plant and equipment ¥ BERZE 566,168 576,264
Investments in subsidiaries HWBARZKRE 417,588 499,984
Interests in joint ventures BERECRE - 3
Investments in securities BERE 132,184 128,685
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B A TR 4,678,734 4,455,123
Deferred tax assets BEREERE 3,850 5,807
7,769,524 7,476,866
Current assets REBEE
Properties held for sale HHEyE 2,808 2,808
Trade and other receivables 25 REM BRI 4,035 4,420
Investments in securities BHERE 16,793 12,305
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA 26 -
Fixed bank deposits with more than three months to BEA=ERA B2 EHRTER
maturity when raised 83,566 766,108
Other bank balances and cash HRTEIRRE 527,600 148,636
634,828 934,277
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B R EMEMRR 7,787 7,608
Borrowings — due within one year B3 — RN —FEREH 47,400 48,650
55,187 56,258
Net current assets REBEEFE 579,641 878,019
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBDEE 8,349,165 8,354,885
Non-current liabilities FRBER
Rental deposits from tenants mEFREzEERS 39,650 39,650
Borrowings — due after one year ER— R—F&EES 590,589 445 450
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA 790 -
Non-interest bearing advances from subsidiaries WEARZREER 145,715 2,267,167
776,744 2,752,267
7,572,421 5,602,618
Capital and reserves EXRfHE
Share capital BRAx 381,535 381,535
Reserves (note) ikt (MiaE) 7,190,886 5,221,083
7,572,421 5,602,618

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue HMEHRERENR_ZET—N\E=A+tBHEEZEETE
by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2018 and are signed on its  #L/ERFE#ERET  WEHTIIATRRZE
behalf by:

MR. LIU LIT CHI MR. CHENG YUK WO
ERELE ERE A0S A
CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FEREEEFE

FE - BFESIERTHAEH
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36. AATMBRARRGHE (8) 2
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) ;
note: The movements in reserves are presented below: MizE : 2 ST - m
Property Investment S
revaluation revaluation Accumulated _'
reserve reserve profits Total §
MEE i RHE REEGRHE ey @t e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 o
BT T BT T BT T BET T
At 1 January 2016 —Z-—RE-B-H 448 (32,956) 4,983,310 4,950,802
Profit for the year REFRR - - 398,890 398,890
Fair value gains on available-for-sale investments ~ A/t &R E » AL EEKE - 14,243 - 14,243
Investment revaluation reserve reclassified to RHETHHEEREEHSHHEE
profit or loss upon disposal of BRECREEHHE
available-for-sale investments - (6501) - (501)
Investment revaluation reserve reclassified to RBESETHEEREEH
profit or loss in relation to impairment BN ERERRS
loss on available-for-sale investments RES LG - 20,440 - 20,440
Total comprehensive income for the year rEEZANGEE - 34,182 398,890 433,072
Dividends recognised as distribution EERBIRZKRE - - (162,791) (162,791)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-~E+=A=1+-A 448 1,226 5,219,409 5,221,083
Profit for the year REERF - - 2,148,869 2,148,869
Fair value gains on available-for-sale investments ~ AIfit & 1R E » A FEEKE - 2,654 - 2,654
Total comprehensive income for the year rEEZHNGRERE = 2,654 2,148,869 2,151,523
Dividends recognised as distribution ERAADRZRE - - (181,720 (181,720)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=A=1+-H 448 3,880 7,186,558 7,190,886
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HLFE

37. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 37. ABtANLTHEEIE
(a) Related party transactions (a) AL S
2017 2016
“E2-t% —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
Expenses paid and payable to directors of EXNREATFAARDRENBAR
the Company or its affiliates EENER
Rental expenses HeXH 4,092 6,372
Architecture and other consultancy service fee BENEMEAREE 924 1,932
The Group had no other material significant transactions with ~ ZNEBEWMEREBA TV EARLS °
related parties.
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) TEEWAEHE
The emoluments of key management personnel of the Group ER @ ANEBETEEBABZHHOT
during the year were as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tE ZE-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Short-term benefits RAER 46,990 47,677
Post-employment benefits EERIKEF 2,832 2,665
49,822 50,342

The emoluments of directors and key executives are determined BZEZENTBITBRAEBZHFM I BETEHEES

by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance 1ZEARBE LR HISBEETE -

of individuals and market trends.



38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. HEKMEBAT

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered into HE-—ZE—XE+-_A=+—HILEE &
agreements with independent third parties to dispose of certain EEEBYE = ETHSEULERTHE
subsidiaries, which were principally engaged in the hotel ¥ KHKBAR - EEXXSDEHE_Z
operations. The transactions were completed during the year —X<&+=-A=+—HILEERNK °

ended 31 December 2016.

The aggregate net asset of the subsidiaries disposed of in the

transactions were as follows:

HEZHMBRAREERFENT ¢

HK$'000
BETT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ BERR 577
Trade and other receivables EEY e N 3,501
Bank balances and cash BROERREE 1,501
Liabilities =1
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERRR (1,501)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 4,078
Cash consideration received BWEERE 12,047
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE (4,078)
Cumulative exchange reserve reclassified to profit or loss REBERREEN I BZERR 2,872
Gain on disposal HEWZ 10,841
Satisfied by: BHAR
Cash consideration received BEERE 12,047
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HESHEEENRSRAFE
Total cash consideration received SBWRERE 12,047
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEECRITERRES (1,501)
10,546
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HLFE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are as follows:

39. T EMEBAT
R-B—+&+-_A=+—BR=-Z—~F
+-A=+—HB AR ZIEWBATE

KT
Place of
incorporation or Issued ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes  operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
RIS BERTER FAARABEERTRAEE/
WEAR AR R AT V3 BA/FERER HMmER 2 LA TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B B
2017 2016 2017 2016
Bt B ZB-t§f ZE2-RF
% % % %
Abaleen Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 - - Property investment
BE FB#100,000 7 MERE
Alain Limited Hong Kong HK$9,500 100 100 - - Investment holding
HBERAF 58 B 9500 7T REER
Bonsun Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 - - Property investment
BREERRAA B 7B#2,000,000 7 MERE
Chong Yip Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 - - Money lending
RIEBBERAR B 7B#1,000,000 7 ERER
Chong Yip (Nominges) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 - - Provision of nominees
A% (REB)ERAF gE BT services
REREARE
Devon Realty Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Property investment
EEMERRAT BB BEE200 T MERE
Donington Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Property investment
BB BEE200 T MERE
Golden Harbour International Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - - 100 100 Property investment
B BERERAR BB BRI MERE
Harvest Gate Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100 100 - - Property investment
LERERBAH BB BRI MERE
Heng Kin Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - - Property investment
ERRERRAH BB BT MERE
Honour Speed Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - - Investment holding
BERERERAH BB BT REER
Hugh Glory Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 90 90 Investment holding
ERARAR BB B 1007 REER
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 39. X EMBAT () 2
Place of ;
incorporation or Issued ordinary i
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/ 8
Name of subsidiary notes  operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities :
RIS BRTEE RARABEERTRAEE/ g
WEAR AR AT VS BA/FERE R EfERZ LA TEEH #
Directly Indirectly At
B# C3
2017 2016 2017 2016
Bt B ZF-tF —E2-RF
% % % %
Hugh Wealth International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 - - Investment holding
BBERERAR &8 B0 REZR
Jacot Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - - Investment holding
EBIBRAR &8 BT REZR
Ko Yew Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Property investment
SEERAR &8 B 200 T MERE
Liu Chong Hing Estate Company, Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 - - Investment holding
Limited Bk 75#10,000,000 7T REER
BRIEEXERAR
Liu Chong Hing Godown Company, Hong Kong HK$72,000,000 100 100 - - Property investment
Limited & 772,000,000 70 MERE
BRIEAERERAR
Liu Chong Hing Property Management Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 = - Property management
and Agency Limited &8 751,000,000 7 MEERE
BRIENEERERREERAF
Luxpolar Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 100 100 Property investment
&8 BT MERE
One-Eight-One Hospitality Hong Kong HKS1 100 100 - - Hotel operation and
Management Limited BB BT management
BEEERER
Queen Profit International Investment Hong Kong HK$61,540 83.75 83.75 - - Investment holding
Limited B B 61,540 T REER
BRERREBRAR
Richview Property Management Hong Kong HK$10,000 = - 100 100  Property management
Company Limited &8 FB#510,000 7T MEERE 2;9
EENEEBRERAT :
22
Sino Pink Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - - Property investment j:
BREEERAH &8 BT MERE =
al

& -

% b B HF —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-T—tF+_A=+—HLFE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

39. T EMEBAT (E)

Place of
incorporation or Issued ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
MK LR ERTER AABBCRTRAEE
WEAR AR Wi R/ B B/ ERER HMERZ LA TEEEK
Directly Indirectly
B# C3
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E—tf ZE-RF ZE-tF ZE-RF
% % % %
Speed World Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 60 60  Investment holding
ERBEERRAT BE BE100 T REZR
Strong Zone International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
SHERERAR Bk BT REZR
Supreme Stone Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
RBERERRAA Bk BT REZR
Top Team Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Investment holding
Bk B 200T REZR
Trade Castle Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
BRERAT BE BT REZR
Truegrow Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
BRRERRAT Bk BT REZR
Wealth Good Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - - Investment holding
WHRERRAT BE BT REZR
Yue Tung Ching Kee Company Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 - - Property investment
Limited BB 78 #52,000,000 7T MERE
WREZBRAH
Foshan Nanhai Hugh Glory Property )  PRC HK$500,000,000 - - 90 90  Property development
Development Company Limited FE 7 500,000,000 7 MELRE
HLBEERGERRERAR
Guangzhou Chong Hing Property (i) PRC RMB170,000,000 = - 60 60  Property development
Development Company Limited H AE#170,000,000 7 MEER
BMNAIEFEHERREERAR
Guangzhou Trade Castle Property ) PRC HK$8,500,000 - - 100 100 Property investment
Consultancy Limited H 78,500,000 7 MERE
BNTEREHEZAERAR
Guangzhou Wealth Smart Property )  PRC HK$1,000,000 - - 100 100 Property management
Management Company Limited FE 381,000,000 7T MEER

ENTRRNEEEERAT
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 39. X EMBAT () 2
Place of ;
incorporation or Issued ordinary i
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/ g
Name of subsidiary notes  operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities :
L AE] BRIEE FAARACRIRAEE/ o
WEAR AR AT VS BA/FERE R EMERZ LA TEEER #
Directly Indirectly At
B# C3
2017 2016 2017 2016
Bt B ZF-tF —E2-RF
% % % %
Maanshan Gaoke Magnetic Material (i)~ PRC RMBG65,370,000 - - 51.54 51,54 Manufacturing of
Company Limited H AEH65,370,000 70 magnetic materials
SRR RERAR SUEHME AR
Shanghai Huang Pu Liu Chong Hing () PRC US$34,600,000 - - 100 100 Property investment
Property Development Company FE 34,600,000 % 7T MERE
Limited
LEERBAAERERE
BRAR
Blossom Success Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
SEREBRAF Hong Kong 1%7 REEZR
RERLEE/
China Link Technologies Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100 100 - - Investment holding
Hong Kong 1003 7T REER
RERLEE/
BB
Determined Resources Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100 100 - - Share investment
Hong Kong 1,000 7T RIRE
RERLEE/
BB

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the E#ERA WAEELEFEEEEATE
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of T REBERB AR RELFHIN LXK - EE
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the 2R&  ZREHEEMEHB AT EL - BIEEE

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. RILE

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end  HLENIEB A T L AR EEZITEMBEEES o

of the year.
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The majority of
these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of

these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

39. TEMBAT (&)
RAREBRR - AR A B AREEM
ETIBERNMBAR - ZEMBARHRK
BOEREBEE HENBRARNEESE
TEIRBEFN AT -

Number of subsidiaries

MEAREE
Principal activities Principal place of business 2017 2016
TEXK TEEXNH “E—tf “E-RE
Hotel operation and management PRC 1 1
BELERER HE
Investment holding Hong Kong 15 12
REER EB
Property investment Hong Kong 2 2
NERE B
Inactive Hong Kong/PRC 18 10
R EE/HE
notes: BMiaE -

©) The companies are sole foreign equity ventures established in the PRC.

(i) The companies are sino-foreign equity joint ventures established in the
PRC.

(iii)  The company is sino-foreign co-operative joint venture established in the
PRC.

(iv) At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not have non-wholly
owned subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests.

() HERFRNTERYZINGBELE -
(i FERARRRFERLZFIEELERT -

(i)  ZARRRFBRY 2 RIS EEE QT

(v) RAFERE - ZIS’EI:\[/EE%FJEK#EHQ
RERNIFZEEFHNHER
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